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CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EEFR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping

Mr. Lam Ka Po

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho

Mr. Liu Min

Mr. Zhou Pei Feng

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Lo Ka Leong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Leung Tai Chiu

Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen

Mr. Zhang Lu Fu

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung, Kaizer

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Yu Hin (appointed on 31 March 2017)
Mr. Tsoi Kin Lung (resigned on 31 March 2017)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of Communications Co. Ltd.

China Construction Bank Corporation

Citibank, N.A.

DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

The Bank of Toyko-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NREHR

LEGAL ADVISORS

Allen & Overy

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 309
Ugland House
Grand Cayman
KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS

23/F, Delta House

3 On Yiu Streat

Shek Mun, Shatin, N.T.
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
IN HONG KONG

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Year ended
31 December 2015
HE-_ZT—AF

Year ended
31 December 2016
BE-ZT—~&§

+-A=t+—HILFE +t—A=+—RALEFE

HKS$ MillionE&#E 7t  HKS MilionB &8 7T

Revenue 2 15,531.7 12,769.7 +22%
EBITDA* *ggg;ﬁ:ﬁfﬁ il 3,230.6 2,346.8 +38%
Profit before tax* RRBE A2 Fll* 2,503.3 1,486.5 +68%
Net profit attributable to owners &2 T)iHE A E(LLEF
of the Company
— Underlying net profit* — ARG F* 1,947.2 1,211.5 +61%
— Reported net profit — BRmE AL A 4,346.6 1,265.4 +243%
Earnings per share FRER
- Based on underlying net profit* —AEREREHE HK64.9 centsi& Al HK40.4 centsi {1l +61%
— Based on reported net profit —BREAREE HK144.9 centsi# Al HK42.2 cents/& +243%
Full-year dividend per share BREERE HK112.0 centsi& Al HK17.7 cents/&lll +533%
— Interim dividend per share —ERTERE HK13.5 centsi& 1l HKB.4 cents# L +111%
- Proposed final dividend per share  — @B ERKRHIEE HK18.5 centsi#l HK11.3 centsi{ll +64%
— Special interim dividend per share  — S4B AR & HK50.0 centsi#1l - NATER
- F;ffg;;‘i specialfinal AMAeNd s misplk S HK30.0 centssEill _ NATER
Net asset value per share BREERE HK$4.807% T HK$4.39/8 7T +9%
Net cash 1,750.5 Net gearing 15%
FR£1,750.5 FEELE15%

TEIE
ZERF BEVEATEEHZEELE—TEET 18
—BfBARZEE -t — BT A= T&E&T
EREHERA BT A —+&8rx -
FY2015: Gain on fair value changes of investment properties of HK$68.4 million and —E-RF  REMEATEEZEB W AT N\BEN+EBTR
impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale investments of HK$14.5 A EREERZRESBE—THER 88
million. JC °©

*Excluding:

FY2016: Gain on fair value changes of investment properties of HK$7.1 million, gain
on disposal of a subsidiary of HK$2,121.2 million and income from relocation
compensation of HK$271.1 million.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Revenue
R
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BEER
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Underlying Net Profit*
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am delighted to report to our
shareholders that Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) delivered outstanding results for the financial
year ended 31 December 2016. Benefitting from the upgrades in automobile
electronics, smart home appliances and the wide application of light-emitting-
diode (“LED”) products, overall demand for laminates was robust during the
year. Prices of glass fabric and other upstream materials rose substantially
due to tight supply, thereby driving laminates selling prices to increase further.
As a world-leading laminates manufacturer, the Group has made multi-
year investments in expanding upstream capacity, resulting in a strong and
comprehensive vertically integrated supply chain. Thus, while the Group’s
competition was cutting back on production due to shortages of upstream
material, the Group was able to expand its product sales on the back of
its vertical advantage. As a result, the Group was able to achieve a major
breakthrough in both selling price and shipment volume.

Turnover Breakdown by Products & £ 28 % #fh

E O

AANERRESFE  MARBLBRAM - 2
R RERARAR(TAR ) REHEAR
(T&EDRBE-_FT—R"F+_A=1t—H1t
MRFERSBAEE - FR XRERNTEE
FHH  REDCARZE X —HE(TLED])
EmEAEL  BRERTSBEEHERRD -
R - ARNEKEA S LR RS R R4
BRABEA  HPHEREREEE P
Tt REERERBRERZERLER %
FRYBAMRBRER L EERE  HET
ERBRANEREREEHEERE - £T5
BREREFRRD DR MEREE R &
BIRREEEERAZEY 2 HHEDHERER
ZEEMBE - BHit SEEREENEEY
HUSHAE RN -

FY2016
—E-AEUBFE

FY2015
—E-HFHHFE

[ Glass Epoxy Laminates Paper Laminates Upstream Materials* Properties® [ Others'
RAWBAEEFREIR HMEIRMER i BiE® Hih'
* Upstream Materials included copper foil, epoxy resin, glass fabric and bleached kraft paper * LR e RS - IREME - RN R
BAREEA
@ Properties mainly comprised sales of properties and rental income e EHEXZeEHEEDERBSKA
# Others comprised driling services and polyvinyl butyral (“PVB”) # BB ARG B LGSR T BE(TPYB))
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
e

BUSINESS REVIEW (oninueq)

In 2016, the Group recorded a 22% increase in revenue to HK$15,531.7
million. Underlying net profit (excluding non-recurring items) rose significantly
by 61% to HK$1,947.2 million. The redevelopment project in respect of
a site in Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, originally designated for use by
the Group’s production plant, was approved by government authorities.
During the year, the subsidiary which held the project was disposed of for a
consideration of HK$2,386.2 million, driving the Group’s reported net profit to
increase significantly by 243% to HK$4,346.6 million. In view of the Group’s
healthy financial position, the Board has proposed a final dividend of HK18.5
cents per share with a special final dividend of HK30.0 cents per share,
subject to shareholders’ approval. Together with the interim dividend of
HK13.5 cents per share and special interim dividend of HK50.0 cents paid in
October 2016, this will constitute a total dividend of HK112.0 cents per share
for the full year.

PERFORMANCE

In the second half of 2016, the Group implemented multiple price increases
of laminates in line with the price changes in upstream materials and the
supply-demand dynamics of laminates market. Benefitting from the increase
in the average selling price, the Group’s gross profit was lifted to 22%
from last year’s 17%. During the year, the Group achieved an average
monthly shipment volume of 10.8 million square metres, up 12% from the
previous year. Composite epoxy material laminates (“CEM”) and glass epoxy
laminates (“FR4”) contributed an aggregate revenue of HK$8,750.5 million,
accounting for 56% of Group revenue. Paper laminates generated revenue
of HK$2,029.0 million, representing 13% of the total. Driven by the partial
booking of pre-sales from Kunshan Development Zone Kingboard Yu Garden
Phase 3 and Jiangyin Kingboard Yu Garden Phase 1, the property division
recorded revenue of HK$1,779.0 million, or 11% of total Group revenue. The
balance mainly comprised sales of upstream materials and other products.

T —RF EERFEETELA22%NE
—BRtTRB=FT—EL+E8BT  EAX4
FI(TEFEHREEMBER) KIBEMN61%E
TABEFEEZTEBT - 1o TR ER
ARV ZHE R ER A A B EE
EERFAUN—FT=ZRBNTAAE_TEBTIE
BHEFEZEENAR - REAR A AL
243%  ZE+ =BT NEANTEBST - £F
FRRAIFERE  ESeRRRERARKRE
Fh%18.57 Il &R B R B B & 1% 30.08 1L -
IR BEZAGHREZRAEBA - BRAK_-Z

—NET BIRBESRA3SEN 2 P EIRE M E
B250.08 Lz R R ERRR B, - 2 FIRBBER
EHA12.0810 -

EBRE

ZE—RF AELEFDHERSECREBERT
IRTHBEKARN - EERTEEFEZ X kﬂ%m
EIREW - SBERERFHERLGN -
EFEREFRBN17% > BAE22% ° ¢
N EEBAFHLEEEA—TENTEES
Ko BEELF12% c EFEAEMEBERE
R(TCEM]) RIRAW MMM BIRER([FR4])
BEZBANTLERATTEATESB L 55
EEEHELE A% REBEREMIRESEEL
ZHEZTFThESSEL WEEEEELER
183% «- FRHBREIURZERZERTR =K
TRBEERIEE —B oo EEWAANRER -
EfL¥EATHBEETAESS L b5
EEEBELER11% ERTEAEHDEE
HiERZHE -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
e

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group’s consolidated financial and liquidity position remained robust. As
at 31 December 2016, net current assets and current ratio of the Group were
approximately HK$8,584.2 million (31 December 2015: HK$9,878.9 million)
and 1.95 (831 December 2015: 2.95) respectively.

The net working capital cycle decreased to 80 days as at 31 December 2016
from 115 days as at 31 December 2015, on the following key metrics:

- Inventories significantly decreased by 47% and the stock turnover
days, was 22 days (31 December 2015: 48 days).

- Trade receivables, including amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, in
terms of debtor turnover days, was 88 days (31 December 2015: 106
days).

- Trade and bills payable, including amounts due to fellow subsidiaries,
in terms of creditor turnover days, was 30 days (31 December 2015:
39 days).

Net gearing as at 31 December 2015 was 15%. The Group has strong cash
flow during the year, net cash as at 31 December 2016 was HK$1,750.5
million. In 2016, the Group invested HK$152.8 million in new production
capacity and HK$1,162.0 million in its property business. Backed by a highly
experienced professional management team, a sound business foundation
and solid financial strength, management is confident that these investments
will deliver stable and satisfactory returns to shareholders over the long term.
The ratio of bank borrowings between short term and long term stood at
57%:43% (31 December 2015: 24%:76%). Meanwhile, the Group maintained
sufficient financial resources to meet its requirements for future market
developments.

The Group continued to adopt a prudent financial management policy. The
Group did not enter into any material types of derivative financial instrument,
nor did the Group have any material foreign exchange exposure during the
year. The Group’s revenue, mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, RMB
and US dollars, was fairly matched with the currency requirements of its
operating expenses.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
e

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a workforce of approximately
9,900 (31 December 2015: 10,400). In addition to offering competitive salary
packages, the Group grants share options and discretionary bonuses to
eligible employees based on the Group’s overall financial achievements and
individual employee performance.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2017, the tight supply of upstream materials is unlikely to
improve significantly due to the lengthy process involved in capacity expansion.
It is therefore expected that the undersupply of laminates will continue. The
Group’s facilities for laminates and upstream material production are currently
nearing full capacity but still unable to meet the strong market demand. Thus
there is room for upward price adjustments in those products.

In view of these market conditions, management plans to increase the
capacity of both upstream materials and laminates, as well as to expand
external sales proportion of upstream materials. This expansion programme
will boost monthly capacity of glass yarn by 36% to 12,200 tonnes, glass
fabric by 18% to 46.2 million metres, and CEM and FR4 laminates by 10% to
6.6 million sheets.

The Group’s development of PVB business has also made breakthroughs
following the successful self-development of PVB film with sound insulation
function. Looking forward, the Group will expand sales of PVB film in vehicle
glass and construction-use curtain wall markets.

Finally, as regards the property division, the Group will actively schedule the
pre-sales of residential projects in Kunshan, Jiangsu Province, in accordance
with the prevailing domestic market circumstances in Mainland China.
Continued booking of sales from property projects are expected for this year.
The Group currently has no plan to increase its land bank, but will strive to
develop and sell its existing projects in order to expedite the realisation of the
cash returns on property business.

ABER
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ER®E

APPRECIATION )

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my AANERREZTSEMBTRASABRE T
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, customers, banks, the management FiR1T  BRABNMEINBEVBRFEEY
and employees for their unreserved support to the Group in the past financial REBZEREHTFBIARDORS -

year.
Cheung Kwok Wa FE

Chairman REE

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017 BB —T—tF=-A=-+mWmH
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

EENREREEABZER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Wa, aged 53, is an executive Director and the Chairman
of the Company. He is a brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Ping, both being executive Directors and an uncle of Mr. Cheung Ka
Ho, an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined Kingboard Chemical Holdings
Limited (“KCHL”) in 1988 and has over 28 years’ experience in the marketing
of a wide range of industrial products. He is responsible for the overall
strategic planning of the Group and sets the general direction and goals for
the Group. Mr. Cheung was appointed as an executive Director in July 2006.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Keung, aged 64, is an executive Director and the
Managing Director of the Company. He is a brother of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa
and Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping, both being executive Directors, and an uncle of
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho, an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined KCHL in 1991
and has over 25 years’ experience in the laminate industry. He is responsible
for the overall implementation of the strategic plans and goals of the Group.
Mr. Cheung was appointed as an executive Director in July 20086.

Mr. CHEUNG Kwok Ping, aged 56, is an executive Director. He is a brother
of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa and Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung, and an uncle of
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho, each being an executive Director. Mr. Cheung joined
KCHL in 1988 and has over 28 years’ experience in marketing. He is
mainly responsible for the Group’s marketing operations and is also the
general manager of the paper laminate factories in Fogang and Shaoguan,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Mr. Cheung is also an
executive director of Kingboard Copper Foil Holdings Limited (“KBCF”), a
65.95%-owned subsidiary of the Company as at the end of reporting period
and whose shares are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (“SGX”). Mr. Cheung was appointed as an executive Director in May
2006.

Mr. LAM Ka Po, aged 60, is an executive Director. Mr. Lam is a co-founder
of KCHL and has over 28 years’ experience in the sales and distribution of
laminates. Mr. Lam is also the chairman and executive director of KBCF. He
was appointed as an executive Director in November 2006.

Mr. CHEUNG Ka Ho, aged 33, is an executive Director. Mr. Cheung is the
nephew of Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Ping, all being executive Directors. Mr. Cheung joined KCHL in 2004
and is involved in the laminate marketing operations for the southern region
of China and also the general manager of glass epoxy laminate factory in
Thailand. He was appointed as an executive Director in July 2006.

Mr. LIU Min, aged 48, is an executive Director. He joined KCHL in 1998. Mr.
Liu graduated from Harbin University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Chemical
Engineering. Prior to joining KCHL, he had over 7 years’ experience in the
copper foil industry. He was appointed as an executive Director in November
2006.

HITES
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
EERGREBEAEBZER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. ZHOU Pei Feng, aged 48, is an executive Director. He joined KCHL
in 1999 and is the general manager of four glass epoxy laminate facilities
in Shenzhen, Fogang, Jiangmen and Jiangyin, the PRC. Mr. Zhou holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Mechanical Engineering from the Chongaing University
and a Master’s Degree in Material Processing Engineering from Jilin Industrial
University (now known as Jilin University). He was appointed as an executive
Director in November 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LO Ka Leong, aged 43, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lo is also a
member of the audit committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Professional Accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Lo joined KCHL in May 1999 and is in charge of KCHL'’s
company secretarial work. Prior to joining KCHL, he was an accountant at
an international accounting firm. Mr. Lo was appointed as a non-executive
Director in July 2006.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LEUNG Tai Chiu, aged 70, joined as an independent non-executive
Director in November 2006. Mr. Leung is also the chairman of the audit
committee of the Company, and a member of the remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Leung graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1969. He is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. He has broad experience in accounting
and auditing matters, having worked in the auditing profession for over 30
years, 20 years of which he served as a partner. Mr. Leung retired from
PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2005. Mr. Leung was the President of Lions
Club of Victoria in 1986 and 1998 and a director of Yan Oi Tong from 1995
to 1997. He is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is also
an independent non-executive director of the companies listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”),
namely Eva Precision Industrial Holdings Limited and G-Vision International
(Holdings) Limited. He was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of KCHL on 1 October 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
EERGREBEAEBZER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DlRECTORS (continued)

Mr. IP Shu Kwan, Stephen, GBS, JP, aged 65, joined as an independent
non-executive Director in May 2011. Mr. Ip is also the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company, and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Ip graduated
from The University of Hong Kong with a degree in Social Sciences in 1973.
Mr. Ip joined the Hong Kong Government in November 1973 and was
promoted to the rank of Director of Bureau in April 1997. He worked in the
HKSAR Government as a Principal Official from July 1997 to June 2007.
Senior positions held by Mr. Ip in the past include Commissioner of Insurance,
Commissioner for Labour, Secretary for Economic Services and Secretary
for Financial Services. Mr. Ip took up the position of Secretary for Economic
Development and Labour on 1 July 2002. His portfolio in respect of economic
development covered air and sea transport, logistics development, tourism,
energy, postal services, meteorological services, competition and consumer
protection. He was also responsible for labour policies including matters
relating to employment services, labour relations and employees’ rights. Mr.
Ip retired from the HKSAR Government in July 2007. Mr. Ip received the
Gold Bauhinia Star award from the HKSAR Government in 2001, and is an
unofficial Justice of the Peace. Mr. Ip was an independent non-executive
director of Viva China Holdings Limited from June 2010 to March 2013, a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Ip was also an independent non-executive director of Goldpoly New Energy
Holdings Limited from October 2010 to March 2013, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, an independent non-executive director
of PICC Property and Casualty Company Limited from January 2011 to
October 2011, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and an independent non-executive director of Milan Station Holdings Limited
from April 2011 to March 2013, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Ip also serves as an independent non-executive director
on the boards of four companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, namely China Resources Cement Holdings Limited, Synergis
Holdings Limited, Lai Sun Development Company Limited and Luk Fook
Holdings (International) Limited.

Mr. ZHANG Lu Fu, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in January 2015. Mr. Zhang is also a member of the nomination
committee, audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhang has had the experience of working for the Chinese government
since 1987 including the Xin Hua News Agency branch in Hong Kong (Liaison
Office of the Central People’s Government in Hong Kong). Since 2000,
Mr. Zhang has worked for a number of Hong Kong listed companies and
charitable organisations on a full-time and part-time basis in the capacity
such as chief representative of Chinese affairs, Chinese affairs consultant,
chief secretary for Chinese affairs and chief executive. Mr. Zhang has been
the director-general of the Friends of Hong Kong Association since 2008. Mr.
Zhang has been appointed as the council member of the Shenzhen Overseas
Friendship Association since 2006 and a member of the 4th Shenzhen
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference since
2008; he has been serving as the council member of the China Overseas
Friendship Association since 2013 and the executive director of Guangdong
Overseas Friendship Association since 2015. Mr. Zhang holds a Master’s
degree in Philosophy from the Beijing Normal University and is a research
associate thereat. In 2011, Mr. Zhang was employed by the Hong Kong
Academy of Management and the Hong Kong Financial Services Institute
as a professor on a part-time basis. He was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Sino Biopharmaceutical Limited in April 2015, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
EERGREBEAEBZER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DlRECTORS (continued)

Mr. LAU Ping Cheung, Kaizer, aged 65, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in August 2015. Mr. Lau is also the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company, and a member of the audit committee
and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Lau is a chartered surveyor
and he was graduated from the then Hong Kong Polytechnic (now The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) and holds a Master Degree in Construction
Project Management from The University of Hong Kong. He is a past
president and current fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a past
chairman of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (Hong Kong Branch),
a past chairman of the Surveyors Registration Board, a former member of
the HKSAR Legislative Council, a former non-executive director of the Urban
Renewal Authority, a former member of the Long Term Housing Strategy
Steering Committee, a former member of the Council of The City University of
Hong Kong, a current member of the Council of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, a member of the HKSAR Economic Development Commission, a
member of the Basic Law Promotion Committee and a member of the Lantau
Development Advisory Committee. Mr. Lau has over 40 years of experience
in construction and property development in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. Mr. Lau was appointed as an independent non-executive director of
MTR Corporation Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange, in August 2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. CHANG Guo Qiang, aged 49, joined KCHL in 2002 and is the general
manager of the glass fabric factories in Qingyuan and Lianzhou, the PRC.
Mr. Chang graduated from Hunan Chang Sha University with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Textiles. Prior to joining KCHL, he had over 14 years’ experience in
the glass fabric industry.

Mr. HU Guo Liang, aged 60, joined KCHL in 2000 and is the general manager
of the glass yarn factory in Panyu Nansha, the PRC. Mr. Hu graduated from
the East China University of Science and Technology with a Bachelor’s
Degree in Material Science Engineering. Prior to joining KCHL, he had over 19
years’ experience in the glass yarn industry.

Mr. LEUNG Yu Hin, aged 33, the Company Secretary, joined the Group in
July 2014. Mr. Leung is a full member of CPA Australia. He holds a Bachelor
of Commerce (Accounting) from the Curtin University of Technology in
Australia. He is responsible for the company secretarial work and financial
management of the Group. He has over 9 years of experiences in accounting,
auditing and finance. Mr. Leung has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 December 2016 in accordance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are pleased to present their report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 can
be found in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this annual report,
which forms part of this Directors’ Report.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group is exposed to various risks and uncertainties which are specific to
the Group and/or the industries in which the Group operates. These risks may
materially affect the Group’s business operations, financial condition, results
of operations and business prospects. The Group has identified the key risks
and uncertainties as follows:

Operating at close to full capacity

The Group is operating at close to full capacity in its existing glass epoxy
laminates production plants. Accordingly, the Group’s ability to grow its
business is dependent upon it acquiring additional production capacity
through either the expansion of its existing plants or the building or acquisition
of additional plants. There can be no assurance that the Group will be able
to achieve its planned increases in production capacity in the near future or
at all. Failure to achieve this expansion in production capacity would limit the
Group’s ability to remain competitive and to maximise business opportunities
which may in turn have a material adverse effect on the financial condition,
results of operations and business prospects of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEgWE

BUSI N ESS REVI EW (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued)

Future expansion plans require additional funding and management
resources

The Group’s ability to obtain financing for its expansion plan will depend on
its financial condition, as well as on other factors that may be outside the
control of the Group, such as general market conditions and the political and
economic conditions. No assurance can be given that adequate funds will
be obtainable on acceptable terms, or at all. If capital cannot be obtained,
the Group may be forced to curtail its expansion plans, which could result in
an inability to successfully implement its business strategy and may have a
material adverse effect on the financial condition, results of operations and
business prospects of the Group.

Furthermore, the management may face challenges resulting from the
expansion plan of the Group, including but not limited to, upgrading or
expanding existing facilities and training personnel to manage and operate
those facilities. Such challenges could hinder the Group’s expansion plans
which may in turn have a material adverse effect on the financial condition,
results of operations and business prospects of the Group.

Competitive industry

The business segments in which the Group operates are highly competitive.
No assurance can be given that the Group will be able to compete
successfully against its current competitors or emerging companies in
the future. If the Group fails to compete effectively, the Group’s results of
operations, financial condition and business prospects may be materially and
adversely affected.

Recent global market fluctuations and economic conditions

The recent global market fluctuations and economic conditions have adversely
affected economies and businesses around the world. A slowdown in the
global economy, in particular, the PRC economy, could lead to a reduction in
demand for the Group’s products and may materially and adversely affect its
business operations, financial condition and results of operations.

The risks and uncertainties stated above are not meant to be exhaustive.
There may be other risks or uncertainties that are not known to the Group or
which may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEgWE

BUS' N ESS REVIEW (continued)

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to achieving environmental sustainability. The Group
endeavours to comply with the relevant laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection and adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use
of resources, waste reduction and energy saving. For instance, the in-house
manufacturing facilities of the Group operate in compliance with the relevant
environmental rules and regulations. The Group reviews its environmental
policies on a regular basis.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 and the ESG Reporting Guide contained in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s Environmental, Social and
Governance Report will be available on our website within three months from
the publication of this annual report.

Compliance with Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group and its business operations are subject to various laws, rules and
regulations. The Company seeks to ensure adherence to such laws, rules
and regulations through various measures such as internal controls, approval
procedures, staff trainings and oversight of business operations at different
levels of the Group. The Board also monitors the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations on a regular
basis.

So far as the Directors and senior management are aware, for the year
ended 31 December 2016, the Group has obtained the approvals, permits,
consents, licences and registrations required for its business and operations,
and there was no material breach of the relevant laws and regulations by our
Group that have a significant impact on the Group.

Key Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company understands the importance of maintaining a good relationship
with its employees, customers and suppliers in order to operate in a
sustainable manner and to meet its immediate and long-term goals.

The Company strongly believes that employees are its most important
and valuable assets. In order to recognise the performance of and provide
incentives for its employees, the Group reviews its policies on remuneration
and benefits for its employees regularly to ensure that they are in line with
the market standard. To maintain a close relationship with its employees, the
Group organises various activities for its staff to participate.

The Company maintains sound relationships with its customers and suppliers
which enable the Group to foster long term business benefits. The Directors
and senior management of the Company endeavours to exchange business
ideas and updates of the Group with its customers and suppliers from time to
time. To maintain its competitiveness, the Group aims to deliver high quality
of products and services to its customers.

During the year, there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its employees, customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 60.

An interim dividend of HK13.5 cents per share and special interim dividend
of HK$50.0 cents per share were paid to the shareholders of the Company
during the year. The Directors now recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK18.5 cents per share and a special final dividend HK30.0 cents
per share to the shareholders on the register of members of the Company on
7 June 2017, and the retention of the remaining profit in the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued share capital of the
Company are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries of the Company’s listed securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

RESERVES

Details of the movements during the year in the reserves of the Group are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 64 and 65.

In addition to the retained profits of the Company, the share premium
and special reserve of the Company are also available for distribution to
shareholders provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

As at 31 December 2016, the sum of the retained profits, the share premium

and the special reserve of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$8,177,837,000.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to shareholders
of the Company by reason of their holding of Company’s shares.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2016,
resulting in an increase in fair value of HK$7,101,000 which has been credited
directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has in aggregate
approximately HK$2,290 million available-for-sale investment, representing
approximately 9% of the total asset of the Company as at 31 December
2016, which consist of mostly securities listed on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and bonds issued mainly by companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. The Company acquired its available-for-sale
investments through on market purchase. The Group will from time to time
monitor the price movement of prices in securities and bonds and may adjust
its investment portfolio as and when appropriate.

The following table sets out the Group’s major available-for-sale investments
as at 31 December 2016:

Fair value as at
31 December 2016

REB—RF
Name of available-for-sale +=—B=+—H
investments AHEEREERE AFE
HK$'000
FHET
Cathay Pacific Airways Limited ~ BEIZfiZE AR AT
(listed on the stock exchange (R pT 70

REWE
AEEZREDER T AE+ZA=+—

AEHGEE - 2AFEEIMN7,101,0008T  EH
Bit AR A B Rm -

HHERSE

BE_Z—RF+ZRA=+—RILFE &2
ABA A HEEREAKL220BEET 14

RRARZBE-RFTZA=+—BHHEEED
9% TEEERBIMIRLETZESRIE
MEBRMER LT AR ETHES - AR
AEATEEARBEAHRBERE - AKE
TEEREFREFERNOES @ WERKRE

HiREHEA -

TEBBREER-_F - FtZA=1t—8x
PRAZAHHERE

Bond interest
for the year
FREHFFILS
HK$'000
FHET

Dividend income
for the year
FAKREBLA
HK$'000

THET

with stock code 293) AR 5% - 293) 140,219 - -

Bond listed on SGX by Country ~ EEREEIR AR A A

Garden Holdings Limited (PRESESZPT 7 -

(listed on the stock exchange & ARER - 2007)

with stock code 2007) REZZFT E 2 B -

with fixed coupon interest 4.75% B BFB4.75B 7 BEE

per annum and maturity date B HEHA-ZT-_=F

on 28 September 2023 HAA=+NB 915,486 - 7,849
1,055,705 - 7,849

Save as the available-for-sale investments as set out in the table above, the bR ERAEHEEEREN  HEZT—RF

aggregate fair value of other available-for-sale investments held by the Group
as at 31 December 2016 do not exceed 5% of the consolidated total assets
of the Group as at 31 December 2016.
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)

Based on the 2016 annual report of Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (stock
code: 293), it was expected that, among others, the operating environment
in 2017 to remain challenging. Strong competition from other airlines and
the adverse effect of the strength of the Hong Kong dollar are expected to
continue to put pressure on its yield. The cargo market got off to a good start,
but overcapacity was expected to persist. Its group expected to continue
to benefit in 2017 from the fact that fuel prices are much lower than their
previous high levels, but to a lesser extent than in 2016.

Based on the announcement of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 2007) (“CGH”) dated 21 September 2016, the senior notes
(“Senior Notes”) were issued by CGH in September 2016, and due in 2023.
The Senior Notes are listed on Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited and carries an interest of 4.75% per annum and interests are payable
semi-annually. The proceeds from the Senior Notes was intended to be used
for refinancing certain of CGH’s existing indebtedness and for its general
working capital purposes. According to the 2016 annual report of CGH,
as at 31 December 2016, its group’s net gearing ratio decreased by 11.3
percentage points year on year to 48.7%. The CGH group was recognised
by credit rating agencies and major financial institutions for its sound financial
position which was backed by sufficient working capital.

For further information of the business and financial performance of the above
companies, please refer to the reports and announcement referred in the
above paragraphs for details. Please also refer to the respective publications
of the above companies from time to time for updates on prospects and
performances of the respective companies. The reports and announcement
referred above do not form part of this annual report and do not constitute
any publication issued by, or any opinion, advice or view of, the Company or
any of its directors.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Expenditure of HK$152,780,000 was incurred during the year primarily to
expand the production capacity of the Group. Details of all the changes in
properties, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are
set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling
approximately HK$2,593,000.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping

Mr. Lam Ka Po

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho

Mr. Liu Min

Mr. Zhou Pei Feng

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Lo Ka Leong

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Leung Tai Chiu

Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen

Mr. Zhang Lu Fu

Mr. Lau Ping Cheung, Kaizer

In accordance with Article 130 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung Ka Ho and Mr. Liu Min being executive
Directors and Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, being independent non-executive Directors,
will retire from directorship by rotation and will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Biographical details of the above Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies” on page 11 to 14.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company has a service contract which is not terminable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests of the Directors (including the
Managing Director of the Company) and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQO”)), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long position
(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company (“Shares”)

Name of Director Capacity
EEpE ERME
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa' Beneficial owner/interest of spouse
SRENEE SR A EnlA AN TR
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner
RRFEFE BEnAEA
Mr. Liu Min Interest of spouse
21 BB
Mr. Leung Tai Chiu Beneficial owner
REEHEE BEnEAA

Note:

1 75,000 shares were held by his spouse.
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(@) ALFFREEI0BTZEBRR(K
% 1)

Approximate
percentage of

the issued
share capital
Number of of the Company
issued shares N
held ERITRAE
e RITROEE ZHHE D
11,152,000 0.372
89,000 0.003
300,000 0.010
78,000 0.003
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continuedq)

Long position (continued)
(b) Share options of the Company (“Share Options”)

EECRDER

RE®)
(b) FLRELEBRE(ELBRED

Interest in underlying shares

pursuant to share options

BB R N ERAMR (s

Name of Director Capacity
EEpR EEME

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner
REIE A BEnEAA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner
SR8 S A BEnEAA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner
SREIT A BEREAA
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner
MRERE BEnEAA
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho Beneficial owner
RRFRE BEnEAA

(c) Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1 each of Kingboard
Laminates Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director Capacity

E=pA Rzt E

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner
REIEE R & BEnEBEA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung Beneficial owner
SRR & BEnEAA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner
KRBT & BEnBEA
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner
MERERLE BEnEAEA

Note:  None of the non-voting deferred shares of Kingboard Laminates Limited are
held by the Group. Such deferred shares carry no rights to receive notice
of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of Kingboard Laminates
Limited and have practically no rights to dividends or to participate in any
distribution on winding up.

12,500,000
11,500,000
10,000,000
10,000,000
10,000,000
() AL2AZERAZHEQTZERER
FRARBREAE1ELEREEEL
gy
Number of non-voting

deferred shares held

FisEREREEROEE
(note)

(B &E)

1,058,000

529,000

962,200

581,900

Rt

AEESESAERERERAERARZ
BREBELCRD - ZERERH L&
M AT B BT E IR AR A BHER I
RREBEXHERRAGENE LR
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continuedq)

Long position (continued)

(d) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of Kingboard Chemical
Holdings Limited (“KCHL”), the ultimate holding company of

the Company

Name of Director

EEHR

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa!
SRERE A

Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping?
SR B 5 A2

Mr. Lam Ka Po
MERERE

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung
SR8 S

Mr. Cheung Ka Ho
RRFHE

Mr. Liu Min3

El [ e

Notes:

Capacity
RERME

Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse
BRI iBE

Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse
ERHBE ATk

Beneficial owner

EmEB A

Beneficial owner

E=EEA

Beneficial owner

EmfiaA

Beneficial owner/Interest of spouse

EREAANTEES

EECRDER

RE®)

(d) FLAABRKERLADEBECIEEER
AR (MBI ) EREE0I0ETZ

L

Number of
ordinary issued
shares held
FrisB 1T
TERRGOEE

10,747,600
4,656,383
3,889,860
1,293,922

384,000

554,300

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital
of KCHL
HEEET
BBRITRAE
2N B

1.035

0.448

0.375

0.125

0.037

0.053

1. 74,400 KCHL'’s shares were held by his spouse. 1 74,4008 2B L TRt R EEL MBS -

2. 36,000 KCHL's shares were held by his spouse. 2 36,0008 2Bt TR R EELBHEA -
3. 321,800 KCHL'’s shares were held by his spouse. 3 321,800 % # B (L THh A BB 45
5o
(e) Share options of KCHL (e) EEtIzELBRE

Interest in underlying shares of
KCHL pursuant to share options
BEERAEE T 25t THERO R

Name of Director

EEHR

Capacity
REEME

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung
SREIGR S

Beneficial owner

ESBEAA

2,928,000

24 KINGBOARD LAMINAT]

.

GS LI



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (continuedq)

Long position (continued)

(f) Ordinary shares (“EEIC Shares”) in the share capital of Elec
& Eltek International Company Limited (“EEIC”), a fellow
subsidiary of the Company

Name of Director

EEHR

Capacity
RERME

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa Beneficial owner

REUEE S & EmBEEA
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping Beneficial owner
SREI TS A BEmnlAA
Mr. Lam Ka Po Beneficial owner
MRExE BEmnlEAA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors (including the Managing
Director of the Company) nor their respective associate, had any interests or
short position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as at 31 December 2016.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

EECRDER

REW®

(f) ARBAERAMERRAEANRZEEERR
AF(TEEIC]) REFHEER ([EEIC
B3 1)

Approximate
percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital
issued EEIC of EEIC
Shares held {5EEIC
FrisE 1T 2BTRA
EEICE 32 B a5 SRl
706,200 0.378
520,000 0.278
486,600 0.260

B TEIN  RoT—RNF+_A=1+—
B BEEX(ERARRZEFTALE)RE
FEBZBEATRAR R REETHE A
(EERBHLHEERPIEXVED) Z D -
HEEARR M RESF T EA T AIRRRER -

BERODSEZ ZZH

B EXWEEI - ARA - HERARSREME
e B /B8 2 ) Sk R 21 Y B 2 B 10 A IR AT s R 3R
B2EIEAZH  BEEFEAEBALRR
BISEMEMEAE R 2RO KE R MRS -
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company (including the
exercise price, exercisable period and vesting period) are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the share options during the year:

BrBRE

ARRZBEBRETSZFB(RETRE
TN 5 8 ) S AR & B TS R MY RE30

TREBEELBERENFAZES

Share options

that were

Outstanding granted, exercised, Outstanding
as at cancelled or lapsed as at
1.1.2016 during the year 31.12.2016
REB—RF RER R=B—RHF
—A—H B~ 176~ E8H +=A=t+—8H
e RATBE A BRE i RATE

Category 1: Directors F1E - EE
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa oREEE S A 12,500,000 - 12,500,000
Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung o[98 S A 11,500,000 - 11,500,000
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping o[BS 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Mr. Lam Ka Po MRERE 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho RRZFEE 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
54,000,000 - 54,000,000
Category 2: Employees F2¥ BB 27,000,000 - 27,000,000
Total all categories FiEERI& 81,000,000 - 81,000,000

After the reporting period on 11 January 2017, in aggregate of 60,000,000
options were exercised.

TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding companies,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in this
report and in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company, its subsidiaries, its substantial shareholder or any subsidiaries
of its substantial shareholder was a party subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year under review.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2016, the register of substantial shareholders maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than
the interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors (including the
Managing Director of the Company), the following shareholders had notified
the Company of their relevant interests in the issued share capital of the
Company.

Long position

Nature of interest

REmtE

Name of shareholder

IR EME

Hallgain Management Limited (@), () Interest of controlled
(“Hallgain”) corporations
S A
KCHL Beneficial owner
BEeT BEnEAA
(€ Interest of controlled
corporations
FIRH A
Jamplan (BVI) Limited (“Jamplan”) Beneficial owner
BEnEAA
(d) Interest of controlled
corporation
AR
Capital Research and Management Investment manager
Company REKE
Citigroup Inc. (e Investment manager
TEHHEE REKIE
L The letter “L” denotes a long position.
S) The letter “S” denotes a short position.
P) The letter “P” denotes an interest in a lending pool.

e

FERR

RIB-—RF+ZA=+—H0 BERRER
B R ERDIEIBCIRATE L T BERRERD

ATRCER - BR L SCATHY
ZERBIKIR) 2 I

TEX(BEARA
TIBREMEAR

AIRERAAB D BHITIRA Z AR -

Number of
issued shares
held

FrisE 817
RBEE

2,225,610,500(L)

95,344,000(1)

2,130,266,500(L)

1,790,000,000(L)

340,266,500(L)

177,205,851(L)

174,619,675(L)
415,366(9)
19,952,342(P)

() [LIFRERE -
) [SIFRERER -
P

Approximate
percentage of
the issued
share capital

of the Company
EARRAH
ERITREZ
BRBE DT

7419

3.18

71.01

59.67

11.34

5.91

5.82
0.01
0.67

) [PJFRAEAE TR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long position (continued)

Notes:

(@)

28

At 31 December 2016, (i) no shareholder of Hallgain was entitled to exercise, or
control the exercise of, directly or indirectly, one-third or more of the voting power
at general meetings of Hallgain, and Hallgain and its Directors are not accustomed
to act in accordance with any shareholder’s direction; and (ii) Messrs. Cheung
Kwok Wa, Cheung Kwok Ping and Lam Ka Po, all of whom are Directors, are also
Directors of Hallgain.

The interests are held by KCHL directly and indirectly. KCHL is owned as to
approximately 37.96% of the entire issued capital of KCHL by Hallgain as at 31
December 2016.

The interests are held by Jamplan directly and indirectly. Jamplan is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of KCHL. Mr. Lam Ka Po, being a Director, is also a Director of Jamplan.

The interests are indirectly held by Jamplan through its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Kingboard Investments Limited (“KIL”). Messrs. Cheung Kwok Wa and Cheung
Kwok Ping, being Directors, are also directors of KIL.

Citigroup Inc. wholly controlled (a) Citigroup Holdings Inc., a company wholly
controlled Citibank N.A., was interested in a long position of 19,952,342 Shares as
a beneficial owner; (b) Cititgroup Global Market Holdings Inc., a company wholly
controlled Citigroup Financial Products Inc.

Umbrella Asset Services Hong Kong Limited, which was interested in a long position
of 25,678,500 Shares and a short position of 6,333 Shares as a beneficial owner,
was wholly controlled by Citigroup Financial Products Inc.

Citigroup Global Markets Inc., which was interested in a long position of 51,386,000
Share as a beneficial owner, was wholly controlled by Citigroup Financial Products
Inc.

Citigroup Financial Products Inc. wholly controlled Citigroup Global Markets
International LLC and Citigroup Global Markets (International) Finance AG. Citigroup
Global Markets Limited, which was interested in a long position of 77,596,833
Shares and a short position of 409,033 Shares as a beneficial owner, was wholly
controlled by Citigroup Global Markets Europe Limited, which was 64.67% controlled
by Citigroup Financial Products Inc., 35.22% controlled by Citigroup Global Markets
International LLC and 0.11% controlled by Citigroup Global Markets (International)
Finance AG.

Citigroup Financial Products Inc. wholly controlled Citigroup Global Markets
Switzerland Holding GmbH. Citigroup Global Markets Overseas Finance Limited,
which was 51.86% controlled by Citigroup Global Markets (International) Finance
AG and 48.14% controlled by Citigroup Global Markets Switzerland Holding GmbH,
wholly controlled Citigroup Global Markets Hong Kong Holdings Limited. Citigroup
Global Markets Asia Limited, which was interested in a long position of 6,000 Shares
as a beneficial owner, was wholly controlled by Citigroup Global Markets Hong Kong
Holdings Limited.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules (the “Code”) throughout the year ended 31 December
2016, save for the deviation that the non-executive Director and independent
non-executive Directors are not appointed for specific terms pursuant to
paragraph A.4.1 of the Code. Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation, all
the Directors (including the non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the Company’s annual general meetings in compliance with the Company’s
Articles of Association. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the Code.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
Following a specific enquiry, each of the Directors has confirmed that he or
she has complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
and the code of conduct regarding director’s securities transactions adopted
by the Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent for the purposes of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s largest customer was KCHL’s subsidiaries
other than the Company and its subsidiaries (the “KCHL Group”), and the
percentage of sales attributable to the KCHL Group was 11%. The Group’s
second largest customer was Hallgain and its subsidiaries (the “Hallgain
Group”), and the percentage of sales attributable to the Hallgain Group
was 4%. The percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers combined was less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue.
During the year, the percentage of purchases attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers combined were 8% and 23%,
respectively. The percentage of purchase attributable to KCHL, one of the
Group’s five largest supplier was 5%.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

(continued)

At 31 December 2016, each of KCHL, a shareholder holding more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital and Hallgain, a controlling shareholder of
KCHL, had beneficial interests in one of the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers or
suppliers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In 2016, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing connected
transactions (which are also related party transactions) within the meaning of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

(@ 2013 KLHL/Hallgain SFA

On 5 November 2013, the Company and Hallgain entered into
a supply framework agreement (the “2013 KLHL/Hallgain SFA”)
pursuant to which the Group agreed to supply copper and laminates
to the Hallgain Group from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.
Under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain SFA, the amount of copper and
laminates to be supplied is not fixed but is to be determined and
agreed between the parties from time to time. The actual quantity,
specification and price (with reference to the prevailing market price)
of the products under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain SFA will be subject to
the individual orders placed by the Hallgain Group with the Group.

The transactions contemplated under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain SFA
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis that
Hallgain, through its interests in KCHL, is a substantial shareholder of
the Company, and hence a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain SFA for the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in the table below. Details of the 2013
KLHL/Hallgain SFA were disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 28 November 2013.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

(b)

2013 KLHL/Hallgain SFA (continued)

In anticipation of the expiry of the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain SFA by the end
of 2016, on 26 October 2016, the Company entered into a supply
framework agreement with Hallgain in relation to the supply of copper
and laminates by the Group to the Hallgain Group for a term of three
years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019. The annual caps
for the three years ending 31 December 2019 are HK$700 million,
HK$770 million and HK$847 million, respectively. Please refer to the
Company’s joint announcement dated 26 October 2016 and circular
dated 21 November 2016 for information.

2013 KLHL/Hallgain PFA

On 5 November 2013, the Company and Hallgain entered into a
purchase framework agreement (the “2013 KLHL/Hallgain PFA”)
pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase materials for
production of laminates such as drill bits and machineries from the
Hallgain Group from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. Under
the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain PFA, the amount to be purchased is not fixed
but is to be determined and agreed between the parties from time to
time. The actual quantity, specification and price (with reference to the
prevailing market price) of the products under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain
PFA will be subject to the individual orders placed by the Group with
the Hallgain Group.

The transactions contemplated under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain PFA
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis that
Hallgain, through its interests in KCHL, is a substantial shareholder of
the Company, and hence a connected person of the Company under
the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain PFA for the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in the table below. Details of the 2013
KLHL/Hallgain PFA were disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 28 November 2013.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

(c)

32

2013 KLHL/Hallgain PFA (continued)

In anticipation of the expiry of the 2013 KLHL/Hallgain PFA by
the end of 2016, on 26 October 2016, the Company entered into
a purchase framework agreement with Hallgain in relation to the
purchase of materials for production of laminates such as drill bits and
machineries from the Hallgain Group for a term of three years from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019. The annual caps for the three
years ending 31 December 2019 are HK$350 million, HK$385 million
and HK$424 million, respectively. Please refer to the Company’s joint
announcement dated 26 October 2016 for information.

2013 KLHL/KCHL MPA

On 5 November 2013, the Company and KCHL entered into a
materials purchase framework agreement (the “2013 KLHL/KCHL
MPA”) pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase chemicals
including methanol, formalin, phenol, acetone, phenol resin and
caustic soda (“Chemicals”) from the KCHL Group from 1 January
2014 to 31 December 2016. Under the 2013 KLHL/KCHL MPA, the
amount of chemicals to be purchased by the Group is not fixed but is
to be determined and agreed between the parties from time to time.
The actual quantity, specification and the price (with reference to
prevailing market price) of the chemical under the 2013 KLHL/KCHL
MPA will be subject to the individual orders placed by Group with the
KCHL Group.

The transactions contemplated under the 2013 KLHL/KCHL MPA
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis that KCHL
is the ultimate holding company of the Company and KCHL and
members of the KCHL Group are accordingly connected persons of
the Company under the Listing Rules.

The annual cap and the actual transaction amount of the transactions
contemplated under the 2013 KLHL/KCHL MPA for the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in the table below. Details of the 2013
KLHL/KCHL MPA were disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 28 November 2013.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

2013 KLHL/KCHL MPA (continued)

In anticipation of the expiry of the 2013 KLHL/KCHL MPA by the
end of 2016, on 26 October 2016, the Company entered into a
materials purchase agreement with KCHL in relation to the purchase
of Chemicals by the Group from the KCHL Group for a term of three
years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2019. The annual caps
for the three years ending 31 December 2019 are HK$800 million,
HK$880 million and HK$968 million, respectively. Please refer to the
Company’s joint announcement dated 26 October 2016 and circular
dated 21 November 2016 for information.

2013 KLHL/KCHL SSFA

On 5 November 2013, the Company and KCHL entered into a supply
and service framework agreement (the “2013 KLHL/KCHL SSFA”)
pursuant to which the Group agreed to supply laminates and related
upstream materials and to provide drilling services to the KCHL Group
from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. Under the 2013 KLHL/
KCHL SSFA, the amount of laminates and related upstream materials
to be sold and the drilling services to be provided by the Group are
not fixed but are to be determined and agreed between the parties
from time to time. The actual quantity, specification and price (with
reference to the prevailing market price) of laminates and related
upstream materials and the drilling services to be provided under the
2013 KLHL/KCHL SSFA will be subject to the individual orders placed
by the KCHL Group with the Group.

The transactions contemplated under the 2013 KLHL/KCHL SSFA
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules on the basis that KCHL
is the ultimate holding company of the Company and KCHL and
members of the KCHL Group are accordingly connected persons of
the Company under the Listing Rules. The annual cap and the actual
transaction amount of the transactions contemplated under the 2013
KLHL/KCHL SSFA for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set
out in the table below. Details of the 2013 KLHL/KCHL SSFA were
disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2013.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(d)

34

2013 KLHL/KCHL SSFA (continued)

In anticipation of the expiry of the 2013 KLHL/KCHL SSFA by the end
of 2016, on 26 October 2016, the Company entered into a supply
and service framework agreement with KCHL in relation to the supply
of laminates and related upstream materials and provision of drilling
services to the KCHL Group for a term of three years from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2019. The annual caps for the three years
ending 31 December 2019 are HK$1,900 million, HK$2,090 million
and HK$2,299 million, respectively. Please refer to the Company’s
joint announcement dated 26 October 2016 and circular dated 21
November 2016 for information.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group, on normal commercial terms and
in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interest of the
Company and shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing the auditor’s
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2016 disclosed by the
Group on page 164 of this annual report in accordance with Listing
Rule 14A.56. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange. The auditor has confirmed that
nothing has come to its attention that causes it to believe that the
continuing connected transactions entered into by the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016:

(@) have not been approved by the Board;

(b) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group;

() were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

(d) have exceeded the cap.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continueq)
(d) 2013 KLHL/KCHL SSFA (continued)
The annual caps and actual transaction amounts of the continuing

connected transactions disclosed above for the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out in the table below.

The Group sold laminates and related
upstream materials and provide

BERX S @)

d Z=ZEBE-—=FgFEEEBER B3
THERREELGSE @)
TR X BRBE2RE-E—AF
+ oA+ B EENSERER S
CEEIRRERRSEE -

Amounts Annual caps

=5 FEER

HK$’000
TAT

HK$’000
FTExT

RERERB S RARFHER
R TR EHE

drilling services to the KCHL Group R E AR AR Lkt

under the Supply and Service AR B FLARTS

Framework Agreement 1,744,263 2,400,000
The Group purchased chemicals from AEBIREMEEEHE

the KCHL Group under the MEEE TEERE

Materials Purchase Agreement L TES 546,591 1,728,000
The Group sold laminates and copper AEEIREHEELEGZ

to the Hallgain Group under the Supply MHallgain & @ $4 &

Framework Agreement E iR & i 562,759 1,452,000
The Group purchased drill bits and AEEREEEELGZ

machineries from the Hallgain Group MHallgainSs B £ A% 108

under the Purchase Framework Agreement T 222,368 705,000

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of transactions during the year ended 31
December 2016.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee having regard to the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility
and the time devoted to the business of the Group.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to

Directors and eligible employees. Details of the Scheme is set out in note 30
to the consolidated financial statements.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY (continued)

The remuneration paid to the senior management (excluding the directors)
during the year ended 31 December 2016 were within the following bands:

7 B BUR ()

BE-T-AF+-AS+-AIFE A
SRERRE(TEREESE) ZHHN T IUTEH
:

Number of senior
management

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000

Z%1,000,000/ 7T

EREERAY

1,000,001 7 E2,000,000/8 7T -

HK$2,000,001 or above 2,000,001 7Tk A 2
Total: o=t 3

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Existing Share Option
Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the Company and the
shareholders of KCHL on 18 May 2007 and 25 June 2007 respectively. The
Existing Share Option Scheme has taken effect after obtaining the approval
from the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange on 6 July 2007. The
purpose of the Existing Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or
reward to the eligible participants of the Existing Share Option Scheme for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of the
Group.

No share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or had lapsed under
the Existing Share Option Scheme during the year under review. After the
reporting period on 11 January 2017, in aggregate 60,000,000 share options
were exercised. As at 31 December 2016, an aggregate of 81,000,000 share
options in the shares of the Company were outstanding.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association although there are no restrictions against such rights under
company laws in the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 December 2016.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the articles of association of the Company, every Director,
auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him as a Director, auditor or other officer of the Company in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is
given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

Appropriate insurance covering for the Directors’ and senior management’s

liabilities arising out of activities of the Group has been arranged by the
Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed during
the year under review.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Please refer to note 40 to the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
event after the reporting period.

AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company will be proposed for approval by shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Cheung Kwok Wa
CHAIRMAN

24 March 2017
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERRE

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company recognises the
importance of corporate governance practice of a listed company. It is in
the interest of the stakeholders and shareholders for a listed company to
operate in a transparent manner with the adoptions of various self-regulatory
policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms and a clear definition of
accountability of directors and management.

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, save for the deviation from
paragraph A.4.1 of the Code since the non-executive Director and the
independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term.
Notwithstanding the aforesaid deviation, all the Directors (including the non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors) are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. As such,
the Company considers that steps have been taken with a view to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are in line with the principles
of the Code.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, each Director has confirmed
that he or she has complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the code of conduct regarding Director’s securities transactions
adopted by the Company throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

A. DIRECTORS

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group
and is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the management
of the business and the affairs of the Group. The Group has adopted
internal guidelines which set forth matters that require the Board’s
approval. Apart from its statutory responsibilities, the Board approves
the Group’s strategic plan, annual budget, key operational initiatives,
major investments and funding decisions. It also reviews the Group’s
financial performance, identifies principal risks of the Group’s business
and ensures implementation of appropriate systems to manage these
risks. Daily business operations and administrative functions of the
Group are delegated to the management.

The Board meets regularly and as warranted by particular
circumstances. Notices and agendas are prepared by the Company
Secretary as delegated by the Chairman of the Board and distributed
to the Board members within reasonable time before the meetings.
Relevant meeting papers are also sent to Directors well before the
meetings, informing them of the background and giving explanation
on matters to be brought before the Board. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters in the agendas for Board meetings. To
ensure the Directors make decisions objectively and in the interests of
the Company, the Company’s articles of association provide that any
Director shall abstain from voting on any resolutions in which he/she
or his/her associates is/are materially interested nor be counted in
the quorum of the meeting. Draft and final versions of the minutes
of Board meetings are sent to all Directors for their comment and
records respectively within a reasonable time after the board meeting
and are kept by the Company Secretary.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board (continued)
During the year under review, the Board had held 4 meetings and
the Directors’ attendance at Board meetings and Board committees’
meetings were as follows:

EE=
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REEFERN  EEQRTTHAE
% BENEEEQUREEEEE
SR ERsT

18 18

Audit Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee Committee

Board

Meeting

=g

85

Number of Meeting BB 4

Executive Directors HITEE

Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman) REFE(EE) 4

Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director) 3R Bla% (& F #2457 ) 4

Cheung Kwok Ping KELF 4

Lam Ka Po WRE 4

Cheung Ka Ho KRR 4

Liu Min £l 4

Zhou Pei Feng e S 4
Non-executive Director HHTEF

Lo Ka Leong BR5 4

Independent non-executive Directors BUHHTEE

Leung Tai Chiu Rt 4
Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen f 9301 4
Zhang Lu Fu REX 4
Lau Ping Cheung, Kaizer 2ImE 4

The Directors have observed the importance of directing and
supervising the Company’s affair at a more regular interval. After
consulting all Directors, Board meetings have been preliminarily
scheduled to be held at quarterly interval and no less than 4 times in
the coming year.

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in D.3.1
of the Code.

During the year under review, the Board met once to review the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.
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DIR ECTO RS (continued)

Division and responsibilities

The Board is headed by the Chairman whose role differs from that of
the Managing Director of the Company. The roles of the Chairman
and Managing Director are segregated and are not exercised by the
same individual.

The duties of the Chairman include (but not limited to) the following:

° scheduling meetings that enable the Board to perform
its duties and responsibilities and to ensure all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner without interfering the Company’s operations;

° preparing meeting agenda after consultation with the
Managing Director;

° exercising control over quality, quantity and timeliness of the
flow of information between management and the Board and
to ensure decisions are made on a fully informed basis by the
Directors; and

. assisting in ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules and
the Company’s guidelines on corporate governance.

The Managing Director is mainly responsible for the overall strategic
planning and day-to-day management of the Group.

The Board currently comprises 12 members, four of whom are
independent non-executive Directors who are expressly identified in
all corporate communications that disclose the names of Directors.
At least one of the independent non-executive Directors possesses
appropriate professional qualifications (or accounting or related
financial management expertise) as required by the Listing Rules. The
composition of the Board as of the report date is as follows:

Executive Directors

Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman)

Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director)
Cheung Kwok Ping

Lam Ka Po

Cheung Ka Ho

Liu Min

Zhou Pei Feng

Non-executive Director
Lo Ka Leong
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A. DlRECTORS (continued)

Division and responsibilities (continued)
Independent non-executive Directors
Leung Tai Chiu

Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen

Zhang Lu Fu

Lau Ping Cheung, Kaizer

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung and Mr. Cheung
Kwok Ping are brothers and are uncles of Mr. Cheung Ka Ho.

Currently, the non-executive Director and the independent non-
executive Directors were not appointed for specific terms but are
subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election. The
Board considers that although such arrangement deviates from
paragraph A.4.1 of the Code, sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no
less exacting than those in the Code.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as
required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board comprises Directors who collectively provide core
competencies, sales and marketing experience and technical
knowledge in laminates and its upstream materials, administration
and management experience in the PRC factories, financial
and accounting skill, as well as in-house advice to comply with
international laws and regulations. The current Board size of twelve
Directors with a balance of skills and experience is appropriate for
effective decision making, taking into account the nature and scope
of the operations of the Company.

%%(ﬁ)

PIRBE®)
BIEBITES
REgiHE

BEm

wREX

2=

REIESEA - REIRSE A RRE T L
RA%E  REBEERRRFELEZRA
R MoREE LA ROREFEER AR
REXLEZMR

B FMITEENBUIFMITESY
BRERELH  BEGERIATEE
RERET EFERREE U LHR
STAIEA 4B STANGRXCB FrimeE - A
RECIREE M - UHERARRI DR
EERATRITERBNTARES

AARIRIR EMRAFEIAMGHMRTE -
RSB BIFNTERZFEBIIE
%@\% °
EXeRZAEFAN - ARREMERE
BIMERNEE LR 2 Z0EES - 3H
& RIS HREER MR - PR T
B2ITH R EEER - HERE T
A RARBTREEE R 2 NEE
R-B2gREt+_2KE HATR
BENEE  ERAARBZEBEE
KRS EEE B ABE EREE
MEBEBAE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —Z —/NFF MW 41




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBHRSE

A.

42

DIR ECTO RS (continued)

Appointment, re-election and removal

The Company’s articles of association set out a formal, considered
and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors to
the Board. Any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual
vacancy or as addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-
appointment at the next following general meeting after appointment.
At every annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors, including
the Chairman, shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election by shareholders. The Directors appointed by the Board who
are subject to retirement and re-election as mentioned above shall
be taken into account in calculating the total number of Directors for
the time being but shall not be taken into account in calculating the
number of Directors who are to retire by rotation. All Directors eligible
for re-election shall have their biographical details made available
to the shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision
on their re-election. Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-
designation of Director shall be timely disclosed to the shareholders
by announcement and shall include in such announcement, the
reasons given by the Director for his resignation.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
his responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company. Every Director
is required to devote sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of
the Board and the material matters of the Company and to serve
the Board with such degree of care and due diligence given his own
expertise, qualification and professionalism.

Every newly appointed Director shall receive a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment. All
Directors shall be updated and briefed on continuing professional
development as is necessary to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the operations and the business of the Company
and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities under the
applicable laws and regulations. The Board has a procedure for
Directors, either individually or as a group, in the furtherance of their
duties, to take independent professional advice, if necessary, at
the Company’s expenses to enable and facilitate the Directors to
make well considered decisions. Appropriate insurance coverage for
Directors’ and officers’ liability has been arranged against possibility of
legal action to be taken against the Directors and the management.

Pursuant to A.6.5 of the Code, Directors should participate in
appropriate continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.
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A. DIRECTORS (continued)

Responsibilities of Directors (continued)

A briefing session was organised for the Directors for the year
under review to update the Directors on the latest Listing Rules and
statutory disclosure obligation for listed companies to disclose inside
information under Part XIVA of the SFO.

During the year under review, the Directors also participated in the
following trainings:

Name of Directors

Executive Directors: BITES :
Cheung Kwok Wa (Chairman) SRENE(£E)
Cheung Kwok Keung (Managing Director) R B ok (F FARASIE)
Cheung Kwok Ping R B

Lam Ka Po MRE

Cheung Ka Ho RE R

Liu Min 25

Zhou Pei Feng SRS
Non-executive Director: FHITES !

Lo Ka Leong #Re
Independent non-executive Directors: BYFHITES !
Leung Tai Chiu REeiE

Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen E7 )

Zhang Lu Fu REX

Lau Ping Cheung, Kaizer 2IRE

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with A.6.5 of the
Code on Directors’ training.

Supply of and access to information

The management of the Company has an obligation to furnish the
Board with complete, adequate and appropriate information in
such form and such quality in a timely manner so as to enable them
to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors. All the Directors are given separate and
independent access to the Company’s senior management.
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DI RECTO RS (continued)

Supply of and access to information (continued)

All the Directors are given separate and independent access to
the Company Secretary, whose role includes ensuring that Board
procedures are observed and followed, and that applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The Company Secretary attends all the
meetings of the Board and Board committees and is responsible for
drafting minutes and keeping minutes records which can be accessed
by any Director for inspection.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

The Board has set up a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) which comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen (Chairman), Mr. Leung
Tai Chiu, Mr. Zhang Lu Fu and Mr. Lau Ping Cheung, Kaizer, to
formulate policies and procedures for determining the remuneration
of Directors and senior management and other remuneration related
matters. The Remuneration Committee is set up with written terms of
reference which set out clearly its duties and authorities delegated by
the Board, including the following duties:

° formulate the framework or Board policy for determining
the remuneration of the Company’s Board and senior
management. The objective of such policy should ensure
that members of the senior management of the Company are
provided with appropriate incentives to encourage enhanced
performance and are, in a fair and reasonable manner,
rewarded for their individual contributions to the success of
the Company;

° recommend to the Board specific remuneration packages
including, where appropriate, allowances, bonuses, benefits
in kind, incentive payments, and share options, if any, for
each executive Director and the Managing Director and such
other members of senior management as it is designated to
consider;

o recommend targets for any performance-linked pay schemes
operated by the Company, taking into account remuneration
and employment conditions within the industry and in
comparable companies; and

o recommend to the Board the remuneration of non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
taking into account factors such as effort, time spent and
responsibilities.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continueq)

The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure

(continued)

When recommending the remuneration package for each individual
Director, the Remuneration Committee will consider his qualification
and experience, specific duties and responsibilities assigned to him
by the Board and the prevailing market packages available for similar
position. The emoluments of the Directors on a named basis for the
year under review is set out on pages 112 to 116 in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements. Review and comparison in terms
of Directors’ emoluments package and net profits of the Group are
made from time to time with comparable listed industrial companies
with similar capitalisation to the Group. Considering all such factors,
the Remuneration Committee would make recommendation on the
remuneration package for each Director after consultation with the
Chairman.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee had
convened two meetings to consider the performance, and the
remuneration policy and packages for all Directors and senior
management.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
Company’s account which gives a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company. The Company deploys appropriate and
sufficient resources to prepare unaudited half-yearly account and
audited yearly account. Senior management is required to present
and explain the financial reporting and matters that materially affect or
may have material impact on the financial performance and operations
of the Company to the Audit Committee and the Board and respond
to the queries and concerns raised by the Audit Committee and
the Board to their satisfaction. The statement of the auditor of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 53 to 59 of this annual report.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Internal controls
The Group has in place a system of internal controls, the key elements
of which are as follows:

o formal policies and procedures are in place, including the
documentation of key processes, procedures and rules
relating to the delegation of authorities. These allow the
monitoring of controls and restrict the unauthorised use of the
Group’s assets;

o experienced and suitably qualified staff take responsibility for
important business functions. Annual appraisal procedures
have been established to maintain standards of performance;

° monthly business and financial reports are prepared, providing
relevant, timely, reliable and up-to-date financial and other
information; budget variances are investigated as appropriate;
and

° an internal audit function, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee, is in place to determine whether the above
procedures are properly carried out.

The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness of the above
internal control system of the Group including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management and will conduct
such review at least once a year, so as to ensure the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets are properly safeguarded.
The Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied,
coupled with its own observations and with the assistance of the
Audit Committee, the present internal controls and risk management
processes are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s
operations and business.

In addition to the internal control system, the Board has established
an internal audit team that reports directly to the Audit Committee.
The internal audit team will independently audit various functions,
operations and systems existed in the Company according to their
weight of significance to the Company as well as the priority list
recommended by the Audit Committee. The internal audit team will
prepare an internal audit report highlighting the deficiencies and
weaknesses in existing audit functions, operations and systems for
discussion by the Audit Committee and the Board, and based on
these findings the Board will instruct senior management to take
appropriate corrective and improvement actions.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated to them by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities
of the Audit Committee include the followings:

° review with the external auditor, the audit plan;

° review with the external auditor, their evaluation of the system
of internal accounting controls;

o review the scope and results of the internal audit procedures;

o review the statement of financial position and statement of
profit or loss of the Company and the consolidated statement
of financial position and statement of profit or loss of the
Group and submit them to the Board;

° nominate persons as auditor;

. review with the internal and external auditors their findings on
their evaluation of the Company’s system of internal controls
for the purpose of assisting the Board in developing policies
that would enhance the controls and operating systems of the
Company; and

o review connected transactions and examine the adequacy
of internal controls of the Group as part of the standard
procedures.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the scope and
results of the audit and its cost effectiveness and the independence
and objectivity of the Company’s auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
The Audit Committee will review the independence of the Company’s
auditor, the resources and adequacy of the internal audit function, at
least once a year. Where the auditor also supplies non-audit services
to the Company, the Audit Committee will keep the nature and extent
of such services under review, seeking to balance between the
maintenance of objectivity and value for money. During the year under
review, the fees paid/payable to the Company’s auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s auditor to
the Group were as follows:
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Amount (HK$)
SE(Bx)

Nature of services R MHE

Audit services ZH AR
Non-audit services L ERTE

() Tax services 0] B IRTS
(i) Other services (i) H AR 75

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all the non-
audit services provided by the Company’s auditor and concluded
that in their opinion such services did not affect the independence
of the auditor. The Board has appointed an accountant to be
responsible for the accounting and financial matters of the Group
and the Audit Committee has free access to the accountant and
senior management of the Group and to any financial and relevant
information which enable them to discharge their audit committee
function effectively and efficiently. Besides internal assistance being
available, the Audit Committee may request for assistance and
advice from external auditors as and when they think necessary
at the expenses of the Company. The Audit Committee shall meet
with external auditor without the presence of executive Directors to
discuss the Group’s financial reporting and any major and financial
matters arising during the year under review at least once a year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)
In addition, the Audit Committee is authorised:

. to investigate any matter within its written terms of reference;
. to have full access to and co-operation by the management;
° to have full discretion to invite any Director or executive officer

to attend its meetings; and

. to have reasonable resources to enable it to discharge its
functions properly.

The Board will ensure that the members of the Audit Committee
are appropriately qualified to discharge their responsibilities and at
least one member has accounting and related financial management
expertise or experience. The Audit Committee comprises four
independent non-executive Directors and one non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Leung Tai Chiu (Chairman), Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen,
Mr. Zhang Lu Fu, Mr. Lau Ping Cheung, Kaizer and Mr. Lo Ka Leong.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had performed the
following works:

o review of the scope of audit work;

° review and discussion of the annual financial results and
report in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 and
interim financial results and report for the six months ended
30 June 2016 and discussion with the management of the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group;

° discussion and recommendation of the re-appointment of the
external auditors; and

. review of the internal control, financial reporting and risk
management systems of the Group.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee had convened
three meetings.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

Management function

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision. Executive Directors
normally meet on an informal basis every two weeks and participate
in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of
the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor
and ensure the management carry out the directions and strategies
set by the Board correctly and appropriately. Clear instructions are
given to the management as to the matters which should bring to the
attention and be determined by the Board on behalf of the Company.

Board committees

The Board has set up three Board committees, namely Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee,
each chaired by different independent non-executive Director, to assist
the Board in discharging functions specific to each committee. Each
Board committee has its own written terms of reference setting out
the principles, procedures and arrangements which are substantially
the same as those for the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises four members who are
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Ping Cheung,
Kaizer (Chairman), Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, Mr. Ip Shu Kwan, Stephen and
Mr. Zhang Lu Fu. According to the written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee, the major responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include:

° regularly review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board with regard
to any adjustments that are deemed necessary;

° review whether or not an independent non-executive Director
is independent for the purpose of the Listing Rules on annual
basis;

o be responsible for identifying and nominating for the approval

of the Board, candidates to fill board vacancies as and when
they arise; and

o be responsible for re-nomination having regard to the
Director’s contribution and performance, including, if
applicable, as an independent Director.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (continued)

Board committees (continued)

During the year under review and up to the date of the report, the
Nomination Committee had convened two meetings during which,
among other things, considered the Directors who should retire by
rotation pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association and Code.
The Nomination Committee had resolved that Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa,
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho and Mr. Liu Min, being executive Directors, and
Mr. Leung Tai Chiu, being an independent non-executive Director,
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. All the above-named Directors were
nominated by the Nomination Committee to stand for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. During the
meeting of the Nomination Committee, it had considered the policy for
the nomination of Directors, and the process and criteria adopted by
the Nomination Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship. It had also reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board to ensure that the Board has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of the business
of the Company.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy in accordance with
the Code. The policy aims to achieve diversity on the members of the
Board. In designing the Board’s composition, a number of aspects
would be considered, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders. All Directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders. In
annual general meeting, Chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each committee are required to attend and answer questions
from shareholders in respect of the matters that they are responsible
and accountable for. The external auditor is also required to be
present to assist the Directors in addressing any relevant queries by
shareholders. The Company has also set up a public relations website
which enables the shareholders and public to post their questions,
comments and opinions in relation to the Group to the Board.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) provide good opportunities for shareholders
to air their views and ask Directors and management questions
regarding the Company. All shareholders of the Company receive
the annual report, circulars and notices of AGM and EGM and other
corporate communications in a form chosen by each shareholder
of the Company. The notices are also published on the Company’s
website at www.kblaminates.com. Separate resolutions are required
at general meetings on each distinct issue. A shareholder is permitted
to appoint any number of proxies to attend and vote in his stead.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the Company’s
Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by sending a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary. The objects of the meeting must be
stated in the written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for putting
forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board. Contact details are as
follows:

Address: 23/F, Delta House
3 On Yiu Street
Shek Mun, Shatin, N.T.
Hong Kong
Fax: (852) 26910445/26915245
Email: enquiry@Kingboard.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Articles of Association.

An up to date version of the Articles of Association is available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. Shareholders
may refer to the Company’s Articles of Association for further details
of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the Company (www.kblaminates.com) immediately after the
relevant general meetings.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BY %A R E

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingboard
Laminates Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 60 to 173, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

FAREFTSR

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were AREASTEIEERFNEEHE - 2AaY

of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements AEG AU ERRNEIRABEENEE - &
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our LEFEAERMEFBREGEUBERRLLEA
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our ERREITREN - T ELEIEIEH
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. BEENER -

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
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Assessment of net realisable values of properties held for development (“PUD”)

THEFRBYE ([ FRBEY X)) 19 T # 5 FE

We identified the assessment of net realisable values of
PUD as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
assets and significant judgements involved in the estimating
their net realisable value and the future costs to complete
the PUD.

The Group had PUD amounted to HK$4.5 billion as at
31 December 2016 which are situated in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

As disclosed in notes 4 and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements, the net realisable values of the PUD
are determined by reference to the estimated future selling
prices. The future selling prices are estimated by reference
to the recent selling prices of similar properties in the same
project or relevant locations. In addition, the management
estimated the future costs to complete the PUD by
reference to the actual development costs incurred and the
completion status.
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Our procedures in relation to the assessment of net realisable values
of PUD include:

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the costs recognised
in PUD, on a sample basis, by obtaining the direct
confirmations from the independent qualified surveyors in
respect of the cost incurred and the completion status;

o Assessing the appropriateness of the estimated future selling
prices of the PUD, on a sample basis, by comparing them
to recent transaction prices of similar properties in the same
project or relevant locations, based on our knowledge of the
property markets of the relevant locations; and

° Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated future costs
to completion of the PUD, on a sample basis, based on the
actual development cost incurred and the completion status
of the properties of the Group with the adjustments taking
into account the current market data and the past history of
the similar projects.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BARESER

Valuation of investment properties

REYEIGE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as
a key audit matter due to the inherent level of complex
and subjective judgements and estimates required in
determining the fair values.

The Group’s investment property portfolio comprises
commercial, residential and industrial properties mainly
located in Hong Kong, the PRC and the United Kingdom,
which is stated at fair value of HK$1.2 billion, accounting
for approximately 5% of the Group’s total assets as at
31 December 2016 with a change in fair value of HK$7.1
million recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year then ended.

As further disclosed in notes 4 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements, in estimating the fair value of these
investment properties, the Group engaged a professional
independent valuer (the “Valuer”), to carry out the
valuation. The valuation committee of the Group provided
information to the Valuer and the Valuer established and
determined the appropriate valuation technique and inputs
to the valuation. The significant unobservable input of the
investment approach is unit market value of comparable
properties. Favourable comparable properties adopted
would result in a significant increase in fair value, and vice
versa.
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Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of investment
properties included:

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and objectivity of
the Valuer;
° Understanding the key assumptions applied to the valuation

based on available market data and evaluating their
reasonableness; and

° Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs and
information used by the Valuer and the valuation committee
in the valuation model, including adjustment factors for
location and other individual factors such as road frontage,
size of property and facilities, on a sample basis, in order to
assess the appropriateness, completeness and accuracy
of these inputs and compare the comparable properties
adopted with fair market unit price.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZBERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Chu, Johnny Chun Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEEmK

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BiE —Z— "G+ -_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-ARF —T—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Revenue EE 5 15,531,721 12,769,720
Cost of sales SHEM A (12,068,803) (10,599,003)
Gross profit EF 3,462,918 2,170,717
Other income, gains and losses Hadg A - WS Mg 7 298,708 176,692
Distribution costs DA (313,422) (304,542)
Administrative costs TR A (588,998) (516,207)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHBERE 2 W=
investments 6,053 62,758
Gain on fair value changes of investment &YW ¥ A FEZ T 2 WS
properties 7,101 68,370
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RRB ARz WE 31 2,121,238 -
Finance costs BhE A AN 8 (90,928) (117,3293)
Profit before taxation MR R Vi A 4,902,670 1,540,465
Income tax expense FRSTR X 9 (550,762) (269,465)
Profit for the year INEEE %A 10 4,351,908 1,271,000
Profit for the year attributable to: NS F B 558
Owners of the Company EN/NSIESZEUN 4,346,561 1,265,403
Non-controlling interests AR = 5,347 5,597
4,351,908 1,271,000
Earnings per share — Basic and diluted GRAFN —EAREE 13 HK$1.44958 71  HK$0.422/% T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEREREMEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE =T — R F+-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
ZB-XREF —ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FBT
Profit for the year REE R 4,351,908 1,271,000
Other comprehensive expenses Hfh2EZ N
Item that will not be reclassified to TEwREFTEZ B 2 HA -
profit or loss:
Translation reserve: P W RE 4
Exchange differences arising from translation RATEE2HREEmMEEZ
to presentation currency [ 7, = RE (886,870) (966,852)
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to ERBE W ET IR B
profit or loss: EH -
Investment revaluation reserve: BEBMEHE
Net changes arising from available-for-sale AMEHERE 2 SEEE
investments (16,707) (10,467)
Other comprehensive expenses for the year AREEHEMPESH(BFE)

(net of tax) (903,577) (977,319)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFE AW ELETE 3,448,331 293,681
Total comprehensive income (expenses) AEFR2EZE(ZHE)

for the year attributable to: RERIE(R R

Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEE YN 3,483,965 333,091

Non-controlling interests FEIEIR R (35,634) (39,410)

3,448,331 293,681
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PR &

At 31 December 2016 R —ZE—"F+-A=+—H

2016
—B-REF

HK$'000
TR

2015
—T—hF
HK$'000
T

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties "EMHE 14 1,235,755 1,285,285
Properties, plant and equipment ME - R NRE 15 4,117,744 4,902,992
Prepaid lease payments A ERE 16 387,967 417,719
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 17 2,290,068 779,236
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties, FEEWE - HERBRE 2
plant and equipment SRS 16,144 5,330
Other non-current assets H3pme & E 18 - 689,670
Deferred tax assets FEEFIEE E 19 2,480 3,183
Goodwill [EES 20 238 238
8,050,396 8,083,653
Current assets MENVEE
Inventories FE 21 740,719 1,388,529
Trade and other receivables and B 5 K H M FERER R
prepayments FEf A 22 3,994,993 4,214,203
Bills receivables FEWE & 22 2,721,444 1,228,962
Properties held for development Ry 23 4,503,194 5,066,199
Other current assets Hibme)EE 18 645,931 -
Prepaid lease payments A ERE 16 8,129 9,915
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries e NG ¢ 24 471,984 192,226
Taxation recoverable BEE 9,145 7,063
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRNIRS 25 4,518,270 2,840,247
17,613,809 14,947,344
Current liabilities TEARE
Trade and other payables E 5 N H M e BR R 26 2,581,122 1,699,077
Bills payables FERT 26 135,785 301,492
Deposits received from pre-sale of THEMEMKET2
residential units 4,336,411 1,668,729
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FER R RWB A RRE 24 44,907 40,452
Taxation payable FEEHIIE 359,182 277,485
Bank borrowings — amount due within one  $R17{EE ——FREIHZ
year IE 27 1,572,172 1,181,187
9,029,579 5,068,422
Net current assets MENEEFE 8,584,230 9,878,922
Total assets less current liabilities BEREBERRDEE 16,634,626 17,962,575
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e E
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Non-current liabilities ERBBE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEEE 19 91,896 94,952
Bank borrowings — amount due after one  $R{TEE — —FEE|H >
year FeE] 27 1,195,598 3,714,462
1,287,494 3,809,414
15,347,132 14,153,161
Capital and reserves IS 2 G
Share capital R A 28 300,000 300,000
Reserves & 14,107,373 12,867,408
Equity attributable to owners of RARFE AEIERER
the Company 14,407,373 13,167,408
Non-controlling interests PR RS 939,759 985,753
Total equity B 15,347,132 14,153,161

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 173 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2017
and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheung Kwok Wa
RENEE
DIRECTOR
o

EEGN Tt F-A-THORBHERK
HETIEFEOE173AZFAMB®RE - LHT
JIEERERHE

Cheung Kwok Keung
RE R
DIRECTOR
BF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERRgEHR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE —ZE— X NF+_-_A=+—HILFE

Atibutable to owners of the Company

ADAREARLRE

Property  Investment Share Non-
Share Share  Translation  revaluation  revaluation options Special Statutory Goodwill Retained controlling
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests

B& &%
Bx  BfEE  EXER f g BREER  RRRR  ERG ; M FEREE
HK$000  H 0 HK$ 000 )
ThT

Balance at 1 January 2015 WoE-RE-A-AzER 300,000 1,097,104 1,753,076 7,268 12,296 93,105 757,689 68,956 2023 9208458 13299975 1,093,685 14,393,660
Profit for the year REREF - - - - - - - - - 1,265,403 1,265,403 5507 1,271,000
Exchange differences arsing from trendafion ~ Ef EZ2BEM AL
o presentation curency Efz® - - (921,845) - - - - - - - (921,845) (007 (966852)
Net changes arising from avallable-for-sdle ~ FHHERE 22558
nvestments note o) (Hiitd) - - - - (10,467) - - - - - (10.467) - (10.467)
Total comprehensive (expenses ncome ~ AEERE () fkLE
forthe year - ) - oden - - - S48 BN (40 293681
Acquistion of addltonal inerests in WEHBAT EMER
subsidiaries (note ) (HizEc) - - - - - - - - 26342 - 26,342 168,622) (42,180)
Final civicend paid for the year ended BREE-Z-METZA
31 December 2014 ZT-BEEEZRERE - - - - - - - - - (0000 (300,000 - (B00)
Interim dividend paid for the year ended EREZ-F-151+2R
31 Decernoer 2016 St-AIEEEz R - - - - - - - - - (19200 (192000 - (%2000
Tranfer o resene BRTHE - - - - - - - 32,59 - (32.5%9) - - -
- - - - - - - 3259 26342 (624,593) (465,658) 168,622) (534,180)
Balance at 31 December 2015 KZF-RF+2A
—t-AzER 300,000 1,097,104 831,231 7,268 1,829 93,105 757,689 101,549 28,365 0949268 13,167,408 985,753 14,153,161
Balance at 1 January 2016 RIET-RE-R-HzER 00000 1097104 831,23 7,268 1829 93,105 757689 101,549 2365 9049268 13167408 985753 14,153,161
Proft forthe year KEEET ° = o o S - - - - ANe%61 4346560 SHT 4351908
Exchange differences arsing from trenslafon ~ EF B 2 BEH AL
o resentafon curency Efzg = - (B8 - - - - - - - B9 (o) (eB6610)
Net changes arising from avalable-for-sale ~ EHERE 7 88TE
nvestments nofe o) (M) - - = = (16,707) = = o i - (16,707) - (16,707)
Total comprehensive (expenses) income REERE (R hiieg
forthe year - - (B458%9) - (16,707) - - - - 46561 3483965 (35634 348,331
Dividends paid to non-controling interests BRI FHARERZRE ° = o - - - - - - - - (10,360) (10,360
Finel dividend paid for the year ended EfEE-Z-R%12A
31 December 2015 SH-BEEZRERE - = = = = = = = - (6300000 (339,000) - (0000
Interim dividend paid for the year ended EREZE-T-AF+2R
31 December 2016 Zt-BLERZMERE = = = = = o © S - (405000 (405,000) - (405000
Special interim cividend paic forthe year ended £ 2 -F-A5+2A
31 December 2016 ST-BIEFEZ
BEERE - - - - - - - = - (1,500,000 (1,500,000 = (1,500,000
Reserve released upon disposal of HE-BHEANRREZ
asubsidiary F - - 1,569 ° ° - - - - (1,569) - - -
Transfer to resenve HRTHE - - - - - - - 53,525 o (63,525) - - o
= o 1,569 o o o = 53,525 - (229004 (22440000 (10360)  (2254360)
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZE-AE+2A
“t-BrE4 300,000 1,007,104 (13,089) 7,268 (14,878) 93,105 757,689 155,074 28365 11,996,735 14407313 939,759 15,347,132
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

Notes:

Statutory reserve comprises statutory fund, which is non-distributable, represents
capitalisation of retained profits of certain subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) for capital re-investment in these subsidiaries and
funds shall be used to (i) make up prior year losses or (ii) expand production
operations.

Goodwill reserve represents the effect of changes in ownership in certain subsidiaries
when there is no change in control.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group acquired additional interests in
non-wholly owned subsidiaries from non-controlling shareholders. As a result of the
acquisition, the difference of HK$26,342,000 (2016: nil) between the consideration
paid of HK$42,180,000 (2016: nil) and the amount of non-controlling interests
acquired of HK$68,522,000 (2016: nil) was directly recognised in equity.

Net changes arising from available-for-sale investments consist of adjustments for
loss on fair value change amounting to HK$10,654,000 (2015: gain on fair value
changes amounting to HK$37,837,000) and gain on disposal of HK$6,053,000
(2015: HK$62,758,000). During the year ended 31 December 2015, impairment
loss on available-for-sale investments amounting to HK$14,454,000 (2016: nil) was
recognised and reclassified from the investment revaluation reserve.

TR DIRZEERERIEEES - 58 TRF
FARLMBE ([ E DRIZAMTE R B RE
MERNEBREABRE  B2ERARNUTA
B ()R A SRR IR ) B R EEE o

W R RRE 2 BR TETHEAT
RS2 e -

REBEZE-_Z—AF+_A=+—BLFER "
NEBASEZERBRRIEIEZEH B LB 25
INERS o Bz B E £ 1 B 5 R & 42,180,000
BIT(ZE—AF E)HEDREFTEREES
%168,522,000/8 L (=T —XNF : B) 2 £
26,342,000 (=T — /< F : &) EENER
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ:\ °©

AEEEREZ S FEAEQAFEZHER
2 ##10,654,0008 T (ZF—AHF : RFE
B8 7 W 2537,837,00058 7T ) A K2 H & BT 8 U
76,053,000 7L (ZF — A F : 62,758,000/
L) cBEZZT—RAF+-_A=T—HLFE "
A4 E 38 B R E BT 18 14,454,000 T (=&
—"F BEEAREREASHREEETSE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE =T — R F+-A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
ZB—RF —ZT—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Profit before taxation R AL A 4,902,670 1,540,465
Adjustments for: FATIEB EL A%
Depreciation of properties, ME - BEREEZITE
plant and equipment 628,006 733,718
Release of prepaid lease payments TEfTAE E IR O 8,425 9,224
Interest expenses F BRI 90,928 117,323
Interest income FEHA (47,737) (91,628)
(Reversal of) impairment loss recognised on trade (21 5L & 5 fE W R FIER 2
receivables BEEE (2,408) 13,241
Impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale  FtA] it HEREHER Y
investments BEEE = 14,454
(Reversal of) write-down of inventories (BE)MHFE (2,148) 14,597
Loss on disposal and write off of properties, HE MY E - BE K
plant and equipment i 2 EsiE 31,133 12,284
Gain on fair value changes of investment WEYENTFEES
properties Yzs (7,101) (68,370)
Gains on disposal of available-for-sale investments &R HERE >
Wz (6,053) (62,758)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RB AR 2 KEE (2,121,238) -
Dividend income from available-for-sale A ERE 2 IR B U A
investments (15,317) (102,168)
Fair value changes of foreign exchange forward INERHEIA D2 AT EEE)
contracts = 453

Operating cash flows before movements in working R&t&EE & ZE1 2

capital KERERE 3,459,160 2,130,835
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERA(EM) 584,389 (28,7993)
Decrease in trade and other receivables B 5 REMEWERR

and prepayments TERRER S 58,597 165,831
Increase in bills receivables FEURZ 538 1 (1,512,933) (310,654)
Increase in amounts due from fellow subsidiaries  FEU[E Z KB A 7 3EE A1 (279,758) (92,969)
Decrease (increase) in properties held for FEEDER D ()

development 166,730 (1,587,647)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables 5 R HAMAEARIFEMORD) 1,121,685 (22,944)
Decrease in bills payables ENEERL (162,875) (21,951)
Increase in deposits received from pre-sale of TEEMET 2 FT 8N

residential units 2,901,102 728,328
Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FERHR 2B A TR IEIE A0 4,455 336
Decrease in derivative financial instruments PTESmT AR - (7,232)
Cash generated from operations IR TR SN S 6,340,552 953,140
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEBFEH (5,051) (46,657)
Other Income Tax paid EAEMATSH (449,869) (237,952
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) paid B B+ s E i

([ HIBEF ) (29,719) (25,023)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEBMBRESTFEHE 5,855,913 643,508

|
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

e $ O vEEm

HBEEERER
2016 2015
—RF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEWK
Proceeds from disposal of HEREHHEIRE SR
available-for-sale investments 412,082 1,418,544
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—FNBARMERE 2,133,849 -
Net refund of capital from an available- Al HEREREERNFE
for-sale investment - 149,368
Interest received BUF B 38,212 109,575
Dividend income received SALGLESNI PN 15,317 102,168
Proceeds from disposal of properties, HEYE - BELRESHIE
plant and equipment 4,322 38,497
Purchase of available-for-sale investments B & Al {t H &£ 1% & (1,933,568) (720,665)
Purchase of properties, plant and BEYX  BEREE
equipment (142,942) (440,646)
Deposits paid for acquisition of properties, WY - WE RRERN 2514
plant and equipment (16,144) (5,330)
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BEEMASERE = (5,308)
NET CASH FROM INVESTING REXBFABRETHE
ACTIVITIES 511,128 646,203
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEED
New bank borrowings raised FGIRITEE 165,787 5,063,051
Repayment of bank borrowings BRETEE (2,293,666) (5,192,562)
Dividends paid on ordinary shares BT EmRR (2,244,000) (492,000)
Interest paid ERTFLE (95,954) (114,997)
Consideration paid for acquisitions of UG BEF B N R RRIMERS AT 2
additional interests in subsidiaries B - (50,739)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests B 1< JE1 ik k2 > i 2, (10,360) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING RETEMARSFH
ACTIVITIES (4,478,193) (787,247)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND REeRRESEEEBEREMFHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,888,848 502,464
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT Sz HR&¢RREZEER
THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,840,247 2,447,596
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EREEHTE
RATE CHANGES (210,825) (109,813)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZESRRSEHEER -
THE END OF THE YEAR, ERITHBRRES
REPRESENTING BANK BALANCES
AND CASH 4,518,270 2,840,247
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BEZ = ZT— R "F+-A=+—HILFE

1.

68

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated and registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate parent company
is Jamplan (BVI) Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and in the opinion of the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”), its ultimate holding company is Kingboard
Chemical Holdings Limited (“KCHL"), an exempted limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with its shares listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” of the annual
report.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39.

The functional currency of the Group is Renminbi (‘RMB”) while the
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which the management of the Company considered is more
relevant for the users of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERARMEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective

for the current year

The Group has applied for the first time in current year the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations

Amendments to Hong Kong Disclosure initiative

Accounting Standard

(“HKAS”) 1
Amendments to HKAS 16 and Clarification of acceptable methods
HKAS 38 of depreciation and amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer plants
HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment entities: Applying
the consolidation exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRS

2012-2014 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERARMEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial instrument?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers and the related
amendments?

HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 cycle®

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and measurement
of share-based payment
transactions?

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial

Investments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or contribution of assets

HKAS 28 between an investor and its
associate or joint venture*
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure initiative!
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of deferred tax assets

for unrealised losses!

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

4 Effective for annual periods on or after a date to be
determined.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERARMEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under HKFRS
9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.

o In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERARMEE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“ H KF RSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 December 2016, application of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have a material impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets. The Group’s available-
for-sale investments, including those currently stated at cost less
impairment, will either be measured at fair value through profit or
loss or be designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (subject to fulfillment of the designation criteria). In addition,
the expected credit loss model may result in early provision of credit
losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s financial

assets measured at amortised cost.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 Construction contracts and the related interpretations when it

becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:

Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4:  Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERARMEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“ H KF RSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing and
amounts of revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by
lessees, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

2.

74

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease payments are
presented as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal
and an interest portion which will be presented as financing and
operating cash flows respectively.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset and
a related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a
lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item at
which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$2,598,000 as disclosed in note 35. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the
application of new requirements may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect
until the directors complete a detailed review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERARMEE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. Specially, the amendments require the
following changes in liabilities arising from financing activities to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes arising
from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other businesses;
(iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair
values; and (v) other changes.

The amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017 with earlier application permitted. The
application of the amendments will result in additional disclosures on
the Group’s financing activities, specifically reconciliation between
the opening and closing balances in the consolidated statement of
financial position for liabilities arising from financing activities will be
provided on application.

The Directors anticipate that the application of amendments to HKAS
7 in the future may result in more disclosures, however, the Directors
do not anticipate that the application of HKAS 7 will have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Except as describe above, the Directors do not anticipate that the
application of other news and amendments to HKFRSs will have a
material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 “Share-based payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

78

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between of the members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group’s relevant components of equity including reserves and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-
attribution of the relevant equity component and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based arrangements
of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale
and discontinued operations” are measured in accordance
with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired as
at acquisition date and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of the business (see accounting

policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash generating unit (“CGU”) (or groups of CGU)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purpose and not larger than an operating

segment.

A CGU (or group of CGU) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU (or group of CGU)
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of CGU).
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of goodwiill
is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on

disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,

rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the

Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are

delivered and title has passed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Specifically, revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course
of business is recognised when the respective properties have been
completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and instalments
received from purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under current liabilities as ‘deposits received from
pre-sale of residential units’.

Service income for drilling services is recognised when services are
provided.

Revenue from hotel accommodation are recognised upon the
provisions of the accommodation services. Revenue from food and
beverage sales and other ancillary services are recognised upon the
provision of goods and services.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established,
provided that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties
are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the year in which the property is
derecognised.

Properties held for development
Properties held for development for sale in the future are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs relating to the development of properties, comprising prepaid
lease payments for land and development costs, are included in
properties held for development until such time when they are
completed.

The Group transfers properties held for development for sale to
investment properties when there is a change of intention to hold the
properties to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than
for sale in the ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by the
commencement of an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value at the date of transfer and its previous carrying
amount of the properties is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group transfers properties held for development for sale to
properties, plant and equipment when there is a change of intention
to hold the properties for the Group’s own use rather than for sale in
the ordinary course of business. Its previous carrying amount of the
properties becomes the deemed cost upon transfers to properties,
plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purpose (other than properties, plant and equipment under
construction as described below) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties, plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of properties, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other
than properties, plant and equipment under construction) less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of properties, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of properties, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Licenced properties, plant and equipment

Licenced properties, plant and equipment (included in properties,
plant and equipment) held to earn licence fee income are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised as to write off the cost of items of licenced
properties, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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3.

84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are determined on the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary
to make the sale.

Licenced inventories

Licenced inventories shown as either other non-current assets or
other current assets in the consolidated statement of financial position
are stated at cost less impairment, if any.

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill (see

the accounting policy in respect of goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment losses on assets other than goodwill (see

the accounting policy in respect of goodwill) (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to

the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases and licence fee income are
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease
and licence agreement. Other than investment properties measured
under fair value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits

from the leased asset are consumed.
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86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an
operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each
element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease
term on a straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
properties, plant and equipment.

The Group transfers prepaid lease payments to properties held
for development when there is a change of intention to hold the
properties for the Group’s redevelopment rather than owner
occupation. The previous carrying amount of the prepaid lease
payments becomes the cost of properties held for development upon
the date of transfer.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise, except for exchange differences
on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified
from equity to profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the

Group’s interests.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) using
exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as

appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified

to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sales, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the

assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits
are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date. Any changes in the
liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of
an asset.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
of the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of

goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed
to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
financial asset. The net gain or loss for available-for-sale investments
excludes any dividend income or interest income earned.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables, bills receivables, amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries, and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interests
would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as loans and receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale and are traded in an active market are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss. Dividend on available-for-sale investments equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investment revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss

on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are measured
at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment

of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been

affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or the disappearance
of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in
addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period
and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses were recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be
reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive

income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition

of impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bills
payables, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest expenses is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in

accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and are subsequently measured at the

higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities

and Contingent Assets”; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the

revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

3.

96

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of financial liabilities
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to the Directors and employees of the Group
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss, such that the cumulative expense
reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the Directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumption are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying entity’s accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in the process
of applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties (notes 19 and 14)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that certain of the Group’s
investment properties located in the PRC with carrying amount
of approximately HK$287,875,000 at 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$217,455,000) are held under a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
the Directors have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of such investment properties are recovered entirely through
sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised deferred
taxes on LAT in respect of changes in fair value of such investment
properties but has recognised deferred tax on Enterprise Income Tax
on the assumption that these investment properties will be recovered
through use.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

U NCERTAI NTY continued)

Critical judgements in applying entity’s accounting

policies (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties (notes 19 and 14)

(continued)

The investment properties located in Hong Kong and United Kingdom
of carrying amount of HK$337,580,000 and HK$610,300,000
at 31 December 2016 respectively (2015: located in Hong Kong
and United Kingdom of carrying amount of HK$337,580,000 and
HK$730,250,000 respectively) are not held under a business model
whose objective is to recover the economic benefits of the investment
properties entirely through use. No deferred tax is recognised in
respect of the fair value change in such investment properties as the
Group is not subject to any income taxes on disposal of investment
properties in Hong Kong and United Kingdom, assuming that the

Group is considered as a non-resident in United Kingdom.

Legal claim (note 36(b))

The Group is involved in legal proceeding as disclosed in note
36(b) to the consolidated financial statements. Management has
evaluated and assessed the claims made against the Group based
on legal advice from the Company’s lawyer and is of the view that the
judgment handed down on 24 March 2017 is in favor of KBCF and
the Company. Accordingly, no provision nor accrual are made in the

consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Depreciation and impairment of properties, plant and
equipment (note 15)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives,
residual value and related depreciation charges for its properties, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of properties, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are expected to be shorter than previously
estimated, or it will write-off obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Change in these estimations may
have a material impact on the results of the Group. The management
review its properties, plant and equipment to determine if there
is any indication that the assets may have been impaired. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amounts of properties, plant
and equipment will be determined based on discounted cash flow
method of each asset or a cash-generating unit. The Directors
consider that there was no indication of impairment that require
the estimation of the recoverable amount of the properties, plant
and equipment including the licensed assets and therefore, no
impairment loss was recognised for the year ended 31 December
2016. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amounts of properties,
plant and equipment are approximately HK$4,117,744,000 (2015:
HK$4,902,992,000).

Estimated impairment of the licenced inventories (note 18)

As described in note 18, the Licencee (as defined in note 15) is
required to return the licenced inventories used, consumed or
disposed of during the licence period to the Group at the end of the
licence period, that is, 31 August 2017, either by way of cash or
identical inventories with the same value as the licenced inventories
used, consumed or disposed of. The licenced inventories used,
consumed or disposed of during the licence period is secured by
cash and bills receivables of a related party of the Licencee (the
“Securities”).

As part of management process in determining the recoverable
amount of the licensed inventories the management will estimate the
value the Securities. The management will take into consideration
the validity and existence of the Securities to determine its value. The
management of the Company is of the opinion that the recoverable
value of the Securities is not less than the licenced inventories used,
consumed or disposed of, and hence no impairment loss was
recognised.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimated impairment of trade receivables (note 22)

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition, where applicable). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss/further impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of trade receivables is approximately
HK$3,281,141,000 (2015: HK$3,503,978,000), net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$353,337,000 (2015: HK$360,065,000).

Allowances for inventories (note 21)

In determining the net realisable value of the Group’s inventories,
management estimated the recoverable amount of inventories based
on the most reliable information available at the time the estimates
are made. These estimates take into consideration the fluctuations
in price, the balance on hand relative to sales prospects and the
condition of the inventories. Reversal of write down of HK$2,148,000
(2015: provision for write down of HK$14,597,000) on inventories
was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2016. As
at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of inventories was
HK$740,719,000 (2015: HK$1,388,529,000).

Estimated net realisable value on properties held for
development (note 23)

In determining whether write down should be made to the Group’s
properties held for development, the Group takes into consideration
the current market environment and the estimated market value (i.e.
the estimated selling price less estimated costs of selling expenses)
less estimated costs to completion of the properties. Write down is
made if the estimated market value less estimated cost to completion
of the properties is less than the carrying amount. If the actual net
realisable value on properties held for development for sales is less
than expected as a result of change in market condition and/or
significant variation in the budgeted development cost, material write
down may result. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount
of properties held for development was HK$4,503,194,000 (2015:
HK$5,066,199,000).
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The Directors have a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties. At the end of each reporting period, the Directors works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish and determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 and Level
3 fair value measurements. The Group will first consider and adopt
Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived observable quoted prices
in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group
will adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. Where
there is a material change in the fair value of the assets, the causes of
the fluctuations will be reported to the Directors. Any changes in the
price per square meter in reference with recent transactions will affect
the fair value of the investment properties of the Group. Information
about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties are disclosed in note 14.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it
is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Directors will
assess the valuation of financial instruments based on quoted bid
prices of the previous trading day in the markets at the end of each
reporting period. The fair value of the Group’s bond securities listed in
the Stock Exchange and the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited (“SGX”) is determined with reference to the pricing vendor’s
estimation, who will assess its fair value taking into account primarily
the fair value quoted by the brokers and which is adjusted for the
lack of marketability of the bond securities at the end of the reporting
period. Pricing vendor will exercise their judgements based on their
experience to establish and determine the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the valuation model. Where there is a
material change in the fair value of the available-for-sale investments,
the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to the Directors. Any
changes in the marketability of the listed bonds will affect the fair value
of the investments. Notes 33(c) and 17 provides detailed information
about the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in
the determination of the fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable by the
Group from the sales of goods, provision of drilling services, sales of
properties, income from property investment and licence fee income
provided to outside customers, net of discounts, returns and sales
related taxes. Analysis of revenue for the year is as follows:
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2016

—RE

HK$’000

FET
Sales of glass epoxy laminates HERAQWIBHERIRER 8,750,489 8,172,400
Sales of paper laminates SHERERNER 2,029,000 2,020,531
Sales of upstream materials $HE e 1,776,631 1,511,595
Sales of properties HEMZ 1,661,913 -
Income from properties investment LIESCS N ON 117,127 121,149
Others Hib 1,196,561 944,045
15,531,721 12,769,720
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REVENUE (continued)

Sales of laminates include glass epoxy laminates and paper laminates
manufactured according to specifications required by customers.
Sales of upstream materials include sales of copper foil, epoxy
resin, glass fabric and bleached kraft paper. Others comprise drilling
services, which involves the drilling of holes into the laminates required
by customers and sales of specialty resin and other materials and
licence fee income. Sales of properties includes sales of residential
units. Income from property investment includes rental income from
leasing of investment properties, income from hotel accommodation
and income from food and beverage and other ancillary services of
the hotel operation.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” requires operating segments to
be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of
the Group that are regularly reviewed by Chief Operating Decision
Maker (“CODM?”) in order to allocate resources to segments and to
assess their performance. Specifically, the Group’s operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 were organised into two main
operating divisions — (i) manufacturing and sale of laminates and (ii)
properties. No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Under HKFRS 8, segment information is based on internal
management reporting information that is regularly reviewed by the
executive directors, being the CODM of the Group. The measurement
policies the Group used for segment reporting under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its HKFRS financial statements. The CODM
assess segment profit or loss using a measure of operating profit
whereby certain items are not included in arriving at the segment
results of the operating segments (gain on disposal of available-for-
sale investments, impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale
investments, gain on disposal of a subsidiary, unallocated corporate
income and expenses and finance costs).
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ﬁﬁgﬁﬂ(%)
(@ Segment revenue and results (a) DEMEXBERHEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results BEEE IR D 2 REBRLEE
by operating segments: BREESWWOT :
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—X<"E+=-H=+—H
IEFE
Laminates Properties Consolidated
ZER L/ES we
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FET FET
Segment revenue DEVE R 13,752,681 1,779,040 15,531,721
Segment results HEFFELE 2,421,646 271,858 2,693,504
Gain on disposal of HEATHEEREZ
available-for-sale investments Y& 6,053
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —RFIMEAR
e 2,121,238
Unallocated corporate income k5 Btz AFIUA 314,910
Unallocated corporate expenses kH 2 AF %t (142,107)
Finance costs REE R AR (90,928)
Profit before taxation MRFR R A 4,902,670
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-E—-HE+=-A=t+—H
IEFE
Laminates Properties Consolidated
EiER LJES &
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T BT
Segment revenue DEbE R 12,648,571 121,149 12,769,720
Segment results DEELE 1,436,891 89,677 1,526,568
Gain on disposal of HEAHBERE
available-for-sale investments  Ugz8 62,758
Impairment loss recognised on ~ LA HHEREHERZ
available-for-sale investments  Fi{E E718 (14,454)
Unallocated corporate income &7 Bt 2 A 7l A 185,158
Unallocated corporate expenses AR A& H (102,242)
Finance costs BE AN (117,323)
Profit before taxation MR F B A 1,540,465
104  KINGBOARD LAMINAT NGS LI

.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ﬁﬁgﬁ*ﬂ(%)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities b) HWBEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities BREEDMBE D o ANEEEE
by operating segments: ERa@EIRET
At 31 December 2016 R=ZB—XF+=ZHA=+—H
Laminates Properties Consolidated
Z S AR L/ES oy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET FET
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 12,339,440 6,408,978 18,748,418
Available-for-sale investments ] ft HEIFE 2,290,068
Unallocated corporate assets KO B2 AEIEE
— Deferred tax assets —RIERIBEE 2,480
— Taxation recoverable — AT EFH IR 9,145
— Bank balances and cash —IRTTHEHRNIR S 4,518,270
- Others —HAth 95,824
Consolidated total assets SEBERE 25,664,205
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities DEEE (2,534,508) (4,487,843) (7,022,351)
Unallocated corporate Koz maE
liabilities
— Bank borrowings —RITIEE (2,767,770)
— Deferred tax liabilities —EEHIEEE (91,896)
— Taxation payable — B FIE (359,182)
— Others —EAth (75,874)
Consolidated total liabilities SEBREEE (10,317,073)
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ﬁggﬁ*ﬂ(%)

(b) HWBEEREEBE®H
R-ZE—HEF+=-HA=+—H

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (continued)
At 31 December 2015

Laminates Properties Consolidated
EINER S oy
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT FBT
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 14,906,093 7,161,913 22,068,006
Available-for-sale investments A it HH &8 & 779,236
Unallocated corporate assets KO B2 AEIEE
- Deferred tax assets —EERBEE 3,183
— Taxation recoverable — AT EI IR 7,063
— Bank balances and cash —RITHEHBNIE S 62,009
- Others —HAb 111,500
Consolidated total assets REBEBE 23,030,997
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities DEPBEE (1,685,151) (1,842,699) (8,527,850)
Unallocated corporate b VAN A/NCTN =
liabilities
— Bank borrowings —RITIEE (4,895,649
— Deferred tax liabilities —EEHIEEE (94,952)
— Taxation payable — B FIE (277,485)
- Others —Hftp (81,900)
Consolidated total liabilities e AaERE (8,877,836)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and BERD R LN EBE DR

allocating resources between segments: BIR

. all assets are allocated to operating segments other . BIEERIREE - ATk
than deferred tax assets, taxation recoverable, bank EIFIE - &2 E R
balances and cash and other assets used jointly by FRZRITEHRERS
operating segments; and AR EAMEESN A

EEHUIRELE D
a7 &

. all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other . BRRITEE - BERIE
than bank borrowings, deferred tax liabilities, taxation BE - EHVBEREE
payable and other liabilities for which operating DEHLRFAEZEME
segments are jointly liable. &SN MBREHDER

o A A 3
EEEDT o
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mEMBERRME
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. /J-J\%BE*SI'(%)
(c)  Other information () HfER
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or HE=EH Bz D ZPEERT A
segment assets. eI
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z—XR"F+=-A=+—8H
IHFE
Unallocated
Laminates Properties amount  Consolidated
EER L/ APEEH &E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET THET THET
Capital additions BARIER 149,755 1,158,952 - 1,308,707
Depreciation e 612,217 15,789 - 628,006
Release of prepaid lease FERAETIERE
payments 5,272 3,153 - 8,425
Gain on fair value changes of  EMENTEEZSH 2
investment properties g - 7,101 - 7,101
Loss on disposal and written ~ HE& REEME « BE
off of properties, plant and SE P
equipment 31,133 - - 31,133
Reversal of write-down of BEMHTE
inventories 2,148 - - 2,148
Reversal of impairment loss on  #[E1E 5 FEWEE T 2
trade receivables REEE 2,408 - = 2,408
Interest income FBIA 17,124 1,582 29,031 47,737

Capital additions

Depreciation

Release of prepaid lease
payments

Gain on fair value changes of
investment properties

Loss on disposal and written
off of properties, plant and
equipment

Impairment loss on trade
receivables

Write-down of inventories

Interest income

Fair value changes of foreign
exchange forward contracts

Year ended 31 December 2015

BN
&
BREERIERD

REMENTEED
Yezs

HERBENE  BE
Rz ER

BB B A
18

e

FLEKA

SNEBBA 02 ATE
9

Laminates
EER

HK$'000
TR

515,465
712,946

6,033

12,081
13,241
14,697

7,977

453

BE-B2-AF+-A=t—H

IEE
Unallocated
Properties amount
//ES ApieHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT
1,589,814 -
20,772 -
3,191 -
68,370 -
203 -
912 82,739

Consolidated
o)
HK$'000
BT

2,105,279
733,718

9,224

68,370

12,284
13,241
14,597
91,628

453

-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

6. SEGMENT |NFORMATION (continued)

(c)  Other information (continued)
The Group operates principally in the PRC (country of
domicile).

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from
external customers by geographical location of the customers:

6.

DEPEE @)

()

HtER (@)
AEETEEBHUNTE(AE
B2 PrEss) ©

RIBINEDE P AR E] D 2 7K
SERLEBEAMAT

2016 2015

—E—RF —T—hF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FEx FAET

The PRC (country of domicile) P (AREE L Fricih) 14,697,790 12,003,744
Other foreign countries: HABBRK -

Other Asian countries H b MBI 737,914 667,469

Europe BOM 40,155 44,785

America EM 55,862 53,722

15,531,721 12,769,720

Revenue from one of the Group’s customers in laminates
segment amounted to HK$1,744,263,000 (2015:
HK$1,557,971,000), which individually accounted for over
10% of the Group’s revenue for the year.

The geographical analysis of the Group’s non-current
assets, other than deferred tax assets, other non-current
assets, available-for-sale investments and deposits paid for
acquisition of properties, plant and equipment by location of
assets is presented as follows:

REASEEBRERD BHE
FoREFPFMNEXEHEESR
1,744,263,0008 L (ZZF — R
% :1,557,971,00087T) 154
EEAFERNEETARBI0%

WRIEEFHRIBEE - HthIEREE
B i ERE U RIKEY
% BEMEEZEMHTEN
REBFERBEEREESD
2T -

2016 2015

—E—RF “E—RHF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FH&T T

PRC (country of domicile) B (NS E 2 FrfEtth) 4,655,325 5,382,721
Hong Kong & 345,614 347,512
United Kingdom HEH 610,300 730,250
Thailand Z=E 130,465 145,751
5,741,704 6,606,234
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HMEWA - Wz RkESE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hHF
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FET T
Other income, gains and losses includes: HAUA -~ W REBEE
Income from relocation compensation WBHEWA 271,079 -
Dividend income from available-for-sale A ERE 2 IR B U A
investments 15,317 102,168
Interest income from available-for-sale A HERE Z F B UA
investments 29,031 82,739
Other interest income HiF 84 A 18,706 8,889
Fair value changes of foreign exchange SNERBIE X 2 AT EEH
forward contracts - (453)
Impairment loss recognised on available-for- Gt a] it B S & R 2 FEE 1B
sale investments - (14,454)
Loss on disposal and write off of properties, & RBEEYE  BEK
plant and equipment B EE (31,133) (12,284)
Others Hitb (4,292) 10,087
298,708 176,692
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MERAK
2016 2015
—T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEERE 95,436 120,404
Less: Amounts capitalised in the construction 3 : i TI2&)E ML £ &8
in progress (4,508) (3,081)
90,928 117,323
The weighted average capitalisation rate on funds borrowed generally e BB MEFERMEREF
is 2.50% per annum (2015: 2.38% per annum). 2.50%(—ZFE—AF : HF2.38%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

9.

110

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount comprises: HEeE -

Hong Kong Profits Tax BENED

FrEBipax

2016 2015
e —F-RF
HK$'000

HK$000
TR TAT

Charge for the year REE 7 RIEZ M 7,401 17,724
Overprovision in previous years BAFEERREE (2,314) -
5,087 17,724

PRC Enterprise Income Tax B EATSHE 512,372 251,267
Taxation arising in other jurisdiction HibaAikR 2 FiE 2,398 2,800
PRC LAT Bt B E R 33,258 -
553,115 271,791

Deferred taxation RIETIR

Credit for the year (note 19) AREFERE(HFE19) (2,353) (2,326)
550,762 269,465

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has
been levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, represented by the excess of sales
proceeds of properties over prescribed direct costs. Prescribed
direct costs are defined to include costs of land, development and
construction costs, as well as certain costs relating to the property
development. According to the State Administration of Taxation’s
official circulars, LAT shall be payable provisionally upon sales of
the properties, followed by final ascertainment of the gain at the
completion of the properties development.

KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LI

MIEF EREBFEGH HIREERR
EAIA16.5% 2 FRERHE o

BRPEARKMBEEERETOE( B
EABPRD REERGD - B=FF
NE—A— Bt @RRTENER
B2 EMBERE/25% °

FHE L IR ER B ERIZERTEBA
RBMRAMERMER - L MIBRESE
(REMEHEBAMEREEBRKA)
A B TR 30% 2 60%E AEH 22 £ 15
B} - MEERKRARERLIHAA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (ontinued) 9. FIBBiRAXw
Taxation arising in other jurisdiction is calculated at the rate prevailing Hue s s BB NIREBER EER
in the relevant jurisdiction. ZAABIEETE -
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation REE 7 FHIBERG S BERB T ANERN
per the consolidated statement of profit or loss as follows: ZHERINT -
2016 2015
—EB—RE —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Profit before taxation B A1 g A 4,902,670 1,540,465
Tax charge at the domestic income tax A H TS HE % 25%
rate of 25% (2015: 25%) (note a) (ZZ—RhF : 25%)5THZ
TiIE 2 ) (ff7ta) 1,225,668 385,116
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax A AIFIFHE A~
purpose N2 22,550 3,071
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERBTIWAZ
purpose B (616,163) (43,097)
PRC LAT R IR E T 33,258 -
Tax effect of PRC LAT PR IS ER  HIERE (8,315) -
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFERERE (2,314) -
Tax effect of Tax Concession (note b) HEEZ 2 HEZE (WD) (22,873) (26,251)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised FIERR AR B HEE 11,569 8,874
Utilisation of tax losses previously not EFSCRIARTER
recognised FIEEE (8,198) (4,596)

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries BrEHATSHEIN » REMF)
operating in other jurisdiction/areas other KR ECEHEB AT

than the domestic income tax rate ZAREBE 2 8 (21,041) (8,426)
Effect of tax exempted profit (note c) ReBBan 2 (Kiske) (63,379) (45,226)
Tax expense for the year RER 2 B 550,762 269,465

Notes: BT

(@) The domestic income tax rate of 25% (2015: 25%) represents the (@) E A ERHERB%(ZE—RF
PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of which the Group’s operations are 25%) IEAREB R IBH EBFEMNFR
substantially based. EMEHE -

(b) Pursuant to the EIT Law, a High-New Technology Enterprise shall be (b) RIBDEEEE - STt Ea g
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% for three years since it was officially HEEHRULERABH=FM15%H
endorsed. Certain subsidiaries in the PRC obtained official endorsement as REH - ETPEMBAREEH R
a High-New Technology Enterprise (“Tax concession”). RE e ((HEER]) -

(©) Profits arising from certain subsidiaries of the Company in Macau are (c) RARMINRPI 2 & FHBARES
exempted from profits tax. 2 MR R AR TISEL o
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— NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M mARME

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after
charging:

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories sold

Cost of properties sold

Depreciation of properties, plant and
equipment

Net exchange loss

(Release of) write-down of inventories

Release of prepaid lease payments

Total staff costs, including directors’
emoluments (see note 11)

Direct operating expenses in relation to
investment properties

RELFENDEHRIATIER -

RNEEimA

2016
S

HK$’000
TR

ZE AN S 3,000
BEEFE KA 10,649,893
BEEWE AR 1,322,657
M BERRBETE
628,006
&R EE TR 153,458
& (BE) MR (2,148)
FENHAERIERED 8,425
BIRAMKE  BEESHE
(BMsE11) 689,931
WEME L BERGERY
24,612

2015
ZZE—hHF
HK$'000
THETT

3,000
10,404,580

733,718
40,810
14,597

9,224

678,704

22,942

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 11. 8%  THAERES
[

AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(@ Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (@
The emoluments paid or payable were as follows:

EERTRARNE
ENREMZBEOT

2016 2015

—E—XE —E—RE

HK$’000 HK$’'000

THT T

Fees e 1,102 1,004

Other emoluments: Empie -

Salaries and other benefits Fre RHEMER 13,959 14,253
Contributions to retirement benefits IRVREFIFTEI R

scheme 675 639
Performance related incentive payment T {EZ IR #&E) 718

(note i) (Ff iii) 67,864 61,621

83,600 77,517
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 11. &
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS B )

(continued)

(@ Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments (@) EBRITHARME®
(continued)
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the twelve (2015: EfNSEMNtT—Z(ZZE—F
thirteen) Directors and the Chief Executive were as follows: F T =ZR)EERITRERZ
BT :

Year ended 31 December 2016
BECR-AETZAST-HLEE
Non-
executive
Executive directors director  Independent non-executive directors

e FUGES BUFHGES

Ip Lau

Cheung  Cheung  Cheung Zhou Lo Leung Shu Ping

Kwok  Kwok  Kwok Lam  Cheung Liu Pei Ka Tai  Kwan, Zhang Cheung,
Wa  Keung Ping KaPo  KaHo Min Feng  Leong Chiu Stephen  LuFu  Kaizer Total
REE RER REY MR Rx® 0 88 BEE  Bxn  RME ¥R RRx O URE 4
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000
TEn TEn TEr TEr TEn TEn TEn  TEn  TEx TEn  TEn  TER  TER

(Noteii)  (Noteii)

(W) (Kt

Fees we - - - - - - - - 192 480 190 240 1,102
Otheremoluments;  Eftfi4 :
Seleriesand other ~— EERE(M
benefits & 2,566 2,375 2,375 2,120 1,410 922 896 1,295 - = = - 13959
Contributions to RARRT
refirement benefits  sFEI
scheme 128 13 119 106 70 45 ] 51 - - - - 675
Performance related  TERE
ncentive payment  #2EH5UE
(note i) (Fi) 18,760 14340 14340 14,340 3,000 1,700 1,384 - - - - - 67,864

Total emoluments Hess 21454 16828 16,834 16566 4480 2667 2328 1,346 192 480 190 240 83,600
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments
(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2015
EIE-RETCAZT-ALER

11

: %% - THRRKRES

cACH

(@ EBRTHAZEME(®)

Non-
executive
Executive directors director Independent non-executive directors
e FiTES 8%
Ip lau  Chan
Cheung  Cheung  Cheung Zhou lo, Leung Shu Ping Yue
Kwok ~ Kwok  Kwok Lam  Cheung Liu Pei Ka Ta Kwan, Zhang Cheung,  Kwong
Wa  Keung Png  KaPo  KaHo Min Feng Steph LuFu  Kaizer  Michael
REE RER AT i R , v FEx ARE R#t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Thr Tér TEr  Thn Thr Tér  TEn Tt TEn  Thn
(Notei)
(W)
Fess we - - - - - - - - 192 480 120 100 "2 1,004
Other emoluments: 44 -
Seleriesand ot H& R
benefits B 2082 2465 2475 2200 1430 948 919 1134 - - - - - 14283
Contibutionsto~~ R4R7E
refirement benefits  EF &I 3
scheme 124 108 114 102 66 42 4 42 - - - - - 639
Performance related  T/EZ3A
incentive payment  #I3UE
(note i) (ki) 15900 12400 12400 12400 6200 1161 1,160 - - - - - - 6162
Totalemoluments ~ Bi&425 18706 14973 14989 14702 76% 2161 2120 1176 192 480 120 100 12 77517

Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the Directors waived
any emoluments during the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERARMEE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(@

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s emoluments

(continued)
Notes:

(i) Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael resigned as independent non-
executive directors of the Company on 31 July 2015.

(ii) Mr. Lau Ping Cheung, Kaizer and Mr. Zhang Lu Fu were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 3 August 2015 and 1 January 2015, respectively.

(iii) The performance related incentive payment is determined with
reference to the operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics during both years. No other benefits
in kind is paid to the Directors.

(iv) The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the affair
of the Company and the Group. Independent non-executive
directors’” emoluments shown above were mainly for their services
as directors of the Company.

Chief Executive’s emoluments

Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung is also the Chief Executive of the
Company and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Neither the Chief Executive nor any of the Directors had
waived or agreed to wavie any emoluments during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

-+

11.

(@)

(b)

=
@Hﬁ(ﬁ)

CITRAREKRES

36

EERTHARMS ()

B EE -

0] AN EER —_T—RHFE+L
A=+—HBEARFEL
HERITES -

(i BMELERRBREED
MR-ZZF—AFENA=ZBR
—E-hFE-A-HEZRE
RARBEILIFRITES °

(iii THERREBFADLER
BFEZEEES - AAK
BRAELETSEHEE
EoMBEREEIFHEME
YA o

) ERZHTEEMEEEH
BEEEBEARNRRAEEE
FHM A o bt 2 BILIE
RITEEME T BRREE
EARARESRMNT

ITHREME
SRERAETNAAR AR ZITHA
B EXREAME BEEE
ETBREENBE -

BHEZZT-—R"ERZZT—RF
+ZA=+—RALFE - BEST
BRH N EFMESRBRET
A& -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERARMEE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

116

(©)

KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LI

Employees’ emoluments
For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, all of the
five highest paid employees are Directors.

During both years, no emoluments were received or
receivable by the Directors or the Group’s five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

As disclosed in note 38, the Group entered into purchase and
sale transactions with its ultimate holding company and its
fellow subsidiaries. The price is to be determined and agreed
between the parties from time to time with reference to the
prevailing market price. Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung
Kwok Keung, Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping, Mr. Lam Ka Po and
Mr. Cheung Ka Ho, the executive directors of the Company,
are interested in these transactions to the extent that they
have indirect beneficial interests in the fellow subsidiaries. In
addition, Mr. Cheung Kwok Wa, Mr. Cheung Kwok Keung,
Mr. Cheung Kwok Ping and Mr. Lam Ka Po have interests in
the ultimate holding company.

Save for the aforementioned transactions, no other significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts to which the
Company or the Group was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

11. EF - THEABRES
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E o ARBMITEEREESR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBERRME
12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2016 2015
—ZE—XRF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHERT FBT
Dividends paid BIRERRE
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 HE-E-—REF+=-A=+—H
December 2016 of HK13.5 cents IEFE 2P HIR S BT @R
(for the year ended 31 December 2015: 13.58(l(BE=F—0F
HK6.4 cents) per ordinary share +-A=t+—HIEE:
6.47511) 405,000 192,000
Final dividend for the year ended 31 HEZFT—AF+=ZA=+—H
December 2015 of HK11.3 cents LEFE 7 REARR B A T im Ak
(for the year ended 31 December 2014: M.3B(BE=ZT—mF
HK10.0 cents) per ordinary share T A=t+—HBIEE:
10.074L) 339,000 300,000
Special interim dividend for the year ended #HZE_-ZT—<F+_-_A=+—H
31 December 2016 of HK$50.0 cents 1\ E 2RI HR B =A%
(for the year ended 31 December 2015: LBARS0.0/8 L (B E
nil) per ordinary share —E-RF+-_A=+—H
IHFE 08F) 1,500,000 -
2,244,000 492,000
Dividend proposed BEERE
Proposed final dividend for the year ended  #HZE_—_ZT—F+-A=+—H
31 December 2016 of HK18.5 cents I FEEERBREFR
(for the year ended 31 December 2015: LT85l (HE
HK11.3 cents) per ordinary share —E-AF+_-_A=+—HIt
FE 0 11.3800) 566,100 339,000
Proposed special final dividend for the year #HZ-ZT—~F+-A=+—H
ended 31 December 2016 of HK30.0 IEFE 27 33 R R AR S
cents (for the year ended 31 December BA%E@AR30.071U
2015: nil) per ordinary share (Hz2=—Z=—1F
+TZA=+—HILFE : )8F) 918,000 -
1,484,100 339,000
The final dividend of HK18.5cents and special final dividend EEEBRRBEBE_T—R"E+A
HK30.0 cents per ordinary share amounted to HK$566,100,000 Z+—HLFERARESREBR
and HK$918,000,000 respectively in respect of the year ended 31 18.578 11l K e I AR HBA% 2.30.078 1 + 3£
December 2016 (2015: final dividend of HK11.3 cents per ordinary 566,100,000 7 7T [ 918,000,000 % 7T
share amounted to HK$339,000,000 in total and nil of special final (Z2—hF  HE=E-Z—HF+=A
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015) has been =+ —ALFERPREGREBR
proposed by the Directors and is subject to the approval by the 11.37%ll - $£339,000,00078 7T & # 7l
shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming annual general RERBEZIT) » AFARARRER
meeting. JEJERRFBERNEHAE - FAMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BRER
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the KARFEAEEBREREFIZ T
owners of the Company is based on the following data: BETE -
2016 2015
—E—NE ZZE—hHF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FH&T T4
Profit for the year attributable to owners ViN/NCIEE ¥ =N Y
of the Company FEEF 4,346,561 1,265,403

Number of shares

RAPEE
2016

=5
’000
TR

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose  tEBIREAREF|Z

of calculating basic earnings per share TR BN 3,000,000 3,000,000
The computation of diluted earnings per share did not assume the FREERENNTEYEBRITERD
exercise of the Company’s share options because the exercise price TIMELERRE  RZEELERES
of these share options was higher than the average market price for TEEaRN —_E—HER T —NEHW
shares for 2015 and 2016. TS FHRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERARMEE

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. REWHE

HK$'000
FTAT

FAIR VALUE NE

At 1 January 2015 R-E—HF—AF—H 1,268,646
Exchange adjustments b W% (51,731)
Increase in fair value NEE N 68,370
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RF+-_A=+—H 1,285,285
Exchange adjustments P& H #% (142,726)
Transfer from properties held for development (note a) & 5 & E Y% (Mt:Ta) 86,095
Increase in fair value NFEEN 7,101

At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF+_A=+—H 1,285,755

Note:

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2016, certain properties held for
development were reclassified to investment properties upon change in
use as evidenced by commencement of operating leases with independent
third parties (see note 23).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December
2016 and 2015 had been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on the respective dates by Messrs. Roma Appraisals Limited,
independent qualified valuers not connected to the Group. Messrs.
Roma Appraisals Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The valuation was determined based on direct comparison
method by reference to the market observable transactions of similar
properties and adjusted to reflect conditions and locations of subject
properties. There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in prior year.

In determining the fair value of the relevant properties, the board of
directors of the Company has set up a valuation committee, which is
headed up by the persons in charge of financial matters of the Group
to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

The Group engages an independent valuer to perform its valuations.
The valuation committee works closely with the independent valuer
to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the
model. The persons in charge of financial matters report the valuation
committee’s findings to the board of directors of the Company every
quarter to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets
and liabilities.

@ BE-F-AFt-A=t—BLF
¥ BRMSEE= AT 2R
SRR (RN ) - BTEE
BNE MENE  REDLENSR
EECUES

REBRENER _ZE-—REFR_-ZF
—hAFt+ZA=t—BZAFETRE
REBN BEE 2B A ERGEME
BRI EARAR - WEE B #ETH
B2EEEY - BFERFEBERAR
REBAEMBEEE - (HENREER
HWEOESZRUMEZ AIBETIER S
W AVEH B IA R B R 5 2R M Az
BRETE - RBEFEMAZGER

RETHBYEZLATE  ARRES
ERUMEZERS  YHAKREZHH
FHAAARE UEEQATEAEZ
EEBERME2H -

AEBMZRIBF L EERMGE - HEZE
THEBIEEMBEEEE - HRASER
WZEEBERMR2E - MBEER
BEABERARREFGERLEZE
S2EE  WABEMARBEATHEKD
Z B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14, BEWHE =

The Group’s investment properties were classified as Level 3 of the REEBKRBEMEN_Z—RE+-A8
fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016. There were no transfers Zt+—HoEAEFE=-NANFEERER
between the fair value hierarchy during the year. Al o F A ERERF Z MR F R
B o

The following table gives information about how the fair values TREVZEIREMEATLENETES
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, the SE(LERFTEBGERM R A&
valuation technique and inputs used), as well as the fair value AT EFELXHNAEREEBAF
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised B ENHBZ AFTHEEEL(E—F
(Level 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value =) -

measurements is observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement of  Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
financial position hierarchy and key inputs inputs Sensitivity
FEBRGESHBRR R A¥E
REZREM* BEARR RERMREEZH BERATABEZH
Industrial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison method  Price per square metre, A significant increase in
Hong Kong with price per square metre using market direct the price per square metre
comparable and taking used would result in a

into account of location significant increase in the
and other individual factors  fair value measurement of
such as road frontage, size the investment properties,
of property etc., which is and vice versa.

ranged from HK$41,129

to HK$41,979 (2015:

HK$41,108 to HK$41,689)

per square metre.

REBOTHY%E FE=MR BERELBEREFIK RAMSERAILBRY SFIKEBAELA
EE ERZERUEAREM HEBUREMRNHDF

ERAER (WEEE EfEAREA R2
B MEXNEINETE TR
FAREE - NTF41,129

HBILEA 979 (ZF

—FE 41,1088 TE

41,689 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M mARME

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement of  Fair value

financial position hierarchy

FEERGEMBRRE ATE

REZREME RIER B

Commercial properties in Hong Level 3
Kong

MEEHN A FE=M

Commercial properties in Level 3
Shanghai

® A B4

Valuation techniques
and key inputs

HERITREESH

Direct comparison method
with price per square metre

BERLBEREFIIK
B

Direct comparison method
with price per square metre

BHELEBARTFIK
EE

14, BEWE »

Significant unobservable
inputs

EARUBEZY

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from HK$161,450
to HK$161,460 (2015:
HK$161,255 to
HK$162,450) per square
metre.

REATSEEA LS
¥NEBMEAREM
fERIA =% (EedErE
B MEXNE)HEF
FIAKREE - N F161,450
BILE161,460/8 (=
T—E 161,255/ 7T
162,450/ 7T) °

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage,
size of property etc.,

which is ranged from
RMB29,500 to RMB30,500
(2015: RMB28,100 to
RMB28,500) per square
metre.

RAMSEZETLED
EREEMEANREM
ERIA =% (nEedrE
B MERNE)W
BEHKEE  NTF
AR#29,5007CE
AR¥30,5007T
(ZZE—RF:
AR#28,1007tE
AR#E28 5007T) ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —Z— N4F &R

Sensitivity

BRE

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

P I RKERANE LT
REBREMEN AT
EFfEXELAN  R2

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

IR ERAE LT
HEHIREMENAF
EtEREL R2
TRER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement of  Fair value

financial position hierarchy

FEERGEHBRR R D¥E

REZREN%E EEEA

Commercial properties in Level 3
Shenzhen

FORYIE R R 2 E=R

Commercial Shops in Level 3
Qingyuan

FE IR A R AL E=M

122 KINGBOARD LAMINAT
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Valuation techniques
and key inputs

HERITREEZH

Direct comparison method
with price per square metre

BEERLBEREFIIK
EE

Direct comparison method
with price per square metre

BERLBEREFIIK
B

14, BEWE »

Significant unobservable
inputs

EXRTBEZY

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage,
size of property etc.,

which is ranged from
RMB14,800 to RMB14,980
(2015: RMB14,500 to
RMB15,000) per square
metre.

REMSEERLEY
¥ENEBMEAREAM
&R A =% (EatE
B MEXNE)NE
FEHAREE  NTAR
#14,8007LE AREE
14,9807L( =& —hHF :
AREE14,500E AR
15,0007 ) ©

Price per square metre,
using market direct
comparable and taking
into account of location
and other individual factors
such as road frontage, size
of property etc., which is
ranged from RMB9,300

to RMB9,3583 (2015:
RMB9,500 to RMB10,000)
per square metre.

AT S EE A LB
NZ BB AR EME
RIE =% (IFRATER -
MEXNE)NFE K
EE N TARE300
TTEAREQISIT(—F
—HRF : AR¥9,5007T
= AREE10,0007T) ©

Sensitivity

BRE

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

ST A EREAR LA
BETAYEN AT
EEHEAE LA - B2
A -

A significant increase in
the price per square metre
used would result in a
significant increase in the
fair value measurement of
the investment properties,
and vice versa.

BF I KERANE LT
REBREMEN AT
EtEXRELA  R2Z
TRER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14, BEWHE =

Investment properties
held by the Group in the

consolidated statement of  Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable
financial position hierarchy and key inputs inputs Sensitivity
FEERGSHBRR TR D¥E
REZREN%E REARR HERNTREESH BRRUHESY HRE
Commercial properties in Level 3 Direct comparison method  Price per square metre, A significant increase in
London with price per square metre using market direct the price per square metre
comparable and taking used would result in a
into account of location significant increase in the

and other individual factors  fair value measurement of
such as road frontage, size the investment properties,
of property etc., whichis  and vice versa.

ranged from GBP7,082

to GBP8,858 (2015:

GBP8,193 to GBP8,287)

per square metre.

IS CEEENEEIES B=MR BERUEEBERETIR RATSEEXTLERY SFHKERKRELAT
B ENERUBEAREM BEBUREMENDF

ERIAXE (WEEHE EfEXELA k2
B MEXNNE)NTE A

FKREE - HF7,082

HIEZg 858 HEE(—F

—F4F : 8193 EE

8,287HiE%) o

There were no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year. FR - WEABE=ZHRIEASEL -
All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases AEEABERES N EREETIREL
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured BB 2FEMERER - AFA
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as ANEEERGTE - WO ERIIEREY
investment properties. In estimating the fair value of the properties, ¥ o NMAEETMEZATER  MECH
the highest and best use of the properties is their current use. There ShkRERREERE  -RBAFE
has been no change from the valuation technique used in prior year. FT A 2 (G ERIT I E )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

15. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y% - BMEKRRE

Properties,
plant and
Furniture, equipment
Leasehold Plant and Licenced  fixtures and Motor under
Buildings  improvements  machinery assets  equipment vehicles  construction Total
iE FE G %E =R
BF WEkE  HEREE  FREE e hE  RERXE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn T Tan TEn Thn TEn Thn TEn
(Note)
(W)
00ST R
At1 January 2015 W-F-1F-A-H 1252404 0856 8404473 2500840 571,562 66,192 378410 13203537
Exchange adjustments Ex:E (41,249) (1957 (4338 (14553 29226) ) Q8% (791989
Addtons 5B - 417 216,743 15,072 14890 202 259,426 512,324
Disposals and wite off HERHH - - (131,115) (39,249) (573 (2.240) (2696 (181,039
Redlassiicafions g 45,162 - 112279 - 15,819 % (173,26) -
At 31 December 2015 iy sy s 1256318 280 80895 2340120 567,306 63,233 433988 12,742,859
Exchange adjustments EiEE (t28%9) RO19  (B3060Y (148184 29.807) (2800 Qa2 (780584
Addiions T - - 45,191 33,389 0573 2174 51,453 152,780
Disposals and witg off HE R - - [2,781) (38,565) (2179 (2449 (1308 (127273
Disposal of asubsiciary Note 31) ~ HE~TINBATI(H3E31) - - - - 0) - - 0
Redlassfications Eipi] 75,782 1574 29,251 - 8,353 - (115,160] -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-ETZR=T-H 1,280,207 NM5TH002 2186769 564,438 60,164 4608 11987773
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT £ Ji/&
At1 January 2015 W-E-RE-F- 284926 0843 51TET 194659 303,713 4012 - 7708700
Exchange adjustments By A (8994 @) @120  (11735) (19760) (2234) - (470298)
Provided for the year TEREE 9843 2007 549,524 109,965 58,952 3507 - 733718
Fiminated on disposals and writeoff ~ (HER A4 - - (106976 (19,651) (1992 (1,639 - (1029
At 31 December 2015 R-E-REt-R=t-R 285,775 1218 528919 19193% 340913 43,646 - 783867
Exchange adjustments B (10332) (09 (345584 (125097) 21.887) 41 - (506,021
Proviced for the year TERRE 12112 2,174 471407 92,084 46,571 3,658 - 628,006
Eiminatedt on disposals and wrte ot~ &R - - (72,301) (15,482) (1,851) (144 - 1819
Disposal of asubsiclary Note 31) ~ HE-THBAF(HH3H31) - - - - f) - - )
At 31 December 2016 REE-7ETZA=+-A 287,555 12683 5200401 1,870901 363,741 4748 - 787009
CARRYING VALUE HafE
At 31 December 2016 RZE-ANETZAZT-H 1,001,632 0762 2,207,651 316,868 200,697 17416 4608 4117744
At 31 December 2015 NZE-TETZf=+-A 970,543 1672 2820076 420,733 226,393 10,587 433088 4902092
124 KINGBOARD LAMINATI




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

15. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15,

(continued)

The above items of properties, plant and equipment (other than those
under construction) are depreciated on a straight-line basis after
taking into account of their residual values at the following rates per

annum:

Buildings* Over the remaining unexpired
terms of the leases ranging
from twenty to fifty years

Leasehold improvements 10-20%

Plant and machinery* 10-20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10-33"/,%

Motor vehicles* 20%

* Including those grouped under licenced assets.

Note:

Licenced assets comprised of the followings:

M- BEERRE =

bz - BB REREERB (BRERZRA
BN EEBRIBEERRATFEL

R\ EAREETHRITE

= RBRAONF S E
THHFHA
—tERETF

s ok E$ 33 10-20%

[R5 K 2s 10 - 20%

R HBNEE 10-33"7%

JRE 20%

. BESEERREREENZSIER

BT -

B RAERENTEE

Plant and Motor
Buildings machinery vehicles
BF ENE 1 RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHT FHAT
COST AR
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RFE—HA—H 370,407 2,129,590 9,843 2,509,840
Exchange adjustments [ 5 F 2 (21,625) (123,343) (566) (145,534)
Additions NE - 15,072 - 15,072
Disposals HeE - (89,249) - (39,249)
At 31 December 2015 R-_ZE—hFE+-_A=+—H 348,782 1,982,070 9,277 2,340,129
Exchange adjustments M 5 2 (22,160) (125,436) (588) (148,184)
Additions NE 890 32,499 - 33,389
Disposals and written off & R g - (38,565) - (38,565)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RE+-_A=+—H 327,512 1,850,568 8,689 2,186,769
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT 7% K5l {&
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—A—H 151,264 1,785,432 9,843 1,946,539
Exchange adjustments T 54 8 2 (9,105) (107,686) (566) (117,357)
Provided for the year REE RS 6,647 103,218 - 109,865
Eliminated on disposals and written off H €5 i 5 48 & il $5 - (19,651) - (19,651)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+=A=+—H 148,806 1,761,313 9,277 1,919,396
Exchange adjustments I A% (9,699) (114,810) (588) (125,097)
Provided for the year INEE RS 5,929 86,155 - 92,084
Eliminated on disposals and written off & 5§ §5 & i 84 - (15,482) - (15,482)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—R"FE+-_A=+—H 145,036 1,717,176 8,689 1,870,901
CARRYING VALUE FREE
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—RF+-_A=+—H 182,476 133,392 - 315,868
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—FHF+-/F=+—H 199,976 220,757 - 420,733

]-i —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

15.

126

BA RS AR M

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

On 3 August 2011 and 30 August 2013, a subsidiary of Kingboard
Copper Foil Holdings Limited (“KBCF” or the “Licensor”) (KBCF is
a listed subsidiary of the Group), entered into a licence agreement
and a letter of extension and amendments with Harvest Resource
Management Limited (the “Licencee”), a third party, to licence KBCF’s
copper foil manufacturing facilities located at Fogang and Lianzhou
to the Licencee for the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August
2015. On 28 August 2015, the Licensor entered into a letter of
extension and amendments with Licencee and extended the licence
period for further two years to 31 August 2017. The details of the
licence arrangement which remained unchanged, are as follows:

(i) to use the leasehold properties, comprising factory buildings
in Fogang and Lianzhou;

(ii) to use, consume and dispose of the inventories which shall
include consumables and stocks in trade; and

(iii) to use the machinery, together with all other equipment and
facilities as from time to time located at the properties in
Fogang and Lianzhou.

The licenced properties, plant and equipment tabulated above and
the licenced inventories in note 18 were licenced for licence income
of HK$10,000,000 per month payable in advance on the first day of
each and every calendar month, as a measure by KBCF to generate
income from the manufacturing facilities, pending the resolution of the
interested party transactions issue, relating to the manufacturing and
trading of copper foil, with the non-controlling shareholder of KBCF
(note 36(b)) and the approval of the interested party transactions
mandate by the shareholders and/or when KBCF clinched new
third parties customers for the sales of copper foil. Accordingly, the
licenced properties, plant and equipment have been reclassified as
licenced assets under properties, plant and equipment.

KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED B EiRiZIRERE AR
—

L

15.

M - BERRE @

RZE——FNAZARZ=ZZ2—=

J\A=-+H ' Kingboard Copper Foil
Holdings Limited([ KBCF sk A 1)
(KBCFAASE—M LM EBLE)
—B AR HEEERERBRAT(A
F=)([EEEA DT IRES AR
BmME N B AR Y - AR B
R —_ZE——FNA—HAE=_F—A8F
NA=Z+—HILBRHREEREARE
FAKBCFAz 74 o i B2 8 )1 /9 8 SE B3 5%
M RZE—RAFNA=-FTNB - B
NBEERE AT — (T RISE] &
" BEEFRABERMNFE_S—

FNA=ZT—H - BERHERTE
HEFBHOT -

0} FERBLYE - BIEAREEM &
EINZ S

(i) FA - BFAMMEFSE  BIES

ERkESEE K&

(iii {FRAMES - ER TR &
BN EZ A EM R R
iR

ERTREBERAYE BB REER
MIFE1 8 AT LR A (50 A 17 S O SE R A (5
E g A A 10,000,000 7T © BRE
B RABBEN  fEAKBCFIEEERME
EERAMERE - MAFEKBCFRYIEE
BRIRREEREENEEBNNZALT
R SEEIEL R (M5E36(b)) MR EH#E
HENFZATZZEER, S EKBCF
MHFE=FEPHERE - At - 5
FRME  BEMESEENHS>EAY
¥ BMELAREETITREFEHREE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBmRMETE
16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FANHERKE
HK$’'000
FHT
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZE—RF—H—H 461,450
Exchange adjustments RS (23,674)
Additions INE 5,308
Transferred to properties held for development BRFRREYE
(note 23) (Mg7E23) (6,226)
Charge for the year RFEEZH (9,224)
At 31 December 2015 R-_E—RF+_A=+—H 427,634
Exchange adjustments P& (23,113)
Charge for the year AEEZ M (8,425)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZE—R"F+-_HA=t—H 396,096
2016 2015
—E—XEF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: REmEITAOT :
Current assets MENEE 8,129 9,915
Non-current assets B EE 387,967 417,719
396,096 427,634
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group changed the HE-_Z—AF+-_A=+—HIEHF
use of a piece of land located in the PRC, with a net book value of B AREEE RN ERERE
HK$6,226,000 (2016: nil), because the management’s intention is 46,226,000 T(—ZT—7R"F : T)H
changed from owner occupation to redevelopment. T AR  FEREERENERE AT
EB AMUAEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 17. AIHERE

2016 2015
—EB—RE —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Available-for-sale investments comprise: A ERERE
Listed investments, at fair value: EHREGRAFEINE) ¢
- equity securities listed in Hong Kong —NEB LT RAE A 1,121,923 447 565
Listed bond securities, at fair value: EHESFESF(RAFEIE)
- listed on the Stock Exchange and issued ~ —REESAT ETWERES £
by listed issuers in Hong Kong with BITANET ABFE
fixed coupon interests 8.625% (2015: 8.625B(—_F—HF :
8.625% and 13.875%) per annum 8.625/E }:13.875/8 ) 2 EE
and maturity dates on 5 February =g TR ZE-TF
2020 (2015: 5 February 2020 and 23 —ARH(ZE—RF:
November 2017) RZZEZTF-_AAAK
RIT—+F
+—A=+=H)3H 64,891 147,475
— listed on the SGX and issued by listed —RFRFT LMY EES LT
issuers in Hong Kong with fixed coupon BITAEIT AEFEENT
interests ranging from 4.75% to 8.75% 475BE875E(ZE—RF :
(2015: 6.75% to 8.75%) per annum 6.75[E%8.75E)
and maturity dates from 24 January ZEFEZS  FERA
2020 to 28 September 2023 (2015: 16 —E-EF-A-FMINEK
January 2018 to 29 January 2023) —E-=FNA=+)\H

(Z2—RF: T )\F
—A+NBRE-Z-=%F

—AZ=+hH) 1,095,130 176,072
Unlisted equity investments, at cost: JE AR AN E (IR AFIE) -
— private equity investment in Hong Kong —REBZAERAIEE

(note) (BfF3E) 8,124 8,124

2,290,068 779,236
At the end of the reporting period, all listed available-for-sale R HEARER - fTEAEHEE L
investments are stated at fair value. Fair values of the listed bond MISEE A FESIER - AR ER
securities are determined by reference to the valuation provided by mH - LMESFEFRAFENELRETE
the pricing vendor based on their own valuation techniques because EBEHARBEERSNGERMTRE 2 H
of lack of an active market. The unlisted equity investments are stated BET - MRNIEETRARENANFE
at cost less impairment as their fair values cannot be measured TEER SR E - HURKABRFES

reliably. R o

|
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, impairment loss on
available-for-sale investments amounting to HK$14,454,000 (2016:
nil) was recognised in profit or loss as a result of significant or
prolonged decline in the fair values of certain of the Group’s listed
equity investments below their costs.

Note: ~ The amount represents the 19.67% (2015: 19.67%) interest in a private
entity incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is engaged in the
property development business in Hong Kong. The Group together with
other investment funds as investors currently holds a number of properties
in a building situated in Hong Kong which has been fixed for redevelopment
(the “Redevelopment Project”). The Group’s participation in the
Redevelopment Project is 4.70% (2015: 4.70%) and the amount committed
by the Group amounts to US$21,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$163,800,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the private entity returned
part of capital amounting to approximately US$19,150,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$149,368,000), net of the capital injection made during
the year of US$380,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,962,000), which
was directly deducted from the investment cost. There was no change in
the shareholding.

At 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the investment is measured
at cost less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates
is so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that its fair value cannot
be measured reliably.

Included in available-for-sale investments are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities to which they relate:

17. JHHERE »)

HE-Z—AF+-A=+—HIEF
E - BEREFERTHLERENR
{EE1814,454,0008 L ( = F — /R F -
) DHRARENE T ETEREAE
BN TFEERNSIFERDWARRERK

Mzt : ZEEERN - EREBELE MK
RSB Z19.67%(Z T —RF ¢
190.67%)IHE + ZRLEEBNEBNSE
MEBRER - AEBREMIEEE
SEAREERRES —RUREB
ZREZEMHEEN  ZRKECHETE
#E(TEEE - AEBELHLERE
B Z470%(ZF—HF  4.70%) °
AYES R A21,000,000E 5T (FEER L
163,800,000 7T.) °

BE-Z-—AF+ZA=+—8L
FE O RALEBRBEETINES
% 54 519,150,000% 7T (FAE R K
149,368,000/8 ) * NG HEREE
B 1 B & P97 & 380,0003 7T (4R
F 412,962,000/ 70 ) o 3R I

28 -

REFE-RE+-A=+—HR=F
—REFTZA=+—H  REURTR
BEE - THREABRRAFEZ A
HEBX  FRARRERRARAEASE
ERAATE -

AHHEREBRETIIAEEEEHERE
ZWREEEIASNEEETHE Z FR

2016 2015
—E—KEF —E—RE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHBT

Uss$ ESSM 1,168,145 331,671
HK$ BT 1,121,923 447 565
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EARMRMEE
18. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS/ 18. HE{i RS E Hitw
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS REEE

This represents inventories licenced to the Licencee (see note 15) for
the period from 1 September 2011 to 31 August 2017. Under the
licencing agreement, the licencee may use, consume and dispose
of the licenced inventories which include consumables and stocks
in trade. However, the licencee is required to replace and return the
quantities of licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed of
during the licenced period to the Licensor at the end of the licence
period.

The licenced inventory has been reclassified from other non-current
assets to other current assets because the licenced period will expire
on 31 August 2017.

The licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed during the
licence period are secured by cash and bills receivables of a related
party of the licencee, with a total receivable value of not less than the
value of the licenced inventories used, consumed or disposed of as at
the end of the reporting period.

19. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
reporting periods:

IR -E——FAA—HBE-_Z—+t
FNAZ+ - AREEREA(RHME
15)ERNTEE - REFZEERGHZ
EREATER  RRAROEREER
FE G ETRESREMLESFE - R
il - NI E RS RE - BREAR
AREASE LREREEFERHRED
A EAXHENRECAFTER

=
=-°

AREERAESR -_F—tFN\A
=t+t—HER  RECAFE/EEMD
FRBDEESHHOEREMRBDEE -

REFEERBEER RARHEZE
BERTFERERBA-RBEALZ
R REWRSEERR - fJREBET
PRBEMEERE AEER - AR
HEZRERRTFEZEE -

19. EERIE

TRAXREHRHELANREMEAE
RZIBRERBRREREEARE

Fair value
change of
investment Revaluation
properties of properties Others Total
REYHEZ
AR EEE YREM Hit &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—HA—H (9,577) (88,664) 4,146 (94,095)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss A fEzExH A (F1) - 3,057 (731) 2,326
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RHF
+=—A=+—H 9,577) (85,607) 3,415 (91,769)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss A EzEEH A (F0k) - 3,057 (704) 2,353
At 31 December 2016 RIZE—RF
+=-—A=+—H (9,577) (82,550) 2,711 (89,416)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBERRME
19. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 19. ﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁ(%)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial AT & AR EHRE mmel 2 EEF:
reporting purposes: BB -
2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Deferred tax assets EERIHE E 2,480 3,183
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIAEE (91,896) (94,952)
(89,416) (91,769)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses R EBEERER - AEEH
of approximately HK$254,607,000 (2015: HK$241,123,000) available EHABREFNZ RSB IEER A
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been #9254,607,0008 T (=& — A &F -
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All tax 241,123,000/ 7T ) ° B F K s i
losses will be expired gradually within five years to year 2022 (2015: ARITEA - O R AR IE R IR B
year 2021). B 2HREEBEBERAEFRNELT
HMEE-"T-__F(ZF—hF: =3
——F)-
Under the EIT Law of the PRC, a withholding tax is imposed RENEMSREREE  BZZEENF
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC —A—B&  PERZAPEOHEA
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not AIFEATBRELRE FI i Sk 2 B 8 Bk Fa 0
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect e ARBNRFPEOMBEARE -Z
of temporary difference attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC TNF—A— BBz Z2i0aFEL 2B
subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 as the Group is able to control the =58 NEBIW A ZELERIBERL
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable AU ISMERIELEE - RERANEBLE
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable o B O] B i = 58 2 A5 R - B AR
future. ZREA B TR R AGHREE -
20. GOODWILL 20. B8
HK$’'000
FAT
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and R-E—HF—AF—H -
31 December 2016 —E-RFE+ZA=T—HEK
—E—RNF+ZA=1+—H 238
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FEMBHmRRMEE
21. INVENTORIES 21. EE
2016 2015
SE—RF ZT—hF
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FET T
Raw materials R 397,978 686,054
Work in progress RS 213,277 224,110
Finished goods Bk 129,464 478,365
740,719 1,388,529

22,

132

.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was a significant
increase in the net realisable value of certain finished goods due to

market shortage.

As a result, a reversal of write-down of HK$2,148,000 (2015: nil) has
been recognised and included in cost of sales in the current year.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS

22.

BE-FT-AE+-A=t—ALF
B RTISER - ETARGNTE
HFEBE R -

A - B AP B W R HUR [ 2,148,000
BL(ZE—RF ) Wi ARFE

RECEIVABLES

2016
—E—XRF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
Trade receivables B G REIEER 3,281,141 3,503,978
Advance to suppliers TEfTRE R 2 IR 325,760 246,321
Interest income receivables FEUF B ULA 19,272 9,747
Prepaid expenses and deposits TR RiEe 247,625 264,411
Value-added tax (“VAT”) recoverable AR ERIEER ([2ER ) 61,997 106,377
LAT on pre-sale residential units (Note) FEEFEE N 2 B ER (M) 30,270 27,028
Other receivables HAbfEUER TR 28,928 56,341
3,994,993 4,214,203
Bills receivables FEUEE 2,721,444 1,228,962
6,716,437 5,443,165

Note:

The amount represents the provisional LAT prepaid to PRC tax authority

based on the latest completion status of the development projects.
The final assessment will be carried out upon sales of properties at the

completion of development projects.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES

continued)

The Group allows credit periods of up to 120 days (2015: 120 days),
depending on the products sold to its trade customers. The following
is an aged analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date at the
end of the reporting period, which approximates to the respective
revenue recognition date:

22.

AEEGRTESIRFPZEEHERAE
1208 (=Z—H%F : 1208) » BFHH
EEMME - RBEHEERER - &
FREMERZ RRERBEEZEAR(NA
FEWEERBE) AT ¢

2016 2015

—REF —hE

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TET

0-90 days 0%&90H 2,398,254 2,393,695
91-180 days 912180H 828,563 1,060,014
Over 180 days 180H LA 54,324 50,369
3,281,141 3,503,978

Bills receivables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2015: 90 days)
at the end of the reporting period.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has an internal credit
grading system to assess the potential customers’ credit quality and
the Directors have delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals for any customers.
Limits and scoring attributed to customers are reviewed every year.
About 76% (2015: 76%) of the trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired have the best credit scoring attributable under the
credit grading system used by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$535,483,000 (2015:
HK$569,958,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss as the Group considers
that these debtors are financially stable and the management has
taken action to recover the outstanding balances. The Directors are
confident that these amounts are still recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 145 days (2015: 141 days).

NEBEWEIE 2 BRERY AR E R4
RIEMWIOB(ZZ—HF : 00H)ZA °

FEEMEAFEEA - REBEREHMEA
FLFESTHBERPZERER
FEEOISEREAEAMCNERET
D,\EE%E&{*ETM? EEZRER

DEHFEER - N76%(ZT—HF :
7&@%@%&%@2§%%%%%ﬁ
REBMEAZERAFTRSE 2&SE
B&Es -

REEE S e R R EIE R IR
X HBERTEI(E A535,483,0008 L (==
—F 4 : 569,958,000567T) © REEH
HE iy AREEWENZEFEE
HREBERE  REAREERE
ZEBEHAVERER - AERECRR
Bl R EBEHNTTE) - EEME - %
LHIBEMAA FUE - REERZEH
BIWESHEAERR - ZFRUIRR

2R A145B (ZZT—RF 141
AH) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

22.

134

.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired are as
follows:

6 BR B SURE B 5 IR BR iR 10
T

2016 2015
—B-RF —T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET

Overdue: BEp
0-30 days 0£30H 108,132 107,421
31-60 days 31E60H 234,800 254,490
61-90 days 61£90H 142,373 157,678
Over 90 days #2380 H 50,178 50,369
535,483 569,958

The Group has fully provided for all receivables that are overdue over
240 days because historical experience is such that these receivables
are generally not recoverable. Allowance on trade receivables
which have been overdue for less than 240 days are made based
on estimated irrecoverable amounts by reference to past default
experience and objective evidence of impairment as determined by
management.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables, the Group
monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade receivables since
the credit was granted and up to the end of the reporting period. The
Directors considered that the Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk of trade and other receivables, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

The following is a movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

BELRBRAT240H A £ 2 EUEER
R—REENE - AAEEHZERY
R EBIEL AR - BRIk D M240R 2
BHRWIRRZ B D2ERERK
RRLEREETNEERERRRER
BRI AR EMEDL o

HEEEESRUIRRZ AT RE LR - 8
ERNBRHEEEERESHMERE
B AREERBSRUEREREER

EEPZESREMBRKEREER
% BRAZEARZTREF S # -

AT RREEEZ B8

2016 2015

—E2—RE —ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TER T

Balance at beginning of the year FEER 360,065 355,785

Amount written off as uncollectible i R EE B 2 5/ (4,320) (8,961)
(Reversal of) impairment loss recognised on 5t & 5 fEUBE X iER

trade receivables ZREEE(EE) (2,408) 13,241

Balance at end of the year FRAER 353,337 360,065
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22,

23.

AND PREPAYMENTS AND BILLS
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$353,337,000
(2015: HK$360,065,000) which have either been placed under
liquidation or in severe financial difficulties. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Included in trade and other receivables and bills receivables are
the following amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate:

Uss$ E7T
HK$ BIT

RIEEFERIEERBREZE S RUER
X # 45 $4 /353,337,000 L (=&
— A4 : 360,065,000/ 7T) * % EHIE
BERNEAMBERBET Z5IE - &
EEMZEEBRTESEEAERRR -

B REMEUKERMERRERRET
FJINEEERAR ISR AINES
FHEZHEE

2016 2015
—T—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T
289,315 290,467
573,941 604,756

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT  23.

Movements of properties held for development are as follows:

EEELUES

FREMEZEFHMT

HK$'000
THET

At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—H—H 3,757,111

Exchange adjustments TE 5 A% (284,785)
Additions NG 1,687,647
Transferred from prepaid lease payment (note 16) BIEHEEREEE(ME16) 6,226
At 31 December 2015 R-ZZE—RFE+-_A=+—H 5,066,199
Exchange adjustments bE 5 FH % (310,180)
Additions NE 1,155,927
Transfer to cost of sales R HENAR (1,322,657)
Transfer to investment properties (note 14) BRI EYE(FE14) (86,095)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+=A=+—H 4,503,194

Properties held for development are situated in the PRC with medium-
term leases and are stated at cost at 31 December 2016 and 2015. As
of 31 December 2016, all the properties are still under development.

o

FEBYEMN AT AROBTENTEH
T WRZE—RNERZZT—HF
FTZA=+—BUAARIE HN=F
—NE+ZA=+—HB - FEDEDF
R o
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e MBRRME

23. PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT  23.

(continued)

Properties hold for development with carrying amount of
approximately HK$1,322,657,000 (2015: nil) were completed and
sold to third parties. The remaining balances as at 31 December 2016
was related to properties that were still under development.

Included in the amount are properties held for development of
approximately HK$1,838,459,000 (2015: HK$2,036,231,000) that are
expected to be realised after one year from the end of the reporting
period.

In the opinion of the Directors, the properties held for development
were classified as current assets as the properties were held for
sale purpose after the completion of construction under the Group’s
normal operating cycle.

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) FELLOW 24,
SUBSIDIARIES

SFREYE

85 1B 49 5 1,322,657,00008 T ( =&
—hF D) IHEEMECETIIS
EFE=H - ZFT—R"FT+ZA=+—
Az BREEGEREERR

ZEeEERERBEEBEEDEYD
1,838,459,000 8 ;L ( =& — A F
2,036,231,000/87T) + TEFTR 4 BB
EREERT—FREHE -

EERARBENESPARDEE -

THRERAEENETSEERE 58
ZEMENBENRNITIRRIFHE -

PR (1) [ 2 Bt 16 22 =]

FRIE

2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—hF

HK$000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries under  JREh & EIE N EWE LM B

current assets NAEIFRIA
— trade nature, neither past due nor —B5HE - SaHgonE
impaired

471,984 192,226

The Group allows credit period normally up to 120 days for sales to
its fellow subsidiaries. The amounts due are non-interest bearing,
unsecured and aged within 90 days at the end of the reporting period.

AEBRIBELRTERREMNB AR ZE
EH—REEA1208 - ZSEWFUA
BB RERR - HRERY AREEH
HEREBEMIOAZRA o




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) FELLOW
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries under
current liabilities
— trade nature, neither past due nor
impaired

NAEFKIA

MBEEIR T RN R RS

24. B () BRKEAF

FRIE ()

2016 2015
—E—RF

—E—RF
HK$’000
FHIT

HK$’000
TR

—B51HE  maiEinE

44,907 40,452

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries have repayment terms of less
than 30 days. The amounts due are non-interest bearing, unsecured
and aged within 90 days at the end of the reporting period.

25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group. At 31
December 2016, the Group’s bank balances carry interest at the
prevailing market interest rates which range from 0.01% to 0.9%
(2015: 0.01% to 1.15%) per annum.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had bank balances and cash that
were not freely convertible or were subject to exchange controls
in the PRC amounting to approximately HK$2,913.6 million (2015:
HK$1,809.6 million).

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
group entities to which they relate:

US$ ESW
HK$ BT
GBP %

FE A [ 24 P /B8 % R RIR 2 B AR ER 1030
B ZEFRNRB/REREEN - X
BRI RS IR ARIZM0R Z A -

25. RITHEGREAE

RITEHR KRS BEAEEREZE
Gt RZTE—ARF+ZA=+—H =&
SERITEBIZRRITMBFERNENT
0.01EZ09E(=ZE—H% : 001EZE
1,15 )58 °

R-E—-—RE+-_A=+—H &K
EEATAERARLBRRAZREINE
ERIFMBRRZRITEHRRIR SO A
2,913,600,000 B L (=& — A F
1,809,600,00078 7T ) °

RITRB RSB/ TIAREEEA
B2 BE B AINE R EHE 2 5REE -

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHT T
538,347 212,604
934,832 700,485
106,620 27,874
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e MBRRME

26.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND
BILLS PAYABLES

26. 5

BARE

\
A

L Ath & 1 BR AR

2016 2015

—E-REF —ET—hHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THT T

Trade payables B G EMNER 803,311 776,173

Accrued expenses TERER 343,146 301,518
Payables for acquisition of properties, BEME BEMEHEZ

plant and equipment FERTRRFR 57,775 59,699

Receipts in advance TEWGRIE 345,551 183,273

Other tax payables HAbERTIE 681,210 38,469

VAT payables FERHIEER 283,080 188,832

Other payables H A EHARFR 67,049 51,113

2,581,122 1,599,077

Bills payables ENRE 135,785 301,492

2,716,907 1,900,569

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

B RN RFIR R R AR S B

ERERZREOITT

2016 2015

—EB-KEF —ZE—hE

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET BT

0-90 days 0Z90H 663,081 642,744
91-180 days 91£180H 109,828 105,083
Over 180 days 180H A £ 30,402 28,346
803,311 776,173

The average credit period on purchase of goods is 90 days (2015: 90
days). The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit time frame.

Bills payables of the Group are aged within 90 days (2015: 90 days)

at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBERRME
26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 26. EZ R HMENEZR
BILLS PAYABLES (ontinueq) ANEL AT
Included in trade and other payables and bills payables are the B NHEMEMNERERARENZESET
following amounts denominated in a currency other than the IIAEBEREIBE 2 ER NG
functional currency of the group entities to which they relate: sHEZFEE
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Us$ E 425,342 283,919
HK$ BT 112,105 135,095
JPY H 34,625 82,960
GBP s 1,190 -
27. BANK BORROWINGS 27. RITRE
2016 2015
—E—REF —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT T
Unsecured I
Bank loans RITER 2,767,770 4,889,589
Trust receipt loans EFEUBURE R - 6,060

2,767,770 4,895,649
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mEMBERRME
4= ji
27. BANK BORROWINGS (continueq) 27. RITEE @
2016 2015
e —F-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FA&T
Carrying amount repayable*: AR TP EE 2 BREE
Within one year or on demand —F RN ERFEE 1,519,672 1,118,687
More than one year, but not more than —F L BT EBBARNE
two years 1,038,553 1,619,672
More than two years but not more than FE LA BB TR =F
three years 177,045 1,635,438
More than three years but not more than ZFEETBBRAT
five years 20,000 699,352
More than five years HEFLA 12,500 22,500
2,767,770 4,895,649
The carrying amounts of bank loans that B BN ERRERER
contain a repayment on demand clause &R TR B EE
(shown under current liabilities) but FERSERE) !
repayable:
Within one year —FR 1,519,672 1,118,687
More than one year, but not more than —F A HBRBBRE
two years 10,000 10,000
More than two years but not more than MF A BB EBR=F
three years 10,000 10,000
More than three years but not more than =FUHETEBART
five years 20,000 20,000
More than five years HEFELA 12,500 22,500
Amounts due within one year shown under R —FREIEZ 18 - 5] &RH)
current liabilities aE 1,572,172 1,181,187
Add: Amounts shown under non-current B AERSAaEZTIA
liabilities 1,195,598 3,714,462
2,767,770 4,895,649
* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the * FE B ERNER B NN TEEER

loan agreements. HEAFIR »




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

27. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Variable-rate bank borrowings at 31 December 2016 carry interest
ranging from HIBOR + 1.75% to HIBOR + 2% (2015: HIBOR + 1.1%

to HIBOR + 2.25%) per annum.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank borrowings is 2.4% to
2.75% (2015: 1.33% to 2.50%) per annum.

Included in bank borrowings are the following amounts denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate:

us$
HK$

ETT
BT

27.

BITEE

RZE—R"FE+ZA=+—H0 FEE
TEENFERHENTEHRITRERE
.75 EEHBRITREREME(Z
T—AHF  BEBTRAERENIARE
EEBIBITRIEREM2.25E )T o

REBMPITEEZBERFER(FERE]
NFR)BEN FFEFNR24EBE2.752
(ZZ—A%F : 1.33EXE2.50F)T% -

RITEERETIINEEERBEM
REERAINEREHE 2 TR

2016 2015
—E—RF ZT—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT FET
708,045 1,324,489
2,059,725 3,671,160

28. SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each:

At 1 January 2015,
31 December 2015 and
31 December 2016

Authorised

28.

EE

Number of
shares
RHEEE
’000
T
FREE010B T2
AR
RZZE—HF—A
—B -Z—AF
+=—A=+—8kK
—EAF+A
=+—H 20,000,000

2,000,000

SN

Issued and fully paid
ERTRAZE

Number of

shares

IR7EE

'000

FH%

Amount
x|
HK$'000
FAT

Amount
£
HK$'000
FET

3,000,000 300,000

There is no change in the Company’s authorised and issued share

capital in both years.

e
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29.

30.

142

BA RS AR M

SPECIAL RESERVE

Special reserve of the Group represents (i) the difference between the
net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
group reorganisation in 2006; and (i) the reduction in the registered
capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary established in the PRC.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of the Company and the shareholders
of KCHL on 18 May 2007 and 25 June 2007 respectively. The
Scheme has taken effect after obtaining the approval from the Listing
Committee of the Stock Exchange on 6 July 2007. The purpose of the
Scheme is to provide incentive or reward to the eligible participants of
the Scheme (as listed below) for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of the Group.

The Scheme would be valid for a period of ten years with remaining
life of approximately two months as at the date of this report. The
Board may, at its discretion, grant options to subscribe for shares in
the Company to eligible participants who contribute to the long-term
growth and profitability of the Company and include (i) any employee
or proposed employee (whether full-time or part-time and including
any executive director), consultants or advisers of or to the Company,
any of its subsidiaries or any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the
Group holds an equity interest; (ii) any non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors), any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity; (i) any supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (iv) any customer of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (v) any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to the Group
or any Invested Entity; and (vi) any shareholder of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED B EiRiZIRERE AR
;— =

L

29.

30.
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30. SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

The subscription price of the Company’s share in respect of any
option granted under the Scheme must be at least the highest of
(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (i) the nominal value of the shares

of the Company.

The option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days from
the date of the offer for the grant of the option upon the payment of
a consideration of HK$1. An option may be exercised at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by the Directors to each
grantee, and in the absence of such determination, from the date
upon which the offer for the grant of the option is accepted but shall
end in any event not later than ten years from the date of grant of
the option subject to the provisions for early termination thereof. The
Directors may, at their absolute discretion, fix any minimum period
for which an option must be held, any performance targets that must
be achieved and any other conditions that must be fulfilled before the
options can be exercised upon the grant of an option to a participant.

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
(excluding, for this purpose, options lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Company) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the
Scheme. The total number of shares of the Company available for
issue under the Scheme is 3,060,000,000 shares, which represents
approximately 9.8% of the total issued share capital of the Company as

at the date of report.

The maximum number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the

Company from time to time.

30.

BrRBERE:

IR R AT 8IR 2 B BRI
KRB 2 BEELATERR A
THRSER  ()VARBARNNELER
BEHABM(BAREER) ZBXME
BRERMRETE : ()ARBRMOR
ERELEBRERL AN AMEEEA
2R P R IRERAT R EZ 3
B+ R(ilARBI < HE

SEATARERERBELBREZ
Bi#F28RA - BB NREVETE
MEEBIRE - BEBREAINESE
ERGBAMBARAZ AR AT
WEBEEMBE  AhEEBERER
HEsER M ARG - WREAER
TNERELBRAER L B R4
ZARIE - WARZ B ZRFEILE
XFAMR - EFA 2 EHIERS2EALET
TR Z BB LA
ZEEHRE  ERATERZRABR
R AT ELMZ8 Tz pl 2 6k 1

RIEZETEIR E 2 T E LB (5t
b & T RIEERZAT & AR B
HEmErBRETE 2 BRERBZ
B REARAE ) BT FEITZAR
AR D 4B B A AT NS B IB R B E 4
EEARNREBEITRHBEZ10% -
BIBEZAE AT HBITHORNEER
3,060,000,000 A% & 7+ {6 AR A &R AR
wE AHIRE BT AN B8 4Y9.8% ©

R B R AR REREAMEEBR
RETBIPTAR B MM ARITERAFITRE
ZBEBBEETER A TRITZAR
ARMNEE & TNEBBARBTE
ZEEITR30% °
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30. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 30. @%Eﬁﬂﬁ*&(%)
The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be issued PMEA+ — @ A B M S 2 EA TR E
upon exercise of the options granted (including both exercised and ZEBEERE(BREETERRITEZ
outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month period must BB ) BT M BT R
not exceed 1% of the share capital of the Company then in issue AZRANTIRMDELE - TEHBBARAT]
unless approved by the shareholders of the Company and KCHL in ERDRITIRA 1% » BRIEERAD T
general meetings. KB b Tz IRR PR A& #t Al (E
llE

Balance at
1 January 2015,
31 December 2015 Exercise price
Date of grant and 31 December 2016 per share Exercisable period

R=Z2-HF—-H—B8-

—ZE-HF+=A

=t+t—HR=-ZF—XRF
+=—A=+—Rz&e BRITEE

Granted to the Directors

KTEF
21 March 2011 54,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to
—E——F=/F=+—H 6.547%7C 17 May 2017 (note)

—E——F=A=t-A
E-F—LERATEA

(B5E)
Granted to employees
KTES
21 March 2011 27,000,000 HK$6.54 21 March 2011 to
—E——F=A-+—H 6.547%7C 17 May 2017 (note)

—EZ——F=ZA=-+—H
E2-T—+FHA++A

(B%E)
81,000,000
Exercisable at
FLAT B BRR] F17fE
1 January 2015, 81,000,000
31 December 2015 and
31 December 2016
—E-RF—-HA—RH-
—E-RFTZA=T—HBHR
—E—-XF+=-A=+—H
Note: BT
0] 25% of the total share options were vested immediately on the date of 0] BRIEIRELRRE 2 25% I H B BRANRF
grant. The remaining 75% were split evenly into three lots and were vested BB R T75% TN A=ME  ER
on 21 March 2012, 2013 and 2014. The closing price of the Company’s T —F T =ZFR-T—NF
shares immediately before the date of grant was HK$6.3. =R=+—HEE  ZERLAHN—
AR RIS H K TE 6.3 T
(ii) After the reporting period on 11 January 2017, an aggregate of 60,000,000 (ii) wEHRE  R=T—+F—A+—A#
options were exercised. 60,000,000/ @5 BEAR T T1E o
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30. SHARE OPT'ONS (continued)

31.

30.

As at 31 December 2016, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme was 81,000,000 (2015: 81,000,000) shares
representing 2.70% (2015: 2.70%) of the issued share capital. As at
31 December 2016 and 2015, the share options reserve is amounted
to HK$93,105,000.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

31.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group disposed of
its entire equity interest in Kingboard Digital Development (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd*, a subsidiary principally engaged in holding a piece of land
in PRC, to an independent third party for a cash consideration of
approximately RMB2,004,430,000 (equivalent to HK$2,386,230,000).

The net assets at the date of disposal are as follow:

BEBRE

R_ZE—XF+_A=+—8 &E
Tz AT 1T IR0 42 21 A81,000,000 4%
—ZT—F%E : 81,000,0000%) © (HE 2
TRE2.70%( —FE—R4EF : 2.70%) ° K
—E-RERZE-RAFTA=1—
A - BRI #1£93,105,000/8 7T -

HE—EREQT

HE-_Z—XF+-A=+—HLLF
B AEERBYFEF = FHE—BH
BARREBHEHBERORY)BRAA
(FZEXBATCHRERE - L)
2EHEE ReREBHNAARE
2,004,430,0007T (48% 742,386,230,000
) o HERHMMEEFENT ¢

HK$'000
THET

Consideration received: EUMRAE -

Cash received [SAEAs 2,386,230
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control BAREEHECEERABE N

was lost:

Properties, plant and equipment ME -« BB NEE 4

Other receivables H b GRIA 29,338

Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 16,929

Other payables H v FRIA (16,731)
Net assets disposal of BHEEEFE 29,540
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—HRB ARz W ¢

Cash consideration received BUERERE 2,386,230

Transaction costs RGP (235,452)

Net assets disposal of BHEEEFE (29,540)
Gain on disposal k=€ 2,121,238
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRERAEHE

Cash consideration received BUERERE 2,386,230

Transaction costs R KA (235,452)

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERE MRS EFEER (16,929)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect HE—RWNBARZRE MRS EEEE

of the disposal of a subsidiary MAEFE 2,133,849

*

For identification purpose only

=
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32.

33.

146

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank borrowings, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained
profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

The Directors review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associates with each class of capital. In the opinion of the
Directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

32.

33.

EXEmEE

AEEEREERAERBBELER
HERGEFAEERAATFRESME
o BAKEETERERSELE -
AR BERE AT FRMAR -

R E SR BRAINE - ARE 2
ﬁK\u%@%ﬁETﬂﬁ%(%DB%EEE\&EE
S EEBEB) RARRFE ARG ES
(’E%E%’éﬁﬂ’izﬁ  EERREER)

%%ﬁ#i%&?§$ &% - FREH—

CEEREREARARAEZHEAR
E’J}—Lﬁ“ CBERA AKEREBXN
BB - BITHAR - BERG - BITHE
KEBOBAER A FEERELRLE
e

ERTA
(@ S@MIAEH
The Group

rEHE
2016

— N
HK$’000
Fit

MBEE

Financial assets
Loans and receivables (including cash and &

ERREEER(RERE A

cash equivalents) +<£@EBE)
— trade and other receivables —E 5 REMEWERFR 3,329,341 3,570,066
— bills receivables —ENEZE 2,721,444 1,228,962
— amounts due from fellow subsidiaries ~ — fEUL[F Z 1B A B2 471,984 192,226
— bank balances and cash —iR{TEEHRNIR S 4,518,270 2,840,247
11,041,039 7,831,501
Available-for-sale investments At ERE 2,290,068 779,236
Financial liabilities A E
Amortised cost HEHRCR
— trade and other payables — 85 REMERRR 928,135 886,985
- bills payables —ENEE 135,785 301,492
— amounts due to fellow subsidiaries —ERR RN B A TIRIE 44,907 40,452
— bank borrowings —RITEE 2,767,770 4,895,649
3,876,597 6,124,578

|
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

Details of the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which exposes the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 9% (2015: 13%) of the Group’s
sales are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity making the sale, whilst
almost 4% (2015: 11%) of purchases are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant
group entities.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are disclosed in respective notes. The
management continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging foreign currency risk
should the need arise.

(b)

BHREREERBERBER

REEN DR T AFBR BRI
HEE - eI AMMNRERES
‘EhSER (8RR - FEE
aRBEAERRR) EERR
MngEzRER - REZSRR
ZBERBIIIT - EEEEER
EEZERE  AREREENE
BB REVEE 2 i

iz R

EXE R

AAElETHEBRRAINE
THE RIRE  SAREEET
INERR o AEBMBI% (=T
—HF : 13%) KIIHEWIELAE
THEMERSEEERBEE
EIE - M44%( - —1F
11% ) BV ERBE N0 FEDUETTERBE &Y
RS E TR EESIE -

REBUAINEFENEEEER
BENREHEERE R ZERE
ERBREHERE - BERERE
EEINER - WHRNA T ER
ZEEPINERSR
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

|
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(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation against foreign
currencies of United States dollars (“US$”), Japanese Yen
(“JPY”) and HK$. The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2015: 5%) increase and decrease in
functional currency against the relevant foreign currencies.
5% (2015: 5%) represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of reporting period for a 5% (2015:
5%) change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes trade and other receivables, available-for-sale debt
investments, bank balances, trade and other payables, bills
payable and bank borrowings. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the year where
functional currency of each Group entity strengthen 5% (2015:
5%) against the relevant currency. For a 5% (2015: 5%)
weakening of functional currency of each Group entity against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the post-tax profit for the year.

33. £ I Hu

(b)

BREREEEEREE
(5&)

miERR(E)

EEmE(E)

BRE DT
rEEFEmEET(ET]) -
BE(T BE) M eINE & &)
BB o TRFMANEBMEINEEE
e RRSNE TS % (=T — 1R
Fb%)MBREAE -5%(=ZF
—FF  5%)EEBEBHINERE
REBBEEHNTL - HRE
DATEBIE S R E IR LAINE 5]
ENEBIEER @ YRS
B HINEERSY (T —RF
5%) S EEH AR - FRED
MEIEE S REMBUARR - 7]
HEEEHILE  RITEH &
SREMEMER  BHEER
BITEE EHEEEEEETE
RIhEE & B S MR EE HHE5%
(ZZE—RF 5% KFEE
BREBEEF ARG - EEEE
ERMNNEEE X ABEER
5%(=ZF—FF : 5%)8 - Ak
HAFERBEEFNBREMAR

B 488
V& o

2016 2015

—E—RE —ZT—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Us$ =TT (38,277) 31,917
JPY HE 1,537 3,423
HK$ I (40,765) 80,587
GBP g (4,679) (1,150)

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent foreign exchange risk as the year
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

EERR - ARFEMMEERE
B 30 e R4 R AT ACE RO LR
BERE AT HH BB B INE LR
= WEAKRE -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 27 for details of these
borrowings) and listed bond securities with fixed coupon
interest (see note 17 for details of these listed bond securities).
The management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider repayment of the fixed-rate bank borrowings when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group’s bank balances and variable-rate bank
borrowings have exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities
are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of
this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
related to the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”) (2015: HIBOR) arising from the Group’s bank
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for interest-bearing bank
balances and bank borrowings at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2015:
50 basis points) increase or 10 basis points (2015: 10 basis
points) decrease are used and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

33. £MTI A

(b)

e

MEEREREBERBER

(48)
=,

miSER(E)

T @R
AREBEBASTHEBRITER (X
EEEFHBRME27) RHEE
ERFNETESFES (ZEL
MEFBEFABRME7) PIE
EZRFENERRE - BEER
ZHEER - AR ERH
KRk BERBEEERRTE
B

RRRITHS MRS - NEE
ZIRITRMIIZ BIRITBEAR
RAeRENERE -

REEAZ I B A BEOF R LR
BFE - RAKERSE SRR
EIE—F o AREMNRETIREN
REBERRAEBRITEES
FEBRTAER R (BBRT
RZEFSD(ZTE—1F : BB
RITAXFR)RBNTERM -

BRE DT

AT S E D ITAR IR SR s BRI 48
RE BT BRITEHRBITEER
MAERRBRETE - REZHM
B BRERmEHEEREAR
FEz &R T ARBEFENARD
By o 50fEZEF(ZF—R%F : 50
257 ) sk 1082 F (==
—HF 10ME%F) R BETA
NEUE  MEEEEHFRE
BBEEBNTHE -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rate had been 50 basis points (2015: 50 basis
points) higher and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s:

post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
would increase by HK$7,769,000 (2015: decrease by
HK$8,479,000) as a result of the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its interest-bearing bank balances
and its variable-rate borrowings respectively; and

the credit side investment revaluation reserve as at 31
December 2016 would decrease by approximately
HK$29,072,000 (2015: HK$6,490,000) mainly as a
result of the changes in the fair value of available-for-
sale listed bond securities with fixed coupon interest.

If interest rate had been 10 basis points (2015: 10 basis
points) lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s:

post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
would decrease by HK$1,554,000 (2015: increase
by HK$1,696,000) as result of the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its interest-bearing bank balances
and its variable-rate borrowings respectively; and

the credit side investment revaluation reserve as at
31 December 2016 would increase by approximately
HK$5,968,000 (2015: HK$1,057,000) mainly as a
result of the changes in the fair value of available-for-
sale listed bond securities with fixed coupon interests.

[
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of inherent interest rate risk as the year
ended exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk profiles and the Group has a
team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the
risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2015: 10%) higher:

° The post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2016 would remain unchanged (2015: increase by
HK$265,000) as a result of the change in fair value of
these available-for-sale investments.

° the credit side investment revaluation reserve for the
year ended 31 December 2016 would increase by
approximately HK$201,000 (2015: HK$1,499,000) as
a result of the change in fair value of these available-
for-sale investments.

@EQ\IE-\\

(b)

e

B¥ERERER

\/‘/""\
=

miE kR (E)
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BRE T (&)

BEEZRR  ARFEMAERNE
R0 R R PR R
EHURRE DA HH B RO R [
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BAEIEE R
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AEERAERERR - SREER
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e o AEEA - EKEEE
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TXHEREDN - TiREHRE
HEFE A5 SR B AR MR AR (B S
[\ EESE

MR REHEEREBSER
BZAHEERAN ETESZ
EARIEINI0% » (ZZ—FF :
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. REEZT—X F+=
B=+—RA1EFEZE
B s MBRBFIE(Z
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BIT)  JYERRAHEE
BENTFEELBR -

e %Z:?: T_/\i"?’—
A=+—HItFEZE
5% & Bk I N
#1201,000% T (=&
— A F : 1,499,000 &
70)  ThER A SR
ENTEZEHEY -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —Z—"FF® 151




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2015: 10%) lower:

° The post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December
2016 would decrease by approximately HK$201,000
(2015: HK$1,764,000) as a result of the change in fair
value of these available-for-sale investments.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale equity listed
securities, which have not been impaired at the end of the
reporting period, had been 10% (2015: 10%) higher:

° the credit side investment revaluation reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
increase by approximately HK$111,992,000 (2015:
HK$42,992,000) as a result of the change in fair value
of these available-for-sale investments.

There would be an equal and opposite effect on investment
revaluation reserve if the prices of the respective available-for-
sale equity listed securities, which have not been impaired,
had been 10% lower.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has concentration of equity
price risk on its available-for-sale investments as 38.3%
(2015: 52.0%) of the total available-for-sale investments
is concentrated in four (2015: one) equity security listed in
Hong Kong. The Group’s available-for-sale investments are
exposed to equity price risk due to the fluctuation of price on
the respective stock market.

[
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the board of
Directors has delegated the management to be responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk in relation to bank deposits and bank balances
is considered minimal as such amounts are placed with
banks with good credit ratings and there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers other than group
entities. However, the Group is exposed to the concentration
on geographic and industry segment in PRC and the laminate
industry. At 31 December 2016, approximately 88% (2015:
93%) of the Group’s trade and other receivables are arising
from the PRC.

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries are concentrated on
a few counterparties. However, the credit risk on amounts
due from fellow subsidiaries is limited because of the strong
financial background of the fellow subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (ontinued)

154

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

At 31 December 2016, the Group has concentration of credit
risk on its available-for-sale debt investments as 40.0%
(2015: 15.4%) of the total available-for-sale investments is
concentrated in one (2015: one) listed bond securities issued
by one (2015: one) listed issuer in Hong Kong. The Group’s
available-for-sale listed bond securities are exposed to credit
risk due to the default of repayment by the bond issuers.
However, the Directors considered that the credit risk on
these investments are limited as the listed bond securities
were secured by certain assets of the issuers and issued by
issuers in Hong Kong with good creditability.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants
during the year.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. At 31 December 2016, the Group has
available unutilised bank borrowing facilities of approximately
HK$6,352,751,000 (2015: HK$3,505,473,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its derivative financial liabilities. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 33. QEQIE\(%)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) HEREBEEEERBE
policies (continued) (#&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRAK(E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables T E & RFIFE R F

Weighted Over Over Over
average On demand 3 months but 1year 2years but Total
effective or less than but not more but not more not more undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3months than1year than2years than5years cash flows amount

T RERS ZEANE -FUEE BENLEE FRRRSE
BRME AR BFER-F FEEmFT TEBLF RELE fREE
% HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TET TER TET

At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+-A=1—H
Non-derivative financial T4 HBAER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERER - 928,135 - - - 928,135 928,135
Bills payables ERES - 135,785 - - - 135,785 135,785
Amounts due to fellow ENRZENBARR
subsidiaries i) - 44,907 - - - 44,907 44,907
Bank borrowings BIEE
- variable rate —%8 1.99 381,811 1,210,076 1,069,962 177,234 2,839,083 2,767,770
1,490,638 1,210,076 1,069,962 177,234 3,947,910 3,876,597
; ) ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —Z—X<F4% 155




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBmRMETE
33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 33. ﬁﬁﬂlf&(%)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and b) HEREBEEEERBE
policies (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRAK(E)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) B E £ RFIF R 7% (F)

Weighted Over Over Over
average  Ondemand 3 months but 1year 2 years but Total
effective  orlessthan but not more but not more not more  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3months  than1year than2years thanbyears  cash flows amount

¥ BERYE =fANKE —FUEE REULE ERREe
RS =EAR ErEE—F MNEEME ANEALF  ORERE FREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT THT THT THAT THAT THAT
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—1F
+-A=1+—H
Non-derivative financial {74 BEEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 REMERERR - 886,985 - - - 886,985 886,985
Bills payables ERES - 301,492 - - - 301,492 301,492
Amounts due to fellow BN YNTE
subsidiaries 15 - 40,452 - - - 40,452 40,452
Bank borrowings BITEE
- variable rate —%8 1.65 229,880 964,062 1,415,339 2,474,829 5,084,110 4,895,649
1,458,809 964,062 1,415,339 2,474,829 6,313,039 6,124,578
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are R EMBESHTF - [RERSK=EA
included in the “on demand or less than 3 months” time band in A —HE B ENSERNMESRERD
the above maturity analysis. At 31 December 2016, the aggregate IERERITEE - R-ZT—XRF+-A
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted =Z+—H  WERITEENRTELAS
to HK$62,500,000 (2015: HK$72,500,000). Taking into account 4878 562,500,000 L (ZE— R F -
the Group’s financial position, the Directors do not believe that it 72,500,000 7T) « EELEEREE
is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to SRR RS - SRITHE R RATRETT
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such bank FEHBIEREA G ER - EFAE
borrowings will be fully repaid after the end of the reporting period in ZERTEEBREBEERBZAAHEZN
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates within eight years as FARNETFERBPRMEFRE B
set out in the loan agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal )5 - B AEBRBLANERE SR
and interest cash outflows will amount to HK$62,812,000 (2015: % 462,812,000/ T ( = —H4F -
HK$72,800,000). 72,800,000/ 7T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(©)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
Fair value of the group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of these financial
assets are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements is observable.

Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value

33. £ I Hu

(c)

Valuation
techniques

ERMTANAFETE
REEEHEERAVEFEZ
FEBMUBEEZAVE
REBE NP HEER SRS B
RERE ARAFHESE - TK
P & R R AR ] B RE % F 1 75
BEZAVE(LCEEMAMGE
B RBABE) - ARARF
EFfEHARBZUBREER
EMHNHEAEAAEDZA
FERBRAN(FE—EE=M) °

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to

Significant
unobservable

(liabilities) 31 December hierarchy and key inputs inputs fair value
TABEGA
R+=ZA=+—HzZ A¥ER /‘ERTR BARHA HEENTE
HEE/(8E) AVE B EXT PN ¢ HEm A HE ZB%
2016 2015
—E-—R"¥ _ZT-4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FHT
() Listed equity securities 1,121,923 447,565 1 Quoted bid N/A N/A
classified as available- prices in active i@ TNEfA
for-sale financial market.
assets V&SRS T
BAE -
DERAEL SN
BEZ FmRAER
(i)  Listed bond securities 1,160,021 323,547 3 Reference to The lack of The higher
classified as available- the fair value marketability the lack of
for-sale financial quoted in discount marketability
assets the over- = TS discount, the
the-counter lower the fair
DAL ETHK market with the value.
BE LTESHS adjustments B mislt
for the lack of g -
marketability. NFEHIE
SRIZINTIHR
BZRAFE"
WS 1%
T LA o
There were no transfers between Level 1 and 3 during the REBE-ZT-—AR"FR-FT—1F
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. TZA=+—HLEFER £—
RELEE = A 2 A fR RS o

- 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

158 KINGBOARD LAMINAT

.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of

33. £ I Hu
(c) ERMIEBENDFEIEGE)

FoEMBEELFEITEZY

financial assets AR

Listed bond

securities

tHhESERS

HK$'000

T

At 1 January 2015 RZZE—hF—A—H 990,682
Additions INE 122,585
Disposals HeE (818,315)
Fair value gain in other comprehensive income Hih2miiss o A FEKE 28,595
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RFE+_A=+—H 323,547
Additions NE 1,147,308
Disposals HE (304,077)
Fair value loss in other comprehensive expense w2 A EEE (6,757)
At 31 December 2016 MN-E—RE+-_A=1+—8 1,160,021

Included in other comprehensive income is a loss of
HK$6,757,000 (2015: a gain of HK$28,595,000) relating to
listed bond securities held at the end of the reporting period
and is reported as changes of investment revaluation reserve
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

GS LI

RBEHHERERFEEZLEMES
&% E5186,757,0008 T ( —ZF— 1 F ¢
W #28,595,000/% L) © EFF AHAME
ARETE2REBE_T—F+=A
T RIFEZREAEHFZEES -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

34. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS  34. E& K HiAE

2016 2015
—E—XEF —ET—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT

Capital expenditure contracted for but not B ET4ERAGE A BT FEHR*

provided in the consolidated financial BB E 2 B AR
statements for:
— acquisition of properties, plant and —BEME - BE LR
equipment 30,266 34,796
— capital injection in an unlisted equity —FEEETRAKRE
investment 3,346 3,346
33,612 38,142
Other expenditure contracted for but not BETHERRERE B TR
provided in the consolidated financial EL s 2 Y
statements for:
— acquisition and other expenditures —BRAFEEMEZRER
relating to properties held for Hib%
development 1,182,201 1,308,598
1,215,813 1,346,740
35. OPERATING LEASES 35. &X&EHY
2016 2015
—EB-RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
The Group as lessee: AEEEREEA :
Minimum lease payments charged to the FRRERAEERNR/RZ
consolidated statement of profit or loss SEBLEFR
during the year 3,087 1,390
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for SRR ARNEERE THAT
certain of its office properties and all lease payments are fixed and EEMNZHE IERANZKZSEY
predetermined. REEREFERE -
j ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —Z—X~FF%H 159
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— NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBERRME

35. OPERATING LEASES (continueq) 35. RKEH @)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s future lease payments RREREARE R - REBRBEAT
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: BE 2 SRR BB N 2 BORNR

AR T ORI AT

2016 2015
—T—RF
HK$’°000 HK$'000
FET T
Within one year —FR 415 431
After one year but not later than five years —FRERAFA 674 1,018
After five years RFiE 1,509 2,217
2,598 3,666
2016 2015
—EB-REF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FExT FBT
The Group as lessor/licensor: AEEEAEEABEA
Rental income credited to the FRFTAGEEERZ
consolidated statement of GiER AL N
profit and loss during the year 64,370 62,498
Licence fee income credited to FANFTARE BTk EE
the consolidated statement of [EE-ON
profit or loss during the year 120,000 120,000
184,370 182,498
The Group’s investment properties are rented to outside parties for REBZIGEYMENRATEET 2 TR
periods up to seven years at fixed predetermined amounts. HEETINAAL - HHIRRALESF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERARMEE

35. OPERAT'NG LEASES (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants and Licencee for the following future minimum lease
payments commitments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of leasing of investment properties (see note 14) and licenced
assets (see note 15) which fall due as follow:

35. BEHY

RREPHEERE R - RIBEHERED
H(EME14) RRgEEREE(RME
16) Z TN &ML - AEEEH
VAT R SR B AR & SRR v B AR P e
EIEANRTH - AT HAR R

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—RE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FHET

Within one year —FR 60,491 59,537
After one year but not later than five years —FRERATA 179,000 180,074
After five years AFE 127,912 169,132
367,403 408,743

The Group licences its Licenced Assets to a committed Licencee
under the licence agreement as follows:

o Within the first twelve months of the licence, either the Group
or the Licencee may terminate the licence agreement at its
sole discretion, by serving on the other party not less than
one month prior notice in writing and paying the other party
HK$1,000,000 or such other amount as may be mutually
agreed in writing between both parties.

° After the first twelve months of the licence, the Group may
terminate the licence agreement at its sole discretion, by
serving on the Licencee not less than one month prior notice
in writing.

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) The Group provided guarantees amounting to approximately
HK$2,864,397,000 (2015: HK$799,184,000) as at 31
December 2016 in respect of bank mortgage loans granted
to purchasers of the Group’s properties. In the opinion of the
Directors, the fair values of these financial guarantee contracts
of the Group are insignificant at initial recognition and the
Directors consider that the possibility of default of the parties
involved is remote, accordingly, no value has been recognised
at the inception of the guarantee contracts and at the end of
the reporting period as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

REFBERGZ  AEERED A
ZERENERNREEREENT

. EEEFERAE @A &A%
B EREATITEZEDNE
R —HAEETOR—E
AEhEmBLN YRS —FX
71,000,000/ 7ok & 5 £ E 17
FEHEMSRE - RIEREFERR
g% o

. ERECRET—@EAK K&
B A EREA BN AR
AZAEMBRN  2RBBZLE
REERH=

36. HAERE

(@) R-ZE—ARNF+-_A=+—
A REERBEFAEEYE
BRMIBITIRIBE IR EER
#92,864,397,0008 T (—E—F
1 799,184,000/ 7L ) - %
RAE - AEEZEUBEERED
WAFERVAERS LN E
X BESRALEZHENN
Bk - Bt - RIEREOK
YRERZE-RNFRZE—H
F+ A=+ HREHELER
EHYEREREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continueq)

Guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans procured
by the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees
will be released by banks upon delivery of the properties
to the purchasers and completion of the registration of the
relevant mortgaged properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the ultimate
holding company, certain subsidiaries of the Company and the
Company (the “Respondents”) were named as a defendant in
the Supreme Court of Bermuda in respect of an allegation of
the affairs of KBCF had been and or were being conducted
in a manner which was oppressive or unfairly prejudicial to
the non-controlling shareholders of KBCF. The petitioner
was seeking an order to the Respondents to repurchase all
of the KBCF’s shares held by petitioner at the price to be
fixed by a valuer or Supreme Court of Bermuda. The trial of
the petition took place in September 2015. The Supreme
Court of Bermuda handed down its judgement in 2015. The
Supreme Court of Bermuda found that the allegation, that the
terms of the previous interested person purchase transactions
constituted preferential transfer pricing which was prejudicial
to minority shareholders, were not proved and the allegation,
that the terms of the license agreement were wholly
uncommercial and the licencee was a sham, were also not
proved. However, the Supreme Court of Bermuda also ruled
that the Company’s management should promptly initiate
bona fide open negotiations in which commercially reasonable
proposals were openly tabled with a view to persuading the
minority shareholders of KBCF to approve the interested
person transactions mandate on even marginally more
favourable terms. Subsequently, the Company filed a notice
of appeal relating to the unfavourable ruling of the judgement.
The appeal hearing was taken place on 6 and 7 March 2017
and the judgement was handed down on 24 March 2017,
which is in favor of KBCF and the company. Accordingly, no
provision for liability has been made in connection with this
claim by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

37. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which was registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme which was established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance in December 2000 (the “MPF Scheme”). The assets
of the schemes are held separately from those of the Group and
are invested in funds under the control of independent trustees.
Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to the
establishment of the MPF Scheme are members of both the ORSO
Scheme and the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees joining
the Group on or after December 2000 are required to join the MPF
Scheme. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant

income of HK$30,000 (2015: HK$30,000).

Employees of subsidiaries in the PRC are members of the state-
sponsored pension schemes operated by the PRC government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the pension schemes is to

make the required contributions.

Payments to the ORSO Scheme, the MPF Scheme and the state-
sponsored pension schemes of approximately HK$22,650,000
(2015: HK$22,368,000) had been charged to profit or loss. As
at 31 December 2016, contributions of HK$2,242,000 (2015:
HK$2,234,000) due in respect of the reporting period had not been
paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid subsequent to the end

of the reporting period.

37.

RIKEREE

AEE RN —IEIRER S RIRE
165)5E M 2 e BB BT 8 ([ B 3R KT
2l MRS AR EAN =T
TE+Z AR zaHIEATE ST E
([eaFESETE]) - RSB EERAK
SEZEESHEE  WIRERBBY
EEARSZES - KRR BESHE
ZRIE2NBERKAZIZIES - R
BARERKE RAEESE 2K
8 MAMERZZEZZTF+_Azz’
MAXE@EZ FEB VAL MATESET
Bl IRIERTESETE - BEREREES
BB E 8 BB A 5% S E H it
P& AMRBIA LR A30,000/8 T
(ZZ—F4 : 30,000/ 7T) °

FEMBARZEEATEBFEEZ
BREMRNFTEKE - ZEHMERA]
ARFEXHZ K AN LR ARKE
g U BEREREN - AEB R
BT RERINABHEN -

MR aESHERERE
BhIRIRET 813 1+ 2 #5049 522,650,000
BIL( T — 4 ¢ 22,368,000/ 7T )
DEBHETPHR R RE+ =
B=+—8B Rg&EHREE 82 H3%
2,242 000570 ( = — R4 : 2,234,000
BIC) WA FZERTE - ZERER
SRS RE DT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME
38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. BEALXRS
The Group entered into the following significant transactions with AREEHEPEATEFRNETZIEAR
related parties during the year: S0 ¢
2016 2015
—E—NE ZZE—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
() Sales of goods and driling services () MEARMBARHEEERNR
provided to fellow subsidiaries TR LIRS 1,744,263 1,557,971
(i) Purchases of goods from (i) MFRRMBARFESR
fellow subsidiaries 546,591 707,245
(i) Sales of laminates and copper to a (i) MR AT
shareholder with significant influence BESRZEB KR
over the ultimate holding company tHE B IR &R 562,759 681,947

(iv) Purchases of drill bits and machineries (i) )% S 4 4E A% A A

from a shareholder with significant BESAFENNRE
influence over the ultimate holding FROESE A K i 25
company 222,368 253,290
Compensation of key management personnel TEEEAESME
The remuneration of the Directors and other members of key FRN - EERHMETBEBEAB MG
management during the year is as follows: s
2016 2015
—T—hHF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
Short-term benefits SRR 88,085 76,877
Post-employment benefits EIREET 765 639
88,850 77,516
The remuneration of the Directors and key executives is determined EERFETBABEZHMEeEEEER
with reference to the performance of individuals and market trends. BTITRENMIGBEEET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M mARME

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2016

and 2015 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Excel First Investments Limited

EAREBRAT

KBCF

Hong Kong Copper Foil Limited

Kingboard (Fogang) Insulated
Material Company Limited

R (R REHER AR

Kingboard (Fogang) Laminates
Co. Limited
BB (BR6) BB RER AR

Kingboard (Fogang) Paper Laminates
Co. Ltd.
BB (BBR) EEARBRLE

Kingboard Electronic Raw Material
(Jiang Yin) Co., Ltd.
BEEFMHOIR)ERR

Jiangmen Kingboard Laminates
Co., Ltd.
TP EREERERAR

e

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation

BREREE R

British Virginls lands*
EERUHE

Bermuda*

BRE

British Virgin Islands
EERUHE

PRC!
PR

PRC'
PR

PRC'
PR

PRC'
PR

PRC'
PR

Issued and fully

paid share capital/
registered capital

ERTRAR
BRA/ ERER

US$1
1T

US$72,250,000
72,250,000% 7T

US$47,057,290
47,057,290% T

US$7,615,000
7,615,000% 7T

US$29,466,000
29,466,000 7T

US$17,936,546
17,936,546 7T

US$30,000,000
30,000,000% 7T

HK$242,800,000
242,800,000 7T

39.

ARAEENEAT 2

R-E—RER-_ZT—HFE+_A
=+—H ARBREZENRBATZHE
I

Proportion of the
ownership interest
held by the Group Principal activities
rEEfEE
EEEERLA FEER
2016 2015
“E2-xE A%
% %
100 100 Investment holding
REER
65.95 65.95  Investment holding
REER
65.95 65.95  Investment holding and
licencing of properties
REERRAMEL
RIEER
100 100 Manufacture and
distribution of bleached
kraft paper
BUER DT AR
100 100 Manufacture and
distribution of laminates
BUER D HEINAER
100 100 Manufacture and
distribution of laminates
BUER D HEINAER
100 100 Manufacture and
distribution of laminates
BUER D HEINAER
100 100  Manufacture and
distribution of laminates
BUER D HEINAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A M mARME

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Name of subsidiary

WEAREE

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital
BERTRAR
B/ ERER

R,
BRREE

Kingboard (Jiangsu) Chemical Co.,  PRC! US$32,000,000
Ltd. FE 32,000,000 7T

BECIF L IBR AR

Kingboard Laminates (Kunshan) PRC US$32,010,000
Co., Ltd R 32,010,000% T

BERER(BIL)BRAR

Kingboard (Lian Zhou) Fibre Glass ~ PRC! US$13,700,000
Co. Limited FE 13,700,000 T

BECEM) FBEEERAR

Kingboard (Panyu Nansha) PRC RMB250,000,000
Petrochemical Company Limited ~ F2 " AR#250,000,0007T

BEEEED)ANLERAR

# These are investment holding companies which have no specific principal

place of operations.

1 These companies were established in the PRC in the form of Wholly

Foreign-owned Enterprises.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of

the year.
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39.

Proportion of the
ownership interest
held by the Group

AEEREE
BERRERLA
2016 2015
“E-xE —T-AF
% %

Principal activities

FRER

100 100  Manufacture and
distribution of chemicals

BUERDHIIER

100 100  Manufacture and
distribution of laminates

SE R EENER

100 100  Manufacture and
distribution of glass
fabric

100 100  Manufacture and
distribution of chemicals

RELD B TER

# IS RATRERBRAT - WEEE
B Sk

! SRR BECEZ A ETE
BX3L ©

ERFIIRESRATEZEAKER
BHEEZARBINBAR - EFERR
FIHEAMM B AR Z FEEBNITE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBERRME
39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 39. " RFEHB AT Z
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY F1E e
(continued)
(@  General information of subsidiaries (@ KMBRrIIZ—KREHR
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other RS HRERE - NARHS
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A majority of HAREET EANEMITBEA
these subsidiaries operate in the PRC. The principal activities A) o ZEWB R R KEHRF
of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: BB - ZEWBRRZEBER
BT -

Principal place
Principal activities of business Number of subsidiaries

MEAREE
2016 2015
—EB—RE —TAF

Manufacture and sale of RLERIHE PRC Fh 21 22
laminates EiNmER Thailand = 1 1
Macau JBFY 2 2

24 25

Properties bIES Hong Kong it 2 2
PRC AR 9 8

United Kingdom &[5 1 1

12 11

Others Hi Hong Kong it 37 36
PRC H 6 7

43 43
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL  39.
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

TZ\E\T ENBATZ

i3

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that b) HEEEREEREZZIHE
have material non-controlling interests 2 EME A RIFE
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRESHEBERIERER 2
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling REEFE2EMBRRFE
interests:

Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation and interests and voting rights
principal place of MM LEHR held by non-controlling Profit allocated tonon-  Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary ~ HEBARER business FEERHY interests controlling interests  controlling interests
FEREGREZRE PREFER

REZRRZRLA B 2R SRR
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
“E-REF TR ZEB-A~F ZT-RF ZB-REF ZT-Rf
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AR AT TER

KBCF" KBCF" Bermuda’ BRE 34.05% 34.05% 361 97 895888 932,288
Inolvidually mmaterial AR

subsidiaries with non- B 2BV

controling interests FEANELT 43871 53465

939,759 985,753

# This is an investment holding company which has no specific # LRAB IR EERAR - WEREEE
principal place of operation. B o
U excluding non-controlling interests of KBCF’s subsidiary ] TEIEKBCFHIE A Bl 2 FEIE g =

168 KINGBOARD LAMINAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that

have material non-controlling interests (continued)
KBCF and subsidiaries

39.

72
== =

T

7 ENBATZ

(b) ERERFERERZHE
EMBLTFRE

KBCFK FiEB QA

2016 2015
—nE —ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAT
Current assets mEEE 2,337,366 1,602,975
Non-current assets IERBEE 441,624 1,268,952
Current liabilities mEAE 124,374 100,988
Equity attributable to owners of KBCF#FE A
the KBCF FE(LHER 2,629,180 2,737,996
Non-controlling interests of KBCFH{EB &z
KBCF’s subsidiary SRR 2 25,436 32,943
Revenue S 635,296 624,344
Expenses, other gains and losses FX - Hithlas REE 630,363 617,938
Profit for the year REE A 4,933 6,406
Profit attributable to owners of the VIN/NCIEEYEWN
Company JEAh 8 A 700 1,874
Profit attributable to non-controlling KBCF3E{Z & 2
interests of KBCF FEAR & T 361 967
Profit attributable to the non-controling ~ KBCFH{ &2
interests of KBCF’s subsidiary Eis Hﬁ%ﬁnﬁi{amfrlj 3,872 3,565
Profit for the year REE ) F 4,933 6,406

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 —ZF—/RFF 3R

169

e |




- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

39. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL  39.

1 EMBATZ
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

72
== =

T

(continued)
(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that b) HEEERFEREZZIHE
have material non-controlling interests (continued) 2EMBARIFE @)
KBCFR KA R (&)

KBCF and subsidiaries (continued)

2016 2015
—RE —E—AF
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET
Other comprehensive expenses KARFEA AFE(GEAD
attributable to owners of the Company ~ 2E % (72,464) (80,110)
Other comprehensive expenses KBCF 32 ik e o A EL A
attributable to non-controlling interests 2 EFI X
of KBCF (37,413) (41,361)
Other comprehensive expenses KBCFHi &~ Bl 3EiE i e
attributable to the non-controlling JEMREMEEAY
interests of KBCF’s subsidiary (2,019) (1,981)
Other comprehensive expenses AREEEMEPEHAX
for the year (111,896) (123,452)
Total comprehensive expenses RATRFEANELEEE
attributable to owners of the Company F S 4858 (71,764) (78,236)
Total comprehensive expenses KBCFIEIZAR ez B (L 2
attributable to non-controlling S 4a%E
interests of KBCF (37,052) (40,394)
Total comprehensive income attributable  KBCFH{/E& 2 7l 3E1EpR 125
to the non-controlling interests of EEaE=RTE
KBCF’s subsidiary 1,853 1,684
Total comprehensive expenses AFEEEHEFRZ AT
for the year (106,963) (117,046)
Dividends paid to non-controlling BEtKBCFIE AR 2
interests of KBCF’s subsidiary FEFERRAE SR IR B (9,360) -
Net cash inflow from operating activities 4% & ¥ %I &R A5 185,182 154,513
Net cash outflow from investing activities %4 2738 4 7k HF 48 (32,886) (344)
Net cash outflow from financing activities g& & B)IE &% L F5E (9,360) (6,425)
Net cash inflow WREMAFHE 142,936 147,744




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

40. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to the reporting period, the Group announced that they
intended to make a voluntary unconditional cash offer (the “Offer”)
for all the issued and paid-up ordinary shares in the capital of KBCF,
other than those which were owned by the Group, or by parties
acting in concert or deemed to be acting in concert with the Group in
relation to the Offer, with a view to delist KBCF from the Main Board
of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The Offer will be
made at S$0.40 in cash for each Offer Share. Details of which were
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated on 3 March 2017,
6 March 2017, 20 March 2017 and 22 March 2017.

M.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

40.

41.

BREHERZEH

HEHRERE  AEEEMH HEE
REBREESEEESZEN(TEZH])
LAY BEKBCFRE A R 2 30 B 31T R 402
TRk (AEERAEEE  BHELOM
EAEEN —BITBA LSRG AEE
Er—BTBHALHEERIN) - A
KBCF{EFTIE B AR S ER AR E
IREUEENE - BHBIESRELORD
040 N T AR SR » B RAR
AAYPA_TE—t+tE=ZA=ZA - =F
—+&E=AXA —E—+E=A—"+
ARZE—+tF=AZ+ZHZRAER

Ego

2NN 7] B AR O % A
L

2016 2015
—EB—REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FBT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HEHB AR ZRE 5,711,740 5,711,740
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE ST BB A )RR 12,245,836 10,738,159
Other receivables and prepayments E b FE W AR R TR FOR 38,289 82,763
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 510,263 31,058
12,794,388 10,851,980
Current liabilities mEAE
Other payables Hfth AT BR X 29,990 61,155
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATHT B A RIFR0E 7,549,926 4,538,597
Bank borrowings RITEE
— amount due within one year ——FREEZ K8 1,369,672 1,102,627
8,949,588 5,702,379
Net current assets MEEEFE 3,844,800 5,149,601
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBERRME
41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 41. KA RBMBE R AR &
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY e EED
(continued)
2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—RF
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHx FAT
Total assets less current liabilities BEERBERRDEE 9,556,540 10,861,341
Non-current liabilities B E NN
Bank borrowings RITEE
— amount due after one year ——F1BRH 2308 985,598 3,364,462
Net assets BEFE 8,570,942 7,496,879
Capital and reserves R AR R &
Share capital R 300,000 300,000
Reserves (note) G D) 8,270,942 7,196,879
Total equity BNEEE 8,570,942 7,496,879
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

AN
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  41. &2 A B &R R
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY )
(continued)
Share
Share options Special Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
EEBRE
R D E e ¥Rl E RERA bl
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHT FHT T
(note)
(FfF5E)
At 1 January 2015 R-Z—RF—H—H 1,097,104 93,105 5,427,130 675,492 7,292,831
Profit for the year and total REERFRAFE
comprehensive income for the year 2K EEREE - - - 396,048 396,048
Final dividend paid for the year ended B {J&ZE = Z—pu4
31 December 2014 +ZA=+—HLtFE
ZAREARE - - - (300,000) (300,000)
Interim dividend paid for the BNEE-T—RF
year ended 31 December 2015 +_A=1+—HIFE
ZHRHRR B - - - (192,000) (192,000)
- - - (492,000) (492,000)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+=A
=t+—H 1,097,104 93,105 5,427,130 579,540 7,196,879
Profit for the year and total AEERAEAFEEE
comprehensive income for the year WS 4a%E - - - 3,318,063 3,318,063
Final dividend paid for the year BNEZE=T—RF
ended 31 December 2015 +ZA=+—RHLtFE
ZAREAREE - - - (339,000) (839,000)
Interim dividend paid for the year BENEHE=Z—RF
ended 31 December 2016 +ZA=1+—RHLtFE
ZRHRE B - - - (405,000) (405,000)
Special interim dividend paid for the BENEHE=Z—RF
year ended 31 December 2016 +ZA=+—RHLtFE
2RI ER B - - - (1,500,000) (1,500,000)
- - ~ (2,244,000)  (2,244,000)
At 31 December 2016 WZZE—RF+=A
=+—H 1,097,104 93,105 5,427,130 1,653,603 8,270,942
Note:  Special reserves of the Company represent the difference between the Mzt AEEZHERIFEERKENEARZ

net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group’s
reorganisation in 2006.
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—I INFORMATION ON THE GROUP’S PROPERTIES

The following table sets out the Group’s material properties held for REBTES KREMENNTEX :

investment:
Gross floor Group’s interest
area (m? rEERE#ER

Location Existing use HEREE 2016
L BEAR (FHK) —g—xg

(%)
88 to 93 Fenchurch Street, 5 and Commercial Freehold 8,000 100% 100%

7 Carlisle Avenue and Part of [HES KAERE

Saracens Head Yard, London,
EC3M 4ST, United Kingdom

Building 14, Kingboard Yueking Garden, Commercial Medium term lease 13,000 100% 100%
Kunshan Development District, [HES HERTE A
Kunshan, Jiangsu Province, the PRC*

(FEUIHERILTHRER
BERRE145518)

No. 130 Lingang Xinchengpu Road, Commercial Medium term lease 11,000 100% 100%
No. 220 Lingang Xinchengjin Road, mE FhHATEHA
Shops of Jiangyin Kingboard Garden Phase |
at No. 225 Lingang Xincheng Zhujiang Road,
Jiangyin, Jiangsu Province, the PRC*
(FEUI&HE I mEREamEE -
130%% + RS 3T & #2205
ERS R B5 22557 -
TREERIEE —8irs)

Unit Nos.2301-2303, 26/F, 27/F and Commercial Medium term lease 4,000 100% 100%
Car Parking Space No.9,10 on 2nd Floor, ES FERTE AR
Overseas Trust Bank Building,
No.160 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong
BBELTITE160%
BIMEFIRITRE
2301-2303% - 261 « 2718
B R 105R B AL
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INFORMATION ON THE GROUP’S PROPERTIES

The following table sets out the Group’s material properties under REBTEFEEMEINTE
development:

Approximate
percentage of

completion as Year of
at the date of expected Gross floor Group’s interest
this report (%) completion area (m? AEEBEES
BEERRE
Location Existing use HELL TR st BEREER 2016
126 RERR BABEHT TIEE (EFHK) —E-AE
(%)
Jingwang Road, Kunshan Development Residential 90% 2017 305,000 100% 100%
District, Kunshan, Jiangsu Province, F=E

the PRC (Kingboard Garden Phase Il
Development District)*

(FEIIHE RILAEES TR
(RERBEACE=H))

Guixi Road, Huagiao District, Residential 7% 2017 150,000 100% 100%
Kunshan, Jiangsu Province, F®
the PRC (Huagiao Kingboard
Garden Phase V)*

(PENTEE R ILTERR R
(fERRERTERERE))

Guixi Road, Huagiao District, Residential 65% 2017 393,000 100% 100%
Kunshan, Jiangsu Province, the PRC F=E
(Huagiao Kingboard Garden Phase IV)*

(FENI#S BILEREAR R
(TERRBWIERmE))

* denotes English translation of Chinese addresses in the PRC for identification * FREIY 3 2 S R R R B A g o
purposes only.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
M E

RESULTS

£

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—HA=1t—HLEE

2013 2014 2015 2016

—T—=F —ZT—NOF —E—REF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000

FHET FAT FAT FAET FHT

Revenue = 12,483,227 12,798,302 13,282,694 12,769,720 15,531,721

Profit before taxation B 8 A2 ) 1,345,446 1,393,151 1,329,256 1,540,465 4,902,670

Income tax expense FriSHifsE (179,505) (183,268) (193,281) (269,465) (550,762)

Profit for the year INEFE T 1,165,941 1,209,883 1,135,975 1,271,000 4,351,908
Attributable to: JE(R1DEE

Owners of the Company BAREBA 1,163,941 1,207,182 1,121,842 1,265,403 4,346,561

Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M = 2,000 2,701 14,133 5,597 5,347

1,165,941 1,209,883 1,135,975 1,271,000 4,351,908

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERAE

At 31 December

R+=—A=t+-—8H

2013 2014 2015 2016

—E—=F ZZT—NF =ZZ—HEF ZB—RE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHET FHET T THET

Total assets BEMSE 19,273,833 21,959,326 22,922,586 23,030,997 25,664,205

Total liabilities afEeE (6,383,147) (7,934,790) (8,528,926) (8,877,836) (10,317,073)

Net assets BEFE 12,890,686 14,024,536 14,393,660 14,153,161 15,347,132
Equity attributable to owners &A@ H A

of the Company FE(b MR 11,808,165 12,918,293 13,299,975 13,167,408 14,407,373

Non-controlling interests FEIERR R A 1,082,521 1,106,243 1,093,685 985,753 939,759

Total equity BIREEE 12,890,686 14,024,536 14,393,660 14,153,161 15,347,132
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KINGBOARD LAMINATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

23/F, Delta House, 3 On Yiu Street, Shek Mun, Shatin, N.T., Hong Kong
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